
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
FEBRUARY 26, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

February 26, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Bill Curtis – Community of Christ.  
Boy Scout Troop #518 will assist Mayor Schilling in leading the Pledge of Allegiance.
 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions 1 

C-2 Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 188) – A Section of Alley Located 
North of Big Beaver between Louis and Troy, Section 22 2 

C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-724) – Proposed Spa Renaissance, North 
Side of Big Beaver between Troy and Louis, Section 22 – R-1E to O-1 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – Food Service Provider – 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 3 

D-2 Approval of City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 4 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Vehicle 
Graphics ............................................................................................................... 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Courses................................................................................................ 6 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Aquatic Center 
Umbrellas ............................................................................................................. 6 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center 
Catering................................................................................................................ 6 

E-5 Molnar v. Janice Pokley, City of Troy, et al. 7 

E-6 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Police Department Promotional Testing 
Services 7 

E-7 Amendment #1 – Tennis Court Reconstruction 7 

E-8 Private Agreement for Caswell Town Center PUD Project No. 05.947.3 8 

E-9 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Phyllis Sullivan, 
Director – Education Center for Life 8 



 

 

E-10 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to MNAD Properties 
II, LLC Located in Section 23, at the Northeast Corner of Boyd Street and 
Rochester Road – Sidwell #88-20-23-351-001 and -002 8 

E-11 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to RPS Troy, LLC 
Located in Section 22, between Troy and Louis Streets Fronting on Big Beaver – 
Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 9 

E-12 Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy 10 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 10 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 10 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Historic District Commission; and Municipal Building Authority 10 

F-2 Acceptance Grant Award for U.S. Fire Administration 12 

F-3  Scheduling a Workshop to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 12 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 12 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 12 

a) Revised Chapter 90 – Animals ........................................................................... 12 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 13 

H-1 Mayor Schilling Requests that City Council Engage in Discussion about 
Construction of a New 100,000 Square Foot Library 13 

H-2 Report on Liquor Licenses – Requested by Council Member Martin Howrylak at 
the February 5, 2007 City Council Meeting 13 



 

 

H-3 Proposed Resolution to Reduce the Property Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease 
in Cost of Trash Collection as a Southeastern Oakland County Resource 
Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) Member City – Referred by Council Member David 
Lambert 13 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 14 

I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 14 

REPORTS: 14 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 14 

a) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – October 14, 2004 ..................................... 14 
b) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – March 2, 2005.......................................... 14 
c) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – September 7, 2005 .................................. 14 
d) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – March 8, 2006.......................................... 14 
e) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – September 6, 2006 .................................. 14 
f) Election Commission/Final – October 23, 2006.................................................. 14 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 13, 2006 .................................... 14 
h) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – January 3, 2007 ........ 14 
i) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – January 3, 2007 ........ 14 
j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 3, 2007................................... 14 
k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 4, 2007....................... 14 
l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – January 8, 2007 .......................................... 14 
m) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 10, 2007.... 14 
n) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 23, 2007.......................... 14 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 23, 2007.......................... 14 
p) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 1, 2007 ..................... 14 
q) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 7, 2007................................. 14 
r) Election Commission/Draft – February 12, 2007 ................................................ 14 
s) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 12, 2007....................................... 14 
t) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – February 14, 2007 ................................... 14 
u) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – February 15, 2007...................... 14 

J-2 Department Reports: 14 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of January, 2007 ....... 14 
b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – January 31, 2007 ................................. 14 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 14 

a) Letter to Chief Craft from Stephanie Bergeron, President of Walsh College, 
Thanking Captain Mayer, Officer Breidenich, PSA Snedden and the Troy 
Police Department for Their Assistance with Traffic During Commencement 
Ceremonies ........................................................................................................ 14 

b) Letter of Thanks to Officer Dungjen from Tiea Young in Appreciation of the 
Assistance Received .......................................................................................... 14 



 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 14 

J-5  Calendar 14 

J-6  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 
Quarterly Report for January, 2007 14 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case 
No. U-15041 15 

J-8  Communication from the Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Appointment 
of City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm to the MML Land Use Committee 15 

J-9  Communication from the Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Appointment 
of City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew to the MML Elections Committee 15 

J-10  Communication from Emerald Food Services Regarding Events at the City Council 
Meeting of February 5, 2007 15 

J-11  Communication from Chief of Police Charles Craft Regarding Liquor License 
Compliance Check 15 

J-12  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
the Status of “The Troy Christmas Tree” 15 

J-13  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Federal Aid 
Funding for Major Roads – FY 2010 and 2011 15 

J-14  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Planning 
Commission Election of Officers 15 

J-15  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Sidewalk 
Maintenance Program and ADA Requirements 15 

STUDY ITEMS: 15 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 15 



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 15 

CLOSED SESSION: 16 

L-1 Closed Session: 16 

RECESSED 16 

RECONVENED 16 

ADJOURNMENT 16 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, March 5, 2007 Regular City Council ....................................................... 16 
Monday, March 19, 2007 Regular City Council ..................................................... 16 
Monday, April 2, 2007 Regular City Council.......................................................... 16 
Monday, April 16, 2007 Regular City Council........................................................ 16 
Monday, May 14, 2007 Regular City Council ........................................................ 16 
Monday, May 21, 2007 Regular City Council ........................................................ 16 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Bill Curtis – Community of 
Christ.  Boy Scout Troop #518 will assist Mayor Schilling in leading the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: No Presentations  
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy 
Exemption of Alternative Energy Personal Property located at 1100 W. Maple, 1414 
Combermere, and 1857 Technology Drive, Troy MI., as certified by the City Assessor, in an 
amount not to exceed $1,205,747.00, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk of the City of Troy shall FORWARD a copy 
of this resolution and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 300 N. Washington 
Square, Lansing, MI 48913. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

C-2 Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 188) – A Section of Alley Located 
North of Big Beaver between Louis and Troy, Section 22  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of the 18-foot-wide 
platted alley, located north of Big Beaver Road, between Louis and Troy, and abutting lots 115 
and 116 and 14 through 25 of Eysters Beaver Gardens Subdivision;   
 
WHEREAS, The property which shall benefit from this requested vacation is Lot 115 and 116 of 
Eysters Beaver Gardens Subdivision (City of Troy Tax Parcels 20-22-356-008 and 20-22-356-
011) and Lots 14 through 25 (City of Troy Tax Parcels 20-22-356-031 and 20-22-356-014), 
Section 22; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management and the Planning Commission have recommended that this alley 
vacation be granted with the retention of public and private utility easements;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council CONCURS in the recommendations of 
City Management and the Planning Commission, to VACATE the portion of the alley; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council RETAINS easements for public and 
private easements and public turnaround within the vacated alley. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-724) – Proposed Spa Renaissance, North 

Side of Big Beaver between Troy and Louis, Section 22 – R-1E to O-1  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to O-1 rezoning request, located on the north side of Big Beaver, 
between Troy and Louis, in Section 22, part of parcels 88-20-22-356-008 and 88-20-22-356-
011, being 0.6 acres in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the 
ATTACHED Certified Boundary Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SW 1/4 of Section 22 
 
Lots 115 and 116 of Eysters Beaver Gardens recorded in Liber 26, Page 14 of Oakland 
County Records; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the rezoning is RECOMMENDED by City Management and 
the Planning Commission; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – Food Service Provider – 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – Food Service Provider – 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course             
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course for two 
years with an option to renew for two additional years is hereby AWARDED to Kosch Catering 
& Corporate Dining, and the City Council of the City of Troy has deemed that Kosch Catering & 
Corporate Dining is the best available bidder based on the bid awards as a result of a Best 
Value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest at a 
guaranteed annual rent of $6,000.00 plus an additional 5% of gross revenue over $125,000.00 
and 7.5% of gross revenue over $150,000.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
agreements when in acceptable form.  
 
Proposed Substitute Amendment 
 
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – 
Food Service Provider – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course be SUBSTITUTED with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That a contract to provide food service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course for 
two (2) years with an option to renew for two additional years is hereby AWARDED to 
Emerald Food Services, Inc., the bidder with the highest score and overall return, as a 
result of a Best Value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public 
interest at a guaranteed annual rent of $6,000.00 plus an additional 1% of gross revenue 
over $150,000.00 and 2% of gross revenue over $200,000.00.   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor 
submission of proper executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance 
certificates and all specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreements when in acceptable form.   

 
Yes: 
No:  
 
D-2 Approval of City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by  Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Department and Parks and Recreation Department jointly developed 
the City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan;   
 
WHEREAS, The Plan identifies recreational need in the City and includes an Action Plan for 
recreation improvements over the next five years;    
 
WHEREAS, Public input was achieved using a wide range of methods, including a Parks and 
Recreation Survey, Park Master Plan meetings, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board public 
meetings and public notification of opportunities for public input published in local newspapers; 
 
WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee recommended approval of the Plan 
at their November 16, 2006 Public Hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management recommends approval of the Five Year Parks and Recreation 
Plan; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council concurs in the recommendations of 
City Management and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and APPROVES the City of 
Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council TRANSMITS the Five Year Parks and 
Recreation Plan to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources for approval. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of February 5, 
2007 and the Regular City Council Meeting of February 7, 2007 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Vehicle Graphics           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
WHEREAS, On March 7, 2005, a two-year contract to provide Police and Fire Departments with 
vehicle graphic material and/or installation was awarded to the low total bidder, Majik Graphics, 
Inc. of Clinton Township, MI at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened November 5, 
2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting (Resolution 
#2005-03-110-E-9); and  
 
WHEREAS, Majik Graphics, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew for the two 
additional years under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract for two additional years 
is hereby EXERCISED with Majik Graphics, Inc. to provide vehicle graphic material and/or 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

installation under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract, to expire 
February 28, 2009. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Courses           

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to purchase seasonal requirements of chemicals for the Sylvan 
Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf courses is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidders meeting 
specifications as follows: 
           
BIDDERS      ITEMS          
Tri-Turf of Farmington Hills, MI   1,6,7,9,22,29,37   
 
IKEX LLC of Tecumseh, MI    2,20     
 
Turfgrass, Inc. of South Lyon, MI   3,4,10,11,12,16,17,19,21,23,24,28,32 
 
Lesco, Inc. of Cleveland, OH   5,25   
 
Great Lakes Turf LLC of Grand Rapids, MI 8,13,14,15,18,31,34,35 
 
UAP Professional Products of Linden, MI  26,27,30,33,36   
 
for an estimated total cost of $178,277.95, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
January 9, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, 
with a contract expiration of December 31, 2007. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Aquatic Center 

Umbrellas           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish nine (9) Funbrella Palm twenty-foot straight arm, non-
retractable umbrellas is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Recreonics, Inc. of Louisville, KY, 
for an estimated total cost of $23,345.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center 

Catering           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide catering services at the Troy Community Center for two 
(2) years with an option to renew for two additional years is hereby AWARDED to Sankofa 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Housing of Detroit, MI, the bidder with the highest score and overall return, as a result of a Best 
Value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest at an 18% 
return on gross revenue expiring March 31, 2009; and    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the agreement when in acceptable form.   
 
E-5 Molnar v. Janice Pokley, City of Troy, et al.  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Gerald Molnar v Care House, 
Amy Allen, Renee Molnar, Janice Pokley, and City of Troy and to RETAIN any necessary 
expert witnesses to adequately represent the City. 
 
E-6 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Police Department Promotional Testing 

Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. has been providing testing and hiring services for the City’s Police 
Department for 16 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO meets departmental needs, complies with Act 78 Commission 
requirements, purchased all the Michigan Municipal League’s testing services and has proven 
to be fair and impartial; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED and a 
contract to provide police lieutenant, police sergeant, and police captain promotional testing be 
awarded to EMPCO, Inc., at a cost not to exceed $2,100.00 for preparing, administering and 
scoring the sergeants written examination; $4,800.00 per assessment center, plus $400.00 per 
candidate based on five (5) applicants; add $3,000.00 for each multiple of five (5) or fraction 
thereof; and mileage reimbursement for three (3) assessors and one (1) facilitator at a rate of 
$.445 per mile; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The City Manager and Human Resources Director are hereby 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE this contract with EMPCO, Inc. when in acceptable form. 
 
E-7 Amendment #1 – Tennis Court Reconstruction 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, On March 6, 2006, a contract to reconstruct the east and west tennis courts at 
Boulan Park was awarded to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, ABC Paving Company of 
Trenton, MI, for an estimated total cost of $116,452.00, at prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened on February 8, 2006 (Resolution #2006-03-126-E4c); and 
 
WHEREAS, It is recommended that the contract be amended to allow for additional work, which 
was uncovered during the reconstruction of the east tennis courts; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract is hereby AMENDED to allow for the 
additional work to repair the west tennis courts at Boulan Park to ABC Paving Company for an 
amount not to exceed $83,440.00, in accordance with their proposal dated January 18, 2007.    
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Caswell Town Center PUD Project No. 05.947.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Caswell Town Center LLC., is hereby APPROVED 
for the installation of public and private roads pursuant to Chapter 39 of the City Code, Section 
12.50.04, water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, sidewalks, soil erosion and 
landscaping on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Phyllis Sullivan, 

Director – Education Center for Life 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Educational Center 
for Life, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community 
for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license. 
 
E-10 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to MNAD Properties 

II, LLC Located in Section 23, at the Northeast Corner of Boyd Street and 
Rochester Road – Sidwell #88-20-23-351-001 and -002 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant parcels; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council FINDS that the public interest will 
best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 2007-01-028 
Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess property and APPROVES the sale of the remnant 
parcel having Sidwell #88-20-23-351-001 and 002 on the northeast corner of Boyd Street and 
Rochester Road to MNAD Properties II, LLC in the amount of $20,000.00, the appraised value, 
as outlined in the attached Offer to Purchase, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to RPS Troy, LLC 

Located in Section 22, between Troy and Louis Streets Fronting on Big Beaver – 
Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant parcels; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council FINDS that the public interest will 
best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 2007-01-028 
Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess property and APPROVES the sale of the remnant 
parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 on the north side of Big Beaver between Troy and 
Louis Streets to RPS Troy, LLC in the amount of $15,000.00, the appraised value, as outlined 
in the attached Offer to Purchase, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the sale of the subject remnant parcel having Sidwell #88-
20-22-356-031, is CONDITIONED upon RPS Troy, LLC purchasing a privately owned parcel 
owned by Four Oaks Management for fair market value, Sidwell #88-20-22-356-014, for the 
purposes of encouraging a consolidated development; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

E-12 Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Mary Ann Hennig v. City of 
Troy, and to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses or PAY any necessary costs to 
adequately represent the City.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Historic District Commission; and Municipal Building Authority     

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 02/28/10 
 
 Term Expires 02/28/10 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

F-2 Acceptance Grant Award for U.S. Fire Administration 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Fire Department to 
receive a United States Fire Administration FIRE ACT Grant for the purchase of self-contained 
breathing apparatus; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fire Department equipment budget is hereby 
AMENDED due to the grant award in the amount of $247,200.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3  Scheduling a Workshop to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That a workshop to discuss strategic planning initiatives is SCHEDULED for the 
following date and time: 
 
Wednesday, February 28, 2007 at 6:30 PM;  
Tuesday, March 13, 2007 at 6:30 PM; 
Wednesday, March 14, 2007 at 6:30 PM; or 
Monday, March 26, 2007 at 6:30 PM 
 
in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Yes: 
No:  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Revised Chapter 90 – Animals 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Mayor Schilling Requests that City Council Engage in Discussion about 
Construction of a New 100,000 Square Foot Library  

 
H-2 Report on Liquor Licenses – Requested by Council Member Martin Howrylak at the 

February 5, 2007 City Council Meeting  
 
H-3 Proposed Resolution to Reduce the Property Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease 

in Cost of Trash Collection as a Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) Member City – Referred by Council Member David Lambert 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council Members, Royal Oak City Commissioners, and Hazel Park 
Council Members, and other officials accepted the responsibility to reduce the cost of trash 
collection that was spinning out of control; and 
 
WHEREAS, A new leadership team at the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) was formed by voting members of cities in SOCRRA and the new team 
met the challenge to reduce costs for the trash consortium; and  
 
WHEREAS, This new SOCCRA leadership has successfully lowered prices and decreased the 
cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCCRA member cities amounting to a 
savings of approximately $2,730,000.00 per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, All the member cities projected savings are between 10% to 24%, and the City of 
Troy’s savings will be 18.6% or $776,423.00 per year of taxpayers cost; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council SHALL REDUCE the property tax 
millage to equal the $776,423.00 savings, minus $182,330.00, the amount of subsidy to the 
Refuse and Recycling Fund from the General Fund, and that the Troy City Council REQUESTS 
that the City Manager and staff REDUCE this cost starting in the 2007 Troy City budget; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council respectfully REQUESTS that the 
Troy City Manager FORWARD copies of this resolution to the local media to inform citizens and 
taxpayers of this savings and reduction. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – October 14, 2004  
b) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – March 2, 2005  
c) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – September 7, 2005  
d) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – March 8, 2006  
e) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – September 6, 2006 
f) Election Commission/Final – October 23, 2006  
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 13, 2006 
h) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – January 3, 2007 
i) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – January 3, 2007 
j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 3, 2007 
k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 4, 2007  
l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – January 8, 2007   
m) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 10, 2007  
n) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 23, 2007  
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 23, 2007  

 2007  p) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 1,
  7, 2007  q) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February

r) Election Commission/Draft – February 12, 2007 
 s) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 12, 2007   

t) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – February 14, 2007 
) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – February 15, 2007 u

 
J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of

) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – January 31, 2007  
 January, 2007  

b
 

  J-3 Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Stephanie Bergeron, President of Walsh College, Thanking 

Captain Mayer, Officer Breidenich, PSA Snedden and the Troy Police Department for 
Their Assistance with Traffic During Commencement Ceremonies  

b) Letter of Thanks to Officer Dungjen from Tiea Young in Appreciation of the Assistance 
Received 

 
-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted J

 
-5  Calendar J

 
J-6  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 

Quarterly Report for January, 2007  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case 
No. U-15041 

 
J-8  Communication from the Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Appointment 

of City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm to the MML Land Use Committee 
 
J-9  Communication from the Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Appointment 

of City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew to the MML Elections Committee 
 
J-10  Communication from Emerald Food Services Regarding Events at the City Council 

Meeting of February 5, 2007 
 
J-11  Communication from Chief of Police Charles Craft Regarding Liquor License 

Compliance Check 
 
J-12  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

the Status of “The Troy Christmas Tree” 
 
J-13  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Federal Aid 

Funding for Major Roads – FY 2010 and 2011 
 
J-14  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Planning 

Commission Election of Officers 
 
J-15  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Sidewalk 

Maintenance Program and ADA Requirements 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 26, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:    
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – City of Troy v. Premium Construction. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, March 5, 2007............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 19, 2007........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 2, 2007................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, April 16, 2007.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 14, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 21, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



 

 
 
February 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Michigan Next Energy Exemptions 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Next Energy Authority (MNEA) was created by Public Act 549 of 2002.  The 

authority is charged with certifying alternative energy businesses, and alternative energy Personal 
Property. 

 
Under provisions of the Act, alternative energy Personal Property (as certified by the local 
Assessor) purchased between 2002 and 2011 (since amended to extend to 2013) may be exempt 
from taxation through the process of eliminating all, or some, of the millages levied against its 
Taxable Value.   
 
The Act provides that local taxing authorities may ‘opt out’ of the exemption process by failure to 
pass a resolution approving the exemption at a public hearing, within sixty (60) days of receipt of 
the MNEA certifying resolution.  (Local taxing authorities include: Transportation Authority, 
County, Intermediate Schools, Community College, City {township, village}, and Local Schools). 
 
Compact Power, Energy Conversion Devices, Ovonic Battery Company, and United Solar Ovonic 
Corp. have received certification from MNEA as alternative energy companies.  They all have 
current Next Energy exemptions in Troy.  They have applied for further exemptions of Personal 
Property totaling $1,205,747 in Market Value.   
 
Compact Power is located at 1857 Technology Drive.  The various Ovonic companies have three 
(3) exemptions requested at 1100 W. Maple, and one (1) at 1414 Combermere. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



Michigan Next Energy Exemptions 02/26/07 Public Hearing Page 2 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 As shown on the attached chart, the City of Troy’s total exempted taxes for the full seven (7) years 

is estimated at $11,954.53.  Additionally the City would forfeit $1,064.43 of administrative fees.  
The total exposure to the City is then estimated at $13,018.96 for seven (7) years, or an average 
of $1,859.85 per year. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations in this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This item is in keeping with City Council Goal #2 “Retain and attract investment while encouraging 

redevelopment.” 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council may continue to participate in the MNEA program by passing the suggested 

resolution, or City Council may ‘opt out’ of this exemption process by its failure to pass the 
resolution. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\Next Energy\2007\CouncilPak02.26.07 



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Estimated NextEnergy Exempted Tax Calculation

Taxing Authority Mills

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2007

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2008

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2009

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2010

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2011

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2012

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2013

Total Taxing Authority

City of TROY 9.4300 2,291.45 2,062.30 1,856.07 1,670.46 1,503.42 1,353.07 1,217.76 11,954.53 City of TROY
Admin Fee Troy 0.3831 93.09 83.78 75.40 67.86 61.08 54.97 49.47 485.66 Admin Fee Troy

Admin Fee Warren 0.3703 110.94 99.84 89.86 80.87 72.79 65.51 58.96 578.77 Admin Fee Warren
Transportation 0.5900 143.37 129.03 116.13 104.51 94.06 84.66 76.19 747.95 Transportation

Oakland County 4.6461 1,128.98 1,016.08 914.47 823.02 740.72 666.65 599.98 5,889.92 Oakland County
Oakland Intermediate 3.3690 818.65 736.79 663.11 596.79 537.12 483.40 435.06 4,270.93 Oakland Intermediate
Macomb Intermediate 2.9430 715.14 793.52 714.17 642.75 578.48 520.63 468.57 4,433.27 Macomb Intermediate
Community College 1.5844 385.00 346.50 311.85 280.67 252.60 227.34 204.60 2,008.56 Community College

Troy School Debt 4.1300 1,003.57 903.21 812.89 731.60 658.44 592.60 533.34 5,235.65 Troy School Debt
Warren Debt 3.2764 981.58 883.42 795.08 715.57 644.01 579.61 521.65 5,120.92 Warren Debt

School Operating 18.0000 4,373.93 3,936.53 3,542.87 3,188.57 2,869.72 2,582.75 2,324.47 22,818.83 School Operating
State Education Tax 6.0000 1,457.98 1,312.18 1,180.96 1,062.86 956.57 860.92 774.82 7,606.28 State Education Tax

Totals by Year 13,503.68 12,303.19 11,072.86 9,965.55 8,969.01 8,072.11 7,264.88 71,151.28 Grand Total

Est'd Taxable Value TROY SD 242,996 218,696 196,826 177,143 159,429 143,486 129,137
Est'd Taxable Value Warren SD 299,590 269,631 242,668 218,401 196,561 176,905 159,215

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Market Value Exempted
539,992 Troy
665,755 Warren

01/10/07









































You may express your comments regarding this matter by e-mail to XXXXXXXX, by 
writing to this office, or by attending the Public Hearing. 
 

      
 ____________________________________ 

       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk  
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of 
the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City Hall, 

500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, February 26, 2007, at 7:30 p.m., or as 

soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider Alternative Energy Personal Property 

Exemptions approved by the Michigan NextEnergy Authority for the following five location 

in the City of Troy: 

 
T2N, R11E, Section 28 
1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan United Solar Ovonic Corp. 
 
T2N, R11E, Section 34 
1414 Combermere, Troy, Michigan Ovonic Battery Company 

T2N, R11E Section 28  

1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan  Energy Conversion Devices 

T2N, R11E, Section 28  

1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan  United Solar Ovonic Corp. 

T2N, R11E, Section 35 

1857 Technology, Troy, Michigan Compact Power, Inc. 

 

This hearing is held in compliance with Act 198, Public Acts of 1974, as amended. 



OVONIC MEDIA LLC DAVID HIEBER      
2956 WATERVIEW DR OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
ROCHESTER HILLS MI 48309 250 ELIZABETH LAKE #1000W 
 PONTIAC MI 48231 

 

 

UNITED SOLAR OVONIC CORP PATRICK DOHANY 
1100 W MAPLE  OAKLAND CO PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
TROY MI 48084-5352 1200 N TELEGRAPH 49W 

 PONTIAC MI 48231-0049 
 

 

OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2100 PONTIAC LAKE RD GEORGE A BEE ADMIN CNTR 
WATERFORD MI 48328-2735 2480 OPDYKE 
 BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266 

 

MICHAEL ADAMCZYK WARREN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 31300 ANITA 
4400 LIVERNOIS WARREN  MI  48093-1697 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

 
 

 COMPACT POWER INC MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS   
  1857 TECHNOLOGY DRIVE            44001 GARFIELD 
  TROY MI  48083             CLINTON TWP, MI 48038-1100  
 
 
(Avery 5160 Labels) 



 

 
 
February 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Announcement of Public Hearing – Michigan Next Energy Exemptions 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Next Energy Authority (MNEA) has certified five (5) companies as Alternative 

Energy Technology Businesses.  MNEA has approved Personal Property Exemptions for these 
companies, subject to verification of the Personal Property by the local Assessor, and subject to 
City Council approval 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations in setting the Public Hearing. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 A Public Hearing must occur within sixty (60) days of receipt of the MNEA resolution(s) (receipt on 

01/09/07). 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations in setting the Public Hearing 

 
Options: 
 
 The Public Hearing must be set within sixty (60) days of receipt of the MNEA resolution(s). 

 
 
NL/nl H:\NextEnergy\2007\MemoSetPH02.05.07 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 1

 
 
DATE: February 16, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Street Vacation Application (File Number SV 188) – A section of alley 

located North of Big Beaver between Louis and Troy, Section 22 
 
 
Background: 

 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on January 9, 2007, and 

recommended approval of the proposed street vacation.   
 

• The subject alley is 18 feet wide and 244 feet in length. 
 
• The applicant owns the two parcels that abut the alley to the north and has applied to rezone 

the parcels to O-1 Low Rise Office (file number Z 724).  The applicant intends to acquire the 
City-owned remnant parcel located on the northeast corner of Louis and Big Beaver, and 
assemble these parcels into one larger parcel to create a developable site for an office 
development.  The remnant parcel sale can be completed following vacation of the alley. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to approve the street vacation request. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 
• The street vacation would not eliminate public street frontage for any buildings along Louis or 

Troy.   
 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet 
changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council may approve or deny the street vacation request.  
 
• City Management and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed street 

vacation, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Retention of all public and private utility easements. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Planning Commission Minutes from the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 188 Alley btwn Louis and Troy Sec 22\CC Public Hearing 02 26 07.doc 
 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



TR
O

Y

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

HARTLAND

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

W BIG BEAVER

LO
U

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

E BIG BEAVER

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 18 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (SV-188)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

ALLEY TO BE VACATED



TR
O

Y

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

HARTLAND

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

W BIG BEAVER

LO
U

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

E BIG BEAVER

(C-F)

(R-1E)

(O-M)(OSC)

(O-1)

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 18 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (SV-188)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

ALLEY TO BE VACATED



LO
U

IS

TR
O

Y

E BIG BEAVER

3041
 

88-20-22-357-012

0
 

88-20-22-357-006

0
 

88-20-22-357-031

3150
 

88-20-22-355-025

0
 

88-20-22-356-031

0
 

88-20-22-356-014

3040
 

88-20-22-356-008

0
 

88-20-22-356-011

3080
 

88-20-22-356-020

3096
 

88-20-22-356-019

3091
 

88-20-22-356-028

3074
 

88-20-22-357-025

3117
 
88-20-22-357-017

3054
 

88-20-22-356-022

3049
 

88-20-22-356-030

3068
 

88-20-22-356-021

3061
 

88-20-22-356-029 0
 

88-20-22-357-026
3059

 
88-20-22-357-011

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 18 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (SV-188)

0 100 20050
Feet ³

ALLEY TO BE VACATED





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 9, 2007 
 

STREET VACATION 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 188) – Alley, north of 
Big Beaver between Louis and Troy Street, approximately 244 feet abutting Lots 14 
through 25 and 115 and 116 of Eyster’s Beaver Gardens Subdivision, Section 22 – 
Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E (One Family Residential) Districts (the 
abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed street vacation, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the street vacation request as submitted.  Mr. Savidant 
noted the relationship of this request to the previous proposed rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, William Stefani of 21000 Twelve Mile Road, St. Clair Shores, said 
a purchase agreement for the City’s remnant parcel was faxed to the Right of 
Way department.  It is his understanding the street vacation would not be done 
until the rezoning request was approved.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jvalit Baxi of 3049 Troy Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Baxi voiced the same 
concerns as expressed for the related proposed rezoning request [Z 724]. 
 
Bob Casadei of 2595 Ginger Court, Bloomfield Hills, was present.  Mr. Casadei 
reiterated his concerns that the vacation request might not be appropriate until the 
petitioner proves that he can successfully consolidate all the property. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-009 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for an alley located north 
of Big Beaver between Louis and Troy Streets, approximately 244 feet abutting 
Lots 14 through 25 and 115 and 116 of Eyster's Beaver Gardens Subdivision, 
Section 22, be approved.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 



 1

 
 
DATE: February 16, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Proposed Spa Renaissance, North side of Big Beaver, between Troy 

and Louis, Section 22 – R-1E to O-1 (Z-724) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 
at the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Big Beaver frontage in this area as Mid Rise Office.  

The Mid Rise Office classification has a primary correlation with the O-M zoning district.  The 
application therefore is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan because the 
proposed intensity of O-1 is less than the Mid Rise Office classification.  The parcel has been 
planned as Mid Rise Office since 1972. 

 
• The applicant intends to acquire the City-owned remnant parcel located on the northeast 

corner of Louis and Big Beaver, and assemble these parcels into one larger parcel to create a 
developable site for an office development.   

 
• The applicant has submitted an application to vacate the alley which abuts the subject property 

to the south.  The remnant parcel sale can be completed following vacation of the alley. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 

• The item is consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging 
redevelopment). 

 
• The application complies with Section 24.40.13, which states that the O-1 District may be 

applied when the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the Future 
Land Use Plan. 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the rezoning application. 
 

• City Council can deny the rezoning application. 
 

• City Management recommends approval of the rezoning application.   
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Statement from applicant. 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting. 
4. Letters of opposition (2). 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 724 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-724 Spa Renaissance Sec 22\CC Public Hearing 02 26 07.doc 
 
 
 





R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



TR
O

Y

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

HARTLAND

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

W BIG BEAVER

LO
U

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

E BIG BEAVER

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
FROM R-1E TO O-1
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (Z-724)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



TR
O

Y

FR
A

N
K

TO
N

HARTLAND

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

W BIG BEAVER

LO
U

IS

H
E

LE
N

A

E BIG BEAVER

(C-F)

(R-1E)

(O-M)(OSC)

(O-1)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED SPA RENAISSANCE
FROM R-1E TO O-1
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN TROY & LOUIS
SEC. 22  (Z-724)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 9, 2007 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 724) – Proposed Medical Office 
Building, North side of Big Beaver between Louis and Troy, Section 22 – From R-
1E (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
The petitioners, William Stefani and Jeffrey Williams of 21000 Twelve Mile Road, 
St. Clair Shores, were present.  Mr. Stefani said the medical use is a plastic 
surgery office offering laser and skin treatments.  He indicated their Sterling 
Heights and St. Clair Shores offices would move to the new location.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jvalit Baxi of 3049 Troy Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Baxi spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning.  He addressed the potential increase in traffic, safety of 
children, impact on home values and future potential users of the subject parcel.   
 
Deepak Sardey of 3068 Louis Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Sardey spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He addressed the potential increase in traffic, 
cut-through traffic, and impact on home values.   
 
Bob Casadei of 2595 Ginger Court, Bloomfield Hills, was present.  Mr. Casadei is a 
member and part owner of Four Oaks Management, owner of the parcel to the 
southeast that abuts the subject parcel.  He indicated the property was acquired 
with the intent to develop office or commercial, and that he and the petitioner met to 
discuss the sale/purchase of their parcel.  Mr. Casadei said he was confused with 
the petitioner’s representation on the acquisition of their parcel and the City-owned 
parcel as relates to the proposed development.  Mr. Casadei said rezoning the 
proposed development would negatively impact the value of their property.  He also 
addressed the relationship of the proposed development to the long-term vision of 
the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study.   
 
There was discussion on the sale/purchase of the City-owned parcel.   
 
Mr. Stefani said they are in a position to purchase both abutting parcels because it 
would enhance the development of their medical building.  He indicated his 
willingness to resolve the concerns addressed by the Casadei family.  Mr. Stefani 
also addressed the concerns of the residents with respect to traffic and property 
values.   
 
Mr. Littman informed the petitioner that it would be to his benefit to meet with the 
neighbors so their concerns could be addressed at the time of site plan approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 9, 2007 
 

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Strat provided an explanation of the Planning Commission and City Council 
roles and the City procedure followed for proposed rezoning requests.   
 
There was discussion on development of the individual parcels should they not 
be consolidated, and the City process for the sale of remnant parcels.   
 
Mr. Miller encouraged residents to contact the Planning Department for 
information on site plan approval of the proposed development, should the 
rezoning request be approved.   
 
Ms. Lancaster reminded the members that the only consideration before them 
tonight is the petitioner’s request to rezone the subject parcel, and that property 
ownership, developable parcels, and purchase negotiations have no bearing on 
the rezoning request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-008 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to O-1 rezoning request, located on the north side of Big 
Beaver, between Louis and Troy, within Section 22, being approximately 0.6 
acres in size, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
2. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck would like to see the parcels consolidated for development.  He is not 
against the request to rezone.   

 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
February 20, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – Food Service Provider – 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.   
 
Background 
 
 On January 9, 2007, request for proposals were received to provide food services at Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Course.  
 Fifty-five vendors were notified via the MITN e-procurement website; two (2) companies 

responded.   
 At the February 5, 2007, City Council meeting, additional information was requested regarding this 

item.   
Requested information included:  
 
1. The feasibility of the liquor license transfer to a new vendor in time for the 2007 golf 
season. 
 

• If Council decides to award a contract to Kosch, then it is possible for the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission to issue a new municipal golf course liquor license for 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  This new license would not be effective until May 1, 2007, 
and the issuance is contingent upon timely submission of all required paperwork, as well 
as the surrender of the current license and/or non-renewal of the current liquor license.   

• The current contract with Emerald does not expire until April 30, 2007.  This is the 
earliest date that the City could demand the surrender of the current liquor license.  The 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission will not begin the transfer process until the 
surrender of the liquor license, and the transfer process generally takes approximately 
90 days.   

• The current bid proposal requires the food service to commence on May 1, 2007, or as 
soon as possible after this date.  

 
 
2. In the weighted scores of vendors, additional points were given to one vendor and 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



Page 2 of 2 

a reduction of points to another vendor.  More information was requested on the 
reasons for these scores. 

 
• Rater #1 gave additional points to Emerald Food Service for having the liquor license to 

operate.  Rater #1 reduced points for two liquor violations.   
• Please note that if these points are completely eliminated from the scoring, the total 

scores are:   
Emerald Food 69 
Kosch   63 

 
3. The point at which Kosch’s proposal has a better return to the City. 
 

• The point at which Kosch’s proposal has a better return to the City is when revenue 
generated exceeds $227,000 annually.       

• The gross revenues from Emerald Food Service for 2005 and 2006 are $156,509 and 
an estimated $169,000 respectively. 

   
Financial Considerations 
 
 Based upon the financial return to the City of Troy from each provider and factoring annual rent, 

Emerald Food Service LLC proposal was the most beneficial to the City of Troy’s Golf Operation.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 RFP-COT 06-61 was competitively bid and both vendors were given the opportunity to respond 

with their level of interest in providing a food service for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.   
 The award recommendation is based upon the company offering the best combination of a variety 

of factors, and not simply the lowest bidder meeting certain minimal requirements.  A best value 
approach addresses ability, experience and quality issues leading to a successful contract and 
reduction in risk of poor service.   

 The awarding of this bid is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper 
contract and proposal documents, insurance certificates, payment schedule, and other specified 
requirements.   

 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Awarding the contract to the vendor whose food service provides the best product and the most 

return for the City of Troy’s Golf operations (Goal II).   
 
Options 
 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation Department recommends awarding the two-year 

contract, with an option to renew for two additional years, for the food service at Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course to Emerald Food Service LLC of Troy, MI, the highest rated and highest return bidder 
as a result of a best value process with a final weighted score of 69.3.   

 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 



RFP-COT 06-61
FOOD SERVICE PROVIDER

SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE

Value of X : (000) $ 200 225 227 250 300 350 400

Kosch Return Formula - 
$1250 + (X-150,000).075 5,000$       6,875$       7,025$       8,750$       12,500$       16,250$       20,000$      

Emerald Food Service Formula - 
$6000 + $500+ (X-$200,000).02 6,500$       7,000$       7,040$       7,500$       8,500$         9,500$         10,500$      

Food Service Provider - SLGC -

$-

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

200 225 227 250 300 350 400

Gross Revenue (000)

R
at

e 
of

 R
et

ur
n

Kosch
Emerald



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
                       Sanctuary Lake Golf Course – Food Service 

 
STATISTICS: 

 
 Fifty-Five Companies were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Two (2) proposals were received 

 
 Both proposals qualified by passing the minimum requirements 

 
 Phase III (Food Tasting and Interviews) was deleted since staff is familiar with both 

companies’ product.   
 
 Emerald Food Service LLC obtained the highest rating and is, therefore, the recommended 

vendor to perform the food service for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
 
 

The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
 
Company SCORE 
Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining 62.8 
Emerald Food Service LLC 69.3 
 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring  
 
 Evaluation Process 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  

  Sanctuary Lake – Food Service Provider 
Final Score Calculation: 

   
  40% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)    = 
  35% x Menu Score (100 pt. Base)    =  
  15% x Sample Food / Interview Score (100 pt. Base) = Deleted Phase 
  10% x Other (100 pt. Base)     = 
           100%                                 Final Weighted Score  

 
In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100. 

 
Menu Score: 35% 

Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
Emerald Food Service LLC 90 83 80 84 
Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining 85 95 92 91 
 
Price Score:  40% 
Vendors: 

 
Weighted Criteria – Difference in Return 
1-(High Price – Proposal Price) / high price] x available points  

Emerald Food Service LLC (1-(6500–6500)/6500 ) x 100    =                                    100                          

Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining (1-(6500–5000)/6500 ) x 100    =                                      77                         

 
Other Score:  10% 

Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
Emerald Food Service LLC 10 0 0 +3 
Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining - 5 0 0 -2 
 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS:    Emerald Food Service LLC Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining 
Score   
Menu Score:  (x .35) =   84 x .35 =    29  91 x .35 =    32 
   
Price Socre:   (x .40) =  100  x .40 = 40 77 x .40 =    31  
   
 Other Score: (x .10) =   3 x .10 =  + .30  - 2 x .10 =  (.20) 
   
Final Score: 69.3 62.8 

** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
G:/ Award 06 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP –SLGC Food Service - WeightedRatingSummary 01.07.doc 



 
  

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 

A City Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to award this proposal to 
the company considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors including but not limited 
to the following: 

 
A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength  
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Qualifications Evaluation. 
 

Bidders will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of the 
process.  (Evaluation Sheet Proposal) 

 
Phase 2:  Menu Evaluation Process. 
 

o The City Committee will use a weighted scoring sheet to evaluate the 
required submitted menus. 

o Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.   
o The scores of the three Committee Members will be averaged into one score 

for each bidder for this phase of the process. 
 

Phase 3:  Food Tasting And Interview Evaluation Process. 
 

o The City Committee will use a weighted scoring sheet to evaluate the food 
samples and/or interviews. 

o Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.   
o The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for 

each bidder for this phase of the process. 
 

Phase 4:  Price   
  

 Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
 FORMULA – 
 
 [1-(High Price – Proposal Price) / high price] x available points  
 
 

    Page 1 of 2 



 
Criteria for Selection 
Food Service Provider 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Phase 5:  Other    
  
 Proposals may be assessed “Other” points for items not specified, but for which the Evaluation 

Committee deems as outstanding. 
 

 
Phase 6:  Final Scoring and Selection 

 
 The highest final weighted scored will be the food service operator recommended to the Troy 
City Council for Award. 

 
  40% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)  = 
  35% x Menu Score (100 pt. Base)  =  
  15% x Sample Food / Interview Score (100 pt. Base) =  
  10% x Other (100 pt. Base)   = 
           100%                                 Final Weighted Score  

 
 

Note:   The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 

 





 
 
February 14, 2007 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 
 
 
Background: 
 
• At the February 5, City Council meeting, Council postponed this item so staff could research the 

following:  
1) Feasibility of the Civic Center being designated a park. 
2) The potential addition of the Long Lake parcels as parkland.   

 
• The document has been revised as follows: 

1) Non-Park Municipal Recreation Facilities (page 20) is now titled “Municipal Recreation 
Facilities.” 

2) Troy Civic Center (page 21) the phrase, “although this is not considered a City Park,” has 
been eliminated.   

3) As a requirement of the Michigan Department of Natural Resources, an inventory of City of 
Troy parks that have been funded by MDNR grants has been added in the appendix. 

4) The addition of a page (14) identifying open space on the Civic Center site.  The entire 
Civic Center does not function as a park or open space and to identify it as such indicates it 
is under the authority of the park ordinance which is not recommended. 

5) The City owned parcels on the north side of Long Lake east of Crooks have been identified 
as park land on the proposed new city parks (page 19) and the location map (page 13) L. 
site 12, Section 9.   

 
• A Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan identifies recreational need and determines long-range 

parks and recreation goals.   
 
• When the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) approves a community’s Plan, the 

community becomes eligible to participate in State Parks and Recreation Grant Programs for 
improvements included in the Plan.  There is no obligation to apply for grant funding. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-02



• The Planning Department and Parks and Recreation Department combined in a joint effort to 
develop the City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan.  The Plan meets the MDNR’s 
Guidelines for the Development of Community Park, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenway 
Plans.  

 
• Public input was solicited in a number of ways: (1) Parks and Recreation Survey; (2) Park Master 

Plan meetings; (3) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board public meetings; and (4) Public 
notification of opportunities for public input were published in local newspapers. 

 
• The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommended approval of the document on November 

16, 2006. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• This is a policy document.  There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to approve the Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• Approval of the Plan would be consistent with the following City Council Goals and Objectives:  

I) Enhance the livability and safety of the community; and V) Maintain relevance of public 
infrastructure to meet changing public needs.  

 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council can approve the document as submitted, approve the document with changes or 

choose not to take any action. 
 
• City Management recommends approval of the City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan.  
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Parks and Recreation Plan 
 
G:\Parks and Recreation Plan\CC Master Plan Approval 02 26 07.doc 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 FIVE YEAR 
 PARKS 
 & 
 RECREATION 
 PLAN 
 
 2007-2012 
 
 “Creating Community  
 through 
 People, Parks and Programs!” 



"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" i  

CITY OF TROY FIVE YEAR PARKS AND RECREATION PLAN 
2007-2012 

 
Prepared by the City of Troy Parks and Recreation Department and City of Troy Planning Department with assistance from 

the following: 
 

Mayor and City Council 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem 
Robin E. Beltramini 

Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

Merrill Dixon 
Rusty Kaltsounis 

Tom Krent 
Jeff Stewart 
Gary Hauff 

Meaghan Kovacs 
Janice Zikakis 
Kathleen Fejes 

Tod Gazetti 
Stuart Redpath 

 
City Managers Office 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance 
Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic 

Development Services 
 
 

Parks and Recreation Department 
Carol Anderson, Director 

Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
Stuart Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation  

 
 

Planning Department 
Mark F. Miller, AICP/PCP, Planning Director 

R. Brent Savidant, AICP/PCP, Principal Planner 
Paula Preston Bratto, RLA, Planner 

Ronald Figlan, Planner 
Kathy Czarnecki, Secretary 

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" ii  

CITY OF TROY 
FIVE YEAR PARKS AND RECREATION PLAN 

2007-2012 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
1. INTRODUCTION..........................................................................................................................................................................1 

 
2. COMMUNITY DESCRIPTION......................................................................................................................................................2 

PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS.................................................................................................................................................2 
SOCIOECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS ...................................................................................................................................6 

 
3. ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE................................................................................................................................................9 

CITY OF TROY ADMINISTRATION ............................................................................................................................................9 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION........................................................................................................................10 
PARKS AND RECREATION BUDGET ......................................................................................................................................10 

 
4. PARKS AND RECREATION INVENTORY ...............................................................................................................................11 

PARKS CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM.........................................................................................................................................11 
CITY OF TROY PARKS.............................................................................................................................................................15 
PROPOSED NEW CITY PARKS ...............................................................................................................................................18 
NON-PARK RECREATION FACILITIES....................................................................................................................................20 
SCHOOL FACILITIES................................................................................................................................................................23 
NON-PUBLIC RECREATIONAL FACILITIES ............................................................................................................................27 

 
5. HANDICAP ACCESSIBILITY ....................................................................................................................................................29 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" iii  

6. REGIONAL RECREATION OPPORTUNITIES .........................................................................................................................36 
STATE OF MICHIGAN PARKS..................................................................................................................................................36 
MACOMB AND OAKLAND COUNTY PARKS ...........................................................................................................................37 
METROPARKS ..........................................................................................................................................................................37 
REGIONAL TRAIL SYSTEMS ...................................................................................................................................................38 

 
7. DESCRIPTION OF THE PUBLIC INPUT PROCESS................................................................................................................41 

CITY OF TROY PARKS AND RECREATION SURVEY – 2005 ................................................................................................41 
MASTER PLANNING MEETINGS FOR 5 NEW PARKS ...........................................................................................................43 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE PUBLIC HEARING.............................................................................44 
OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ...............................................................................................................................44 

 
8. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES......................................................................................................................................................45 
 
9. ACTION PLAN...........................................................................................................................................................................48 
 
10. APPENDIX.................................................................................................................................................................................54 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" iv  

LIST OF TABLES 
 
Table  1: Land Use Type, 2004 .............................................................................................................................................................3 
Table  2: Population Growth, 1900-2000...............................................................................................................................................6 
Table  3: Population and Households ...................................................................................................................................................7 
Table  4: Population by Age ..................................................................................................................................................................7 
Table  5: Employment by Industry, 1990 and 2000...............................................................................................................................8 
Table  6: Disability Status of the Civilian Non-institutionalized Population, 2000..................................................................................8 
Table  7: 2006-07 Parks and Recreation Budget ................................................................................................................................10 
Table  8: Summary of Municipal Recreation Resources .....................................................................................................................12 
Table  9: Private Recreational Facilities ..............................................................................................................................................27 
Table 10 State of Michigan Parks in Oakland and Macomb County ...................................................................................................36 
Table 11 Macomb County Parks .........................................................................................................................................................36 
Table 12 Oakland County Parks .........................................................................................................................................................36 
Table 13 Metroparks in Macomb and Oakland County .......................................................................................................................38 
Table 14 Regional Trail Systems ........................................................................................................................................................39 
 
 
LIST OF MAPS 
 
Map 1: City of Troy, MI .......................................................................................................................................................................2 
Map 2: Parks and Recreation Facility Location Map........................................................................................................................13 
Map 3: Civic Center Park and Open Space .....................................................................................................................................14 
Map 4: Civic Center Priority Task Force Conceptual Plan ...............................................................................................................22 
Map 5: Regional Trail Systems ........................................................................................................................................................40 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 1  

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
A Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan is a valuable tool for 
many reasons.  A Plan provides participating communities with 
an opportunity to identify recreational need and determine its 
long-range parks and recreation goals.  When a community's 
Plan is approved by the Michigan Department of Natural 
Resources (MDNR), the community becomes eligible to 
participate in State Parks and Recreation Grant Programs.  
The most popular of these programs is the Michigan Natural 
Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF), which provides up to 75% of 
the development costs of a recreation facility and up to 50% of 
the costs of acquiring park property.  A minimum of $15,000 
and a maximum of $500,000 per project is available per 
development project.  Applications for the grants are due April 
1st and September 1st of each year.  While State Recreation 
Grant Programs are extremely competitive, they do provide an 
opportunity for communities with limited funds available to 
improve their parks systems. 
 
 

 

 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 2  

2. COMMUNITY DESCRIPTION 
 
The Michigan Department of Natural Resources requires that 
a community’s Park and Recreation Plan includes 
demographic information and physical characteristics that are 
significant to recreation.  The following Community Description 
is a compilation of this required information. 
 
 
PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS 
 
Location 
 
The City of Troy is located on the I-75 corridor in southern 
Oakland County, between Detroit and Pontiac.  The City was 
incorporated in 1955 and includes most of the original Troy 
Township.  The City consists of 31 full sections and four partial 
sections for a total area of 34.3 square miles.  The City is 
bounded by Sterling Heights to the east, Rochester Hills to the 
north, Bloomfield Township and Birmingham to the west, and 
Royal Oak, Clawson and Madison Heights to the south. 

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 3  

Land Use Patterns 
 
Table 1 shows the break down of land uses in Troy in 2000.  
More than one-half of Troy’s land area is comprised of single-
family residential land use.  Parks and schools are generally 
located in close proximity to single-family residential areas. 
The Cultural, Outdoor Recreation and Cemetery classification 
comprises approximately 3.3% of Troy’s land area.   
 
Because of its access to I-75, Troy is one of the premier office 
markets in the State of Michigan, with approximately 18.3 
million square feet of office space in 2003.  Office uses are 
concentrated in the City Center/Big Beaver Corridor area in 
the southern half of the City and in the Northfield Hills 
Corporate Center area in the northwest quarter of the City.  
Troy also has a significant industrial base, with 19.8 million 
square feet of industrial space in 2003.  Most of this space is 
located in the southern quarter of the City.  There was 7.7 
million square feet of retail space in Troy in 2003.  Retail uses 
tend to be located near busy intersections and along mile 
roads.  Significant shopping centers include Somerset 
Collection, Oakland Mall, and Midtown Square. 
 
According to recent data, Troy is approximately 94% “built 
out”.  There are only a limited number of larger vacant parcels 
in the City with significant development potential.  
Consequently, future development in the City will tend to take 
place on smaller undeveloped parcels, on parcels with 
development challenges such as wetlands or floodplains, or 
will involve the assemblage and redevelopment of parcels that 
are presently developed.  The City of Troy will be faced with 
this challenge when considering the acquisition of future 
parkland.  

 

TABLE 1: LAND USE TYPE, 2004 
Troy, MI 

Land Use Type Acres % of Total 
Area 

Single-Family Residential 11,786 54.8 
Multiple-Family Residential 675 3.1 
Commercial and Office 2,434 11.3 
Institutional 925 4.3 
Industrial 1,788 8.3 
Transportation, Communication and 
Utility 

627 29.1 

Cultural, Outdoor Recreation and 
Cemetery 

718 3.3 

Active Agriculture 147 0.7 
Grassland and Shrub 1,312 6.1 
Woodland and Wetland 736 34.1 
Extractive and Barren 85 0.4 
Water 174 0.8 
Under Development 110 0.5 
Total Acres 21,517  100% 
Source: SEMCOG, April, 2004. 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 4  

Transportation 
 
Troy’s street system is characterized by a grid pattern of 
heavily traveled mile roads.   Interstate 75 is the state’s busiest 
freeway and runs in roughly a north-south direction through 
Troy.  There are four freeway interchanges in Troy: Crooks 
Road, Big Beaver Road, Rochester Road and 14 Mile Road.  
M-59 runs in an east-west direction north of the City.  This 
system of roads and freeways provides reasonably good 
access by automobile to recreation facilities in the City as well 
as regional facilities in other communities.  However, access to 
recreational facilities can be difficult for certain segments of 
the population, primarily children and the elderly, who do not 
have the use of an automobile. 
 
The City’s Development Standards require that 8-foot wide 
safety paths must be constructed as part of development 
projects along the major thoroughfare roads.  This policy has 
resulted in a safety path system that provides for safe and 
convenient pedestrian movement along most mile roads.  
Many of the completed mile road systems are signed bike 
routes.  There are signed bike routes that take guide cyclists 
through residential neighborhoods in both north-south and 
east-west directions.   Many residential neighborhoods have 5-
foot wide sidewalk systems that allow for safe and convenient 
pedestrian mobility. 
 
The Suburban Mobility Authority for Regional Transportation 
(SMART) provides mass transit services within Metropolitan 
Detroit.  There is fixed-route large bus service available 
primarily in the southerly part of Troy, which takes riders to a 
number of destinations including Somerset Collection, Troy 
City Hall and offices along Big Beaver Road.  The fixed-route 
system also provides access to other communities within the 
region.  Because the fixed-route service is concentrated in the 

south part of the City, it provides access to only a limited 
number of recreational facilities.  SMART also provides other 
types of Connector Services including Job Express, Dial-A-
Ride and Door-to-Door Advanced Registration.  These 
services are available to all residents but are used primarily by 
senior citizens and the handicapped.  These services are only 
available during the daytime on weekdays.   
 
Troy Medi-Go Plus is a non-profit community organization that 
transports older and physically challenged Troy residents to a 
variety of destinations.  This is an advanced reservation 
service. 
 
The Canadian National / Grand Trunk Western Railroad runs 
through sections 30 and 31, connecting Troy with Detroit and 
Lansing and points further.  The train station in Birmingham, 
abutting section 31 to the west, provides a convenient 
commuter connection to the City of Detroit.    
 
The Oakland/Troy Airport in section 32 provides private, 
corporate, freight and charter services.   
 
Topography 
 
The southwest corner of Oakland County, including Troy, is in 
a nearly level glacial lake plain.  The topography consists of 
nearly flat to gently rolling land, with sandy loam to silt loam 
soils that are generally poorly drained.  These characteristics 
describe the majority of the City, particularly the easterly and 
southerly portions of the City.  The land in this part of the City 
slopes from the northwest to the southeast, with elevations 
ranging from 780 to 630.  Elevations within any one section 
vary by only 20 to 30 feet, which reflects the flatness of the 
terrain. 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 5  

The topography in the northwest corner is unlike the rest of the 
City.  This area is within the Rouge River drainage basin and 
contains hills and ridges and sandy loam soils.  A branch of 
the Upper Rouge River cuts diagonally across the northwest 
corner, draining the City in a northeast to southwest direction.  
Slopes vary from about 850 in the northern part of this area to 
approximately 760 where the Rouge River flows into 
Bloomfield Township.  
 
Soils  
 
Part of the initial planning process of potential recreational 
areas should include consideration and evaluation of existing 
soil types.  This should be a contributing factor in determining 
the recreational use of the area. 
 
The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Soil 
Conservation Service prepared the Soil Survey of Oakland 
County, Michigan in March, 1982.  Soils in Troy are comprised 
of four broad soils associations.  The soils associations have 
less significance than in the past because of the amount of 
development that has occurred and the installation of storm 
sewers throughout most of the City.  Soil conditions are of 
concern on large parcels that might be considered for park 
development.  The Soil Survey indicates that wetness, slope 
and slow permeability are the main limitations to the use of 
these soils in Troy (USDA Soil Conservation Service, 1982).  
 
Vegetation 
 
The pre-settlement forest in the region consisted of beech and 
sugar maple forests on wet loamy soils, and oak and hickory 
forests on dry, sandy soils.  Hardwood and hardwood-
tamarack swamps occupied the low-lying and poorly drained 
areas.  Most naturally occurring vegetation has been cleared.  

Many species of trees have been introduced to the City, 
including elm, black cherry and aspen.  There are some 
significant wooded areas scattered throughout the area, 
usually located within City parks, private parks or on school 
sites. 
 
Water Resources 
 
The most significant water feature in Troy is the Rouge River, 
which flows southerly through the northwestern portion of the 
City.  Several creeks and drains provide drainage to other 
areas within Troy.  There are some small lakes and ponds 
scattered throughout the City.  A concentration of seven lakes 
in section 2 is surrounded by single-family development.   One 
of the largest lakes in Troy, Sylvan Glen Lake, serves as a 
water feature for Sylvan Glen Lake Park and Sylvan Glen Golf 
Course. 
 
Climate 
 
The Soil Survey of Oakland County contains climate data for 
Oakland County.  In winter the average temperature is 25.3 
degrees F, and the average daily minimum temperature is 
17.9 degrees F.  In summer the average temperature is 70.2 
degrees F and the average daily maximum temperature is 
81.7 degrees F. 
 
The average annual precipitation is 29.6 inches.  Of this, 17.2 
inches usually falls in April through September, which includes 
the growing season for most crops.  Average seasonal 
snowfall is 34.6 inches.  The prevailing wind is from the 
southwest (USDA Soil Conservation Service, March 1982).   
This data implies that recreational facilities and programming 
in Troy must be designed to consider the opportunities and 
limitations associated with the seasonal climate in Michigan. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 6  

Zoning 
 
“Publicly owned and operated parks and recreation facilities” 
are permitted by- right in the C-F Community Facilities District 
and every residential zoning district except RM-2 and RM-3 
Multiple-Family Residential.  Approximately 70% of all property 
in the City of Troy therefore has a zoning designation that 
permits public parks by right.  Zoning is not a limitation to 
public recreation in the City of Troy. 
 
SOCIOECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS 
 
Population Trends 
 
Table 2 shows population growth for Troy and the State of 
Michigan as a whole since the beginning of the twentieth 
century.  The table indicates that since 1910, Troy 
experienced a rate of growth that was significantly higher than 
the State of Michigan as a whole.  The population increase 
from the previous decade did not dip below 50% between 
1920 and 1980.  For the State of Michigan as a whole, the 
change did not exceed 50% for any decade since 1900. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TABLE 2: POPULATION GROWTH, 1900-2000 

Year Troy Twp / 
City of Troy
Population 

% Change 
From 
Previous 
Decade 

State of 
Michigan 
Population 

% Change 
From 
Previous 
Decade 

1900 1,527 - 2,420,982 - 
1910 1,507 -1.3% 2,810,173 16.1% 
1920 2,520 67.2% 3,668,412 30.5% 
1930 3,867 53.5% 4,842,325 32.0% 
1940 6,248 61.6% 5,256,106 8.5% 
1950 10,087 61.4% 6,371,766 21.2% 
1960 19,402 92.3% 7,823,194 22.8% 
1970 39,419 103.2% 8,881,826 13.5% 
1980 67,102 70.2% 9,262,044 4.3% 
1990 72,884 8.6% 9,295,287 0.4% 
2000 80,959 11.1% 9,938,444 6.5% 

*Note: Troy Township was incorporated as the City of Troy in 
1955. 
Source: SEMCOG, 2004. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 7  

Households 
 
Table 3 illustrates an interesting population phenomenon.  
Even though the number of housing units is projected to rise 
by 8.7% between 2000 and 2030, the overall population is 
projected to drop by 4.8% over the same period of time.  This 
is explained by a decreasing household size, a trend that has 
been occurring in the United States since the turn of the 
twentieth century.  These figures imply that “growth” measured 
in new housing starts does not necessarily translate into a 
growth in population.  Recreational facilities in Troy should be 
planned for a future population that is slightly less than the 
present population. 
 

TABLE 3: POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLDS 
Component 1990 

Census 
2000 
Census 

2030 
Forecast 

Household 
Population 

72,867 80,724 76,811 

Group Quarters 
Population 

17 235 235 

Total Population 72,884 80,959 77,046 
Households 26,167 30,018 32,621 
Household Size 2.78 2.69 2.35 
Source: SEMCOG, 2004. 
 
Population Age 
 
Table 4 shows the population breakdown by age for 1990 and 
2000 and includes projections for 2030.  The most significant 
change between 1990 and 2000 was the aging of the 
population.  In 1990, only 49% of the population was aged 35 
or older; by 2000, 55% of the population was aged 35 or older.  
The forecast for 2030 is 61% of the population aged 35 or 
older.  Note that 22% of the population, or more than one out 

of every five residents, is projected to be at least 65 years of 
age in 2030.  These figures show that recreation facilities and 
programming in the future should address the recreational 
needs of an older population base.  Additionally, the number of 
children aged 0-17 years decreases only slightly in the future.  
 

TABLE 4: POPULATION BY AGE 
Troy, MI 

Age 
Groups 

1990 
Census 

2000 
Census 

2030 
Forecast 

Age 0-4 4,908 (7%) 4,991 (6%) 4,422 (6%) 
Age 5-17 14,451 (20%) 16,227 (20%) 13,514 (18%) 
Age 18-34 17,388 (24%) 15,225 (19%) 12,639 (16%) 
Age 35-64 30,003 (41%) 36,230 (45%) 29,868 (39%) 
Age 65+ 6,134 (8%) 8,286 (10%) 16,603 (22%) 

Total 
Population 

72,884 80,959 77,046 

Source: SEMCOG, 2004. 
 
Employment  
 
Table 5 shows employment by industry for Troy residents in 
1990 and 2000.  A significant proportion of residents are 
employed in traditionally high paying industries such as 
finance and manufacturing.  The medium household income in 
Troy in 2000 (measured in 1999 dollars) was $77,538.  The 
figure for Oakland County as a whole was $61,907, and for the 
State of Michigan was only $44,667 (U.S. Census, 2000).   
Troy’s relatively high income implies that residents are less 
likely to be impacted by user fees than people with lower 
incomes, and are able to afford and utilize certain private 
recreation facilities.  In addition, proximity to recreational 
facilities is less of an issue for Troy residents since they are 
likely to have access to an automobile.  
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 8  

It is important to note that City records indicate that 
approximately 125,000 people work in Troy every day.  Troy is 
a destination City in that its daytime population exceeds its 
nighttime population.  Recreational opportunities are also 
sought by employees who work in Troy but to not live there.   
 
TABLE 5: EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY, 1990 AND 2000 

Employed persons 16 years and over 
Troy, MI 

INDUSTRY 1990 
# 

1990 
% 

2000 
# 

2000 
% 

Agriculture, forestry, 
fishing and hunting, 
and mining 

245 0.6 29 0.1 

Construction 1,778 4.5 1,211 2.9 
Manufacturing 9,359 23.8 9,883 23.5 
Wholesale trade 2,183 5.6 1,713 4.1 
Retail trade 5,801 14.8 4,948 11.8 
Transportation and 
warehousing, 
information and 
utilities 

1,401 3.5 2,171 5.2 

Finance, insurance, 
real estate, and 
rental and leasing 

3,105 7.9 3,001 7.1 

Services 14,559 37.1 18,173 43.2 
Public administration 861 2.2 903 2.1 
TOTAL 39,292 100% 42,032 100% 
Source: U.S. Census 1990, 2000. 

Accessibility 
 
Table 6 shows that approximately 35.2% of Troy residents 
aged 65 and older in 2000 had a disability.  A total of 9,155 
persons aged 5 years and older had a disability.  This 
represents approximately 12% of the population aged 5 and 
over in 2000. 
 
Accessibility to recreational facilities is not an issue for many 
elder Troy residents because of their income levels and health.  
However there are many residents that live in retirement 
homes for which accessibility is a major concern.  These 
facilities are Sunrise Assisted Living (section 4), Clare Bridge 
House and Wynwood House (section 17), Oak Manor 
Retirement Home (section 25), Bethany Villa (section 26) and 
American House and Oakland Towers I and II (section 36). 
 
Accessibility to recreational facilities and programming will 
continue to be a concern in the future as the proportion of 
older adults rises.  The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
has imposed standards on recreational facilities and public 
land and buildings.  It is important that future facilities be 
designed to meet these standards. 
 

TABLE 6: DISABILITY STATUS OF THE CIVILIAN  
NONINSTITUTIONALIZED POPULATION, 2000 

Troy, MI 
Population 5 to 20 years 18,363 100% 
With a disability 894 4.9% 
Population 21 to 64 years 49,393 100% 
With a disability 5,365 10.9% 
Population 65 years and over 8,235 100% 
With a disability 2,896 35.2% 
Source: U.S. Census, 2000. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 9  

3. ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 
 
Parks and recreation services in Troy are provided primarily by 
the City government and the Troy School District.  The City 
owns and maintains fourteen parks, five special use facilities, 
eleven undeveloped parcels, and operates a year-round 
recreation program.  The recreation program is administered 
by a full-time Parks and Recreation Department.  The Troy 
School District currently maintains nineteen sites on which 
recreation facilities are located.  The Director of Operations is 
responsible for developing and maintaining the school sites 
and other facilities.  The School District and City cooperate 
with each other on an informal basis to maximize the use of 
school and park sites.  In certain cases, formal agreements 
have been drafted to develop and use recreation facilities.  In 
some cases, the City has constructed ball fields and soccer 
fields on school sites; the fields are then maintained by the 
School District. 
 
CITY OF TROY ADMINISTRATION 
 
The City of Troy employs a council-manager form of 
government.  The City Manager supervises all departments 
and is responsible to the six elected members of the City 
Council and elected Mayor.  Two assistant managers direct 
the areas of finance and services.  The Parks and Recreation 
Department is organized under the finance wing of the 
administration.  The Parks and Recreation Director supervises 
four divisions within the department; parks and grounds, 
recreation, aquatics, and golf course.   
 
The Parks and Grounds division is responsible for park site 
development, park maintenance and facilities preparation for 
all City parks.  The division oversees forestry operations 
including planting, trimming and tree removal and also 

maintains all municipal sites and grounds such as fire stations, 
boulevards, parks and cemeteries.  Professional planning 
personnel within this division assist City staff in the planning 
and development of public space.  The Superintendent of 
Parks with the Parks and Recreation Director assist 
community groups in developing neighborhood park plans.   
 
The Recreation Division, under the supervision of the 
Superintendent of Recreation, develops and maintains 
recreation program schedules, publicity and operations.  The 
recreation staff coordinates indoor and outdoor facility use, 
and directs part-time personnel who manage program 
sessions.   
 
The Aquatics Division is responsible for the operation and 
programming of the indoor and outdoor pools.   
 
The Golf Course Division is responsible for the operation and 
maintenance of Sylvan Glen Golf Course and Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course. 
 
Parks and Recreation Department representatives meet 
regularly with school, service club, and youth athletic 
organizations to coordinate and schedule the use of school 
facilities and programs.  Meetings are also held with the school 
system athletic directors.  To assist the Parks and Recreation 
Department, a citizen’s Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, 
consisting of ten members who are appointed by council, meet 
with the department administrators monthly to review ongoing 
programs, facilities, and other related matters.  The Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board operate in adherence to Chapter 
27 of the City of Troy Municipal Code. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 10  

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The school district operates under the guidance of an elected 
school board.  The top administrative officers in the school 
district are the Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent 
for Instruction.  As mentioned above, the Parks and 
Recreation Department maintains a cooperative relationship 
with the Troy School District.  Cooperative arrangements are 
usually coordinated by communication between the City’s 
Parks and Recreation Director and the School District’s 
Director of Operations.  In addition to other responsibilities, the 
Director of Operations is responsible for developing and 
maintaining the School District’s buildings and grounds, 
including the recreation facilities. 
 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION BUDGET 
 
The City of Troy’s Park and Recreation Department is funded 
primarily through the general fund.  However, the Golf Division 
operates as an enterprise fund.  The table below summarizes 
recreation budgets for the 2006-2007 year.  It should be noted 
that the capital needs and operating fund budgets are itemized 
for the Parks and Recreation Department.  Budgets for 
Cemeteries and Golf Courses are shown as totals. 
 

 
TABLE 7: PARKS AND RECREATION BUDGET 

2006-2007 
Budget Classification Total Budget 
Parks and Recreation Department  
Capital Budget 
 
Development of Parks $2,180,000
Community Center $113,500
Buildings and grounds $565,000
Sub improvements $850,000
Administration $70,000
Aquatic Center $75,000
Golf division $161,000
 
Parks and Recreation Department  
Operating Fund 
 

Field maintenance $317,770
City grounds $249,670
Administration $1,275,650
Summer programs $761,520
Winter programs $694,770
Community Center $2,538,370
Park Maintenance $1,559,190
Cemeteries $47,340
Local street trees main $613,480
Major street tree main $36,570
Street islands main $650,490

Total $8,744,820
Enterprise Fund 
Aquatic Center $616,730
Golf courses $3,221,030
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 11  

4. PARKS AND RECREATION INVENTORY 
 
PARK CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM 
 
For recreation planning purposes it is useful to categorize 
parks based on their use potential.  For the purposes of this 
plan, parks are classified as follows: 
 
Mini Park  
 

General Description – Used to address limited, isolated or 
unique recreational needs. 
Location Criteria – Less than ¼ mile distance in residential 
setting. 
Size Criteria – Between 2500 square feet and one acre in size. 
 
Neighborhood Park  
 

General Description - The neighborhood park remains the 
basic unit of the park system and serves as the recreational 
and social focus of the neighborhood.  Their focus is on 
informal active and passive recreation.   
Location Criteria - ¼- to ½-mile distance and uninterrupted by 
non-residential roads and other physical barriers. 
Size Criteria - 5 acres is considered minimum size.  5 to 10 
acres is optimal. 
 
Community Park  
 

General Description - Serves broader purpose than 
neighborhood park.  Focus is on meeting community-based 
recreation needs, as well as preserving unique landscapes 
and open spaces.  

Location Criteria - Determined by the quality and suitability of 
the site.  Usually serves two or more neighborhoods and ½ to 
3 mile distance. 
Size Criteria - As needed to accommodate desired uses.  
Usually a minimum of 50 acres, with 75 or more acres being 
optimal. 

 
Special Use 
 

General Description - Covers a broad range of parks and 
recreation facilities oriented toward single-purpose use. 
Location Criteria – Variable; dependent on specific use. 
Size Criteria - Variable. 
 
Source: 
(1) Lancaster, R.A., Ed. Recreation, Park and Open Space Standards and 
Guidelines.  Alexandria, VA: National Recreation and Park Association, 
1983. 
(2) Mertes, J.D. and J.R. Hall. Park, Recreation, Open Space and Greenway 
Guidelines.  Alexandria, VA: National Recreation and Park Association, 
1995. 
 
The Troy Parks and Recreation Department manages more 
than 850 acres of parkland including 14 existing parks, two 
golf courses, a nature center, family aquatic center, and 11 
parks currently under consideration for development. Each 
park ranges in size from 3 to 96 acres and contains a variety 
of amenities. Stage Nature Center is 100 acres. Sylvan Glen 
and Sanctuary Lake golf courses are 143 and 200 acres 
respectively.  The following Summary Of Municipal Recreation 
Resources table and Parks and Recreation Facilities Map 
summarize the system of Parks and Recreation facilities in 
Troy. 



12 

TABLE 8: SUMMARY OF MUNICIPAL RECREATION RESOURCES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FACILITY NAME 

La
nd

 A
re

a 
(A

cr
es

) 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

D
es

ig
na

tio
n 

Te
nn

is
 C

ou
rts

 

B
as

ke
tb

al
l C

ou
rts

 

P
la

y 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t 

A
sp

ha
lt 

W
ak

in
g 

Tr
ai

ls
 

B
al

l D
ia

m
on

ds
 

S
oc

ce
r F

ie
ld

s 

S
an

d 
V

ol
le

yb
al

l C
ou

rts
 

Fl
ag

 F
oo

tb
al

l/L
ac

ro
ss

e 
Fl

ds
 

D
is

c 
G

ol
f 

P
ic

ni
c 

A
re

a 

U
np

av
ed

 N
at

ur
e 

Tr
ai

l 

N
at

ur
al

 W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
 

P
av

ili
on

 

C
on

ce
ss

io
n 

A
re

a 

R
es

tro
om

 

S
w

im
m

in
g 

P
oo

l 

G
ym

na
si

um
 

D
rin

ki
ng

 W
at

er
 

18
-H

ol
e 

G
ol

f C
ou

rs
e 

U
np

av
ed

 P
ar

ki
ng

 

P
av

ed
 P

ar
ki

ng
 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
ks

 

S
hu

ffl
eb

oa
rd

 C
ou

rts
 

B
oc

ce
 B

al
l C

ou
rts

 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

Beach Road Park 10 NP   1  1 1               37    2 
Beaver Trail Park 7 NP   1 ▲      ▲ ▲              3 
Boulan Park 53 CP 8#  2 ▲ 3 (2#) 3 2 1  ▲   2 ▲ ▲   ▲   450    3 
Brinston Park 18 NP 2 1 1  2 2    ▲   1     ▲   110    3 
Firefighters Park 96 CP   1  1 9 2 1* 1 ▲  ▲ 1 ▲ ▲      375    3 
Flynn Park 25 CP   1  4#         ▲ ▲   ▲   285    2 
Huber Park 20 CP 8#         ▲ ▲    ▲   ▲   ▲    1 
Jaycee Park 45 CP   2  2 3+6* 2      1  ▲   ▲   200    3 
North Glen Park 10 NP                         3 
Raintree Park 41 CP   2  1 2* 2  1 ▲   1  ▲   ▲   126    3 
Redwood Park 3 NP  1 1  1     ▲   1        8    3 
Robinwood Park 18 NP   1 ▲      ▲   2            3 
Schroeder Park 12 NP    ▲  2                   1 
Sylvan Glen Lake Park 40 NP    ▲      ▲ ▲ ▲        16     1 
Stage Nature Center 40 SU          ▲ ▲ ▲   ▲   ▲   64    2 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course 143 SU            ▲  ▲ ▲   ▲ ▲  421    3 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 200 SU            ▲  ▲ ▲   ▲ ▲  207    3 
Troy Family Aquatic Center 4 SU   1    2       ▲  ▲  ▲   249 1 2 2 3 
Troy Farm 60 SU                  ▲  20     2 
Troy Community Center 35 SU  2 1 ▲ 1 6*        ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲   528 1   3 
Notes: Tennis courts (8) at Huber Park are public seasonally; during Fall, Winter and Spring the courts are privately operated. 
 
LEGEND: 
Facility Designation   Accessibility Assessment 
NP = Neighborhood Park  1 = none of the facilities/park areas meet accessibility guidelines. 
CP = Community Park   2 = some of the facilities/park areas meet accessibility guidelines. 
SU = Special Use Facility  3 = most of the facilities/park areas meet accessibility guidelines. 
▲ = Facility provided but  4 = the entire park meets accessibility guidelines. 
no specific count provided  5 = the entire park was developed/renovated using the principals of universal design. 
* = Seasonal Field Use 
# = Lighted 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
ST

ER

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE

JO
H

N
R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S

±
0 2,500 5,000 7,500

Feet

CITY OF TROY
PARKS & RECREATION FACILITY

LOCATION MAP

1    TROY AQUATIC CENTER
2    BEACH ROAD PARK
3    BEAVER TRAIL PARK
4    BOULAN COMMUNITY PARK
5    BRINSTON PARK
6    DONALD J. FLYNN PARK
7    FIRE FIGHTERS PARK
8    JAY CEE PARK
9    NORTH GLEN PARK
10   LLOYD A. STAGE NATURE CENTER
11   PHILLIP J. HUBER PARK
12   RAINTREE PARK
13   REDWOOD PARK
14   ROBINWOOD PARK
15   SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE
16   SCHROEDER PARK
17   SYLVAN GLEN GOLF COURSE
18   SYLVAN GLEN LAKE PARK
19   TROY FARM
20   TROY COMMUNITY CENTER

EXISTING PARKS & REC. FACILITY SITES
A    SITE #1 - SECTION 22
B    SITE #2 - SECTION 2
C    SITE #3 - SECTION 11
D    SITE #4 - SECTION 24
E    SITE #5 - SECTION 36
F    SITE #6 - SECTION 16
G    SITE #7 - SECTION 10
H    SITE #8 - SECTION 25

PROPOSED NEW CITY PARK SITES

KEY
PROPOSED NEW CITY PARK SITES

EXISTING PARK & REC SITES

1
11

20

A4

14

12 D 3

H

5

E

13

16

2

19

10

7

9

F

17

18

G

8

6

15

B

CI

J K

I            SITE #9 - SECTION 10
J     SITE #10 - SECTION 23
K    SITE #11 - SECTION 25
L    SITE #12 - SECTION 9   

L

13



TOWN CENTER

N 
I75 ONRP

N I75 OFRP

LO
U

IS

HARTLAND

CIVIC

CENTER

E BIG BEAVER

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

N 
I7

5

N 
I7

5 
C

O
LL

S 
I75 W BIG BEAVER 0 100 200 30050

Feet

³

CIVIC CENTER PARK & OPEN SPACE

14

Legend
CIVIC CENTER PARK & OPEN SPACE



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 15  

CITY OF TROY PARKS 
 
Name:  Beach Road Park 
Location: On the west side of Beach Road between Long 

Lake Road and Wattles Road, in Section 18. 
Area:  10 acres. 
Designation: Neighborhood Park. 
Amenities: Beach Road Park consists of one ball diamond, 

one soccer field, play equipment and swings. 
This park can also accommodate up to 37 
vehicles in its paved parking lot. 

 
Name:  Beaver Trail Park 
Location: East of John R between Big Beaver Road and 

Wattles Road, in Section 24.  Pedestrian park 
access from both Pasadena and Avalon.  

Area: 7 acres. 
Designation: Neighborhood Park. 
Amenities: Beaver Trail Park is characterized as a 

pedestrian friendly park with asphalt walking 
path throughout open space and natural 
walking path through wooded area. This park 
also contains picnic tables, play structure and 
swings. 

 
Name: Boulan Park 
Location: West off Crooks Road between Big Beaver and 

Wattles Roads, in Section 20. 
Area: 53 acres. 
Designation: Community Park. 
Amenities: One of Troy’s major community parks, Boulan 

Park offers a wide variety of recreation facilities, 
including three ball diamonds (two lighted), 
eight tennis courts, three full-sized soccer 
fields, one multi-purpose field, two sand 

volleyball courts, two barrier free play structures 
and swing set. Boulan Park also has two 
reservable picnic shelters, over a mile of 
asphalt walking path, two restroom buildings 
and seasonal concession stand. Parking is 
available for up to 450 vehicles. Boulan Park is 
home to two major community celebrations: the 
annual Family Festival (July) and the annual 
Magic of Fall/Troy Daze Festival (September). 

 
Name: Brinston Park 
Location: End of Brinston Road, east off John R between 

Maple Road and Big Beaver Road, in Section 
25. 

Area: 18 acres. 
Designation: Neighborhood Park. 
Amenities: Brinston Park offers a wide variety of 

recreational opportunities including two ball 
diamonds, two soccer fields, barrier-free play 
equipment and swings, basketball court, two 
tennis courts, reservable picnic shelter that can 
accommodate up to 150 people, restroom and 
paved parking for up to 110 vehicles. 

 
Name: Firefighters Park 
Location: Square Lake Road, between Crooks Road and 

Coolidge Highway, in Section 5. 
Area: 96 acres. 
Designation: Community Park. 
Amenities: Firefighters Park hosts a variety of active and 

passive recreation facilities, including nine 
soccer fields, two multi-purpose fields, one ball 
diamond, two sand volleyball courts, picnic 
shelter, 18-hole disc golf course, barrier-free 
play equipment and swings, restroom and 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 16  

seasonal concession stand, and parking for 375 
vehicles. This park also contains a lake, 
allowing shore fishing. No boating or swimming 
is allowed in the lake. 

 
Name: Donald J. Flynn Park 
Location: Southwest corner of South Boulevard and 

Dequindre, in Section 1. 
Area: 25 acres. 
Designation: Community Park. 
Amenities: Four lighted ball diamonds, barrier-free play 

structure, restrooms and seasonal concession 
stand.  Parking for 285 vehicles. 

 
Name: Phillip J. Huber Park  
Location: In the Civic Center, adjacent to the Troy Family 

Aquatic Center – north of Big Beaver Road and 
west of Livernois, in Section 21. 

Area: 20 acres. 
Designation: Community Park. 
Amenities: Huber Park features a 1.3-acre natural fitness 

trail, eight lighted tennis courts, and a picnic 
area.  Note that the courts are privately 
operated and covered in fall, winter and spring.  
The property is heavily wooded.  Ample parking 
is available at the tennis courts, Aquatic Center 
and nearby Troy Community Center. Restrooms 
and drinking fountain are available at Aquatic 
Center. 

 
Name: Jaycee Park 
Location: Long Lake Road between Rochester and John 

R Roads, in Section 11. 
Area: 45 acres. 
Designation: Community Park. 

Amenities: The recreational facilities offered in Jaycee 
Park include two ball diamonds, three soccer 
fields plus six seasonal soccer fields, two sand 
volleyball courts, two barrier-free play 
structures, swing set, two restroom buildings 
and one reservable picnic shelter.  Parking is 
provided for 200 vehicles. 

 
Name: North Glen Park 
Location: North of Square Lake Road on Elmoor and 

Herbmoor Streets, between Livernois and 
Crooks Roads, in Section 4. 

Area: 10.4 acres. 
Designation: Neighborhood Park. 
Amenities: North Glen Park is an undeveloped, heavily 

wooded park surrounded by residential areas. 
There are no parking facilities, or other 
amenities. Site is accessible only by dirt 
pathways, which cross the woods. 

 
Name: Raintree Park 
Location: On John R between Big Beaver and Wattles 

Roads, in Section 23. 
Area: 41 acres. 
Designation: Community Park. 
Amenities: Raintree Park boasts a 9-hole disc golf course, 

one ball diamond, two seasonal soccer fields, 
two barrier-free play structures, a swing set, 
sand volleyball court, restroom and reservable 
picnic shelter. Parking is also available for 126 
vehicles. 

 
Name: Redwood Park 
Location: Accessible from 14 Mile Road between 

Stephenson Highway and Rochester Road. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 17  

Turn north on Lyon and left at Redwood. Follow 
Redwood to the park. Located in Section 35. 

Area: 3 acres. 
Designation: Neighborhood Park. 
Amenities: Although the smallest of the City parks, 

Redwood offers a ball diamond, basketball 
court, barrier-free play equipment and swings, a 
small picnic shelter and parking for eight 
vehicles. 

 
Name: Robinwood Park 
Location:  On Robinwood Street, west off Rochester Road 

between Maple and Big Beaver Roads, in 
Section 27. 

Area: 18 acres. 
Designation: Neighborhood Park. 
Amenities: Robinwood Park is largely open space and tree 

cover with a mile of asphalt walking path, two 
barrier-free play structures, swings and two 
small picnic shelters. There is no parking at this 
site, although parking is available at Morse 
Elementary, across the street. 

 
Name: Schroeder Park 
Location: Located adjacent to Schroeder Elementary 

School, between Coolidge Highway and Beach 
Road and between Big Beaver and Wattles 
Roads, in Section 19. 

Area: 12 acres. 
Designation: Neighborhood Park. 
Amenities: Schroeder Park consists of 10 acres of woods 

with natural pathways throughout, and two 
soccer fields. The site is adjacent to Schroeder 
Elementary which also maintains a ball 
diamond and play equipment. Schroeder Park 

has no parking, although parking is available at 
the school. 

 
Name: Sylvan Glen Lake Park 
Location: Rochester Road between Square Lake and 

Long Lake Roads, south of and adjacent to 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course, in Section 10. 

Area: 40 acres. 
Designation: Neighborhood Park.  
Amenities: The largest of Troy’s neighborhood parks, 

Sylvan Glen Lake Park includes a 16-acre lake, 
10 acre wooded area with natural pathways, 
picnic tables and parking for 16 vehicles. Shore 
fishing is allowed at the lake. Boating and 
swimming are prohibited. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 18  

PROPOSED NEW CITY PARKS 
 
Proposed New City Parks 
 
The following eleven parcels of land are being considered for 
development as City parks.  It is anticipated that they will be 
designed to fully comply with ADA guidelines.  Development is 
estimated to begin in 3 to 5 years.  The sites have not been 
named, but are identified as follows: 
 
Site #1  
Location: Section 22, on Livernois Road between Big 

Beaver and Wattles Roads. 
Area: 22 acres 
Designation: Neighborhood Park 
Amenities: To be determined   
 
Site #2 
Location: Section 2, north of Square Lake/Willow Grove, 

west of Kensington Church 
Area: 6.5 acres 
Designation: Neighborhood Park 
Amenities: To be determined   
 
Site #3  
Location: Section 11, south of Square Lake, east of 

Willow Grove 
Area: 12 acres 
Designation: Neighborhood Park 
Amenities: To be determined   
 
Site #4  
Location: Section 24, on John R between Big Beaver and 

Wattles Roads, south of Barnard Elementary 
School. 

Area: 14 acres 
Designation: Neighborhood Park  
Amenities: To be determined   
 
Site #5  
Location: Section 36, south of Maple and west of 

Milverton 
Area: 15 acres 
Designation: Neighborhood Park 
Amenities: To be determined   
 
Site #6  
Location: Section 16, south of Long Lake Road and east 

of I-75 
Area: 20 acres 
Designation: Neighborhood Park 
Amenities: To be determined   
 
Site #7  
Location: Section 10, north of Long Lake Road and west 

of Somerton 
Area: 3 acres 
Designation: Neighborhood Park 
Amenities: To be determined   
 
Site #8  
Location: Section 25, north of Garry Street at Milverton 
Area:  5 Acres 
Designation: Neighborhood Park 
Amenities: To be determined  



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 19  

Site #9 
Location: Section 10, south of Square Lake Road, east of 

Livernois 
Area:   ¾ acre 
Designation: Mini Park 
Amenities: To be determined 
 
Site #10 
Location: Section 23, northeast corner of Big Beaver and 

Rochester, west of Fire Station #1. 
Area:   1.5 acres 
Designation: Mini Park 
Amenities: This park is currently in the planning phase.  At 

this time it appears the park will feature passive 
elements such as turf, landscaping, walking 
paths, open space, and a pond overlook area.  
When completed it will serve as a gateway for 
visitors entering Troy from I-75 on northbound 
Rochester Road. 

 
Site #11 
Location: Section 25, south of Big Beaver, west of 

Dequindre 
Area:  1.8 acre 
Designation: Mini Park 
Amenities: Turf, trees, sidewalks and benches. 
 
Site #12 
Location: Section 9, north of Long Lake, east of I-75 
Area:  2.5 acre 
Designation: Mini Park 
Amenities: To be determined. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 20  

 MUNICIPAL RECREATION FACILITIES  
 
Name:  Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center/Troy Farm 
Location: Main entrance to Stage Nature Center is on 

west side of Coolidge Highway, between 
Square Lake Road and South Boulevard. Troy 
Farm located on South Boulevard at Beach 
Road, in Section 6.  

Area: 100 acres. 
Designation: Special Use Facility. 
Amenities: The Stage Nature Center provides residents 

with the opportunity to learn about or simply 
enjoy the natural environment, offering indoor 
and outdoor nature-oriented facilities and 
programming, passive recreation areas, Nature 
Center building, nature trails, pond, picnic area, 
and wooded area. Paved parking is available 
for 64 vehicles. 

 
The Troy Farm is an historic farm located in the 
northern portion of the site. A farmhouse, 
constructed in 1898 and two barns, built 
between 1826 and 1830 also grace the site. A 
portable classroom on the site serves as the 
location of a children’s summer camp, as well 
as meeting space for other small groups. The 
Senior Gardens with 76 gardening plots 
available to Troy seniors are located near the 
barns.  There are restrooms and gravel parking 
for 20 vehicles. 

 
Name: Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
Location: Southwest corner of Rochester Road and 

Square Lake Road, in Section 10. 
Area: 143 acres. 

Designation: Special Use Facility. 
Amenities: Sylvan Glen Golf Course is a 143-acre, 

eighteen hole municipal golf course. The course 
has a pro shop and a privately operated 
restaurant (Camp Ticonderoga). A paved 
parking lot with 421 spaces serves the facility.  

 
Name: Sanctuary Lakes Golf Course 
Location: South Boulevard between Dequindre and John 

R, in Section 1.  The site is adjacent to Flynn 
Park. 

Area: 200 acres. 
Designation: Special Use Facility. 
Amenities: Sanctuary Lakes Golf Course is an 18-hole 

municipal golf course, Golf course has a bar 
and grill operated by a contracted vendor, pro 
shop, driving range, and paved parking for 207 
vehicles. 

 
Name: Troy Family Aquatic Center 
Location: On the Civic Center site adjacent to Huber Park 

and the Tennis Bubble, in Section 21. 
Area: 4 acres. 
Designation: Special Use Facility. 
Amenities: The Troy Family Aquatic Center is an outdoor 

special use facility open from Memorial Day 
weekend to Labor Day. Amenities include a 
main pool with zero-depth entry, three water 
slides (one for children under ten), two spray 
pools, waterfall, two sand volleyball courts, play 
equipment area, and concession stand.  



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 21  

Name:  Troy Community Center 
Location:  On the Civic Center site, on the west side of 

Livernois, north of Big Beaver and south of 
Town Center Drive, in Section 21 (3179 
Livernois Road).   

Area: 35 acres. 
Designation: Special Use Facility - Community Center. 
Amenities: Interior - This facility houses the Parks and 

Recreation Department offices, as well as a 
indoor pool, fitness room, gymnasium with two 
full-size basketball courts, locker rooms, 
aerobics and dance studios, drop off child care 
center, game room, teen room, pre-school 
rooms, meeting and banquet rooms. In addition, 
there are a variety of amenities for seniors 
including a reading room, computer lab, and 
store offering senior craft items for sale. 
Exterior - Children’s play equipment, skate 
park, asphalt walking path, one ball diamond, 
and six seasonal soccer fields. There are a total 
of 528 parking spaces serving the Community 
Center building. 

 

Name:  Troy Civic Center 
Location:  West Livernois, north of Big Beaver, in Section 

21 (see map on page 14).   
Area: 35 acres. 
Designation: Community Park. 
Amenities: The Civic Center Priority Task Force proposes 

a number of improvements to this site.  The 
attached drawing illustrates the proposed 
improvements, which include the following: 
• Amphitheater 
• Winter activities 
• Walking paths 
• Fountain plaza 
• Enhanced gardens 
• Reflective head hedge maze.  
 



4 Acres

Open Green Area,Reserved 
for Future Parking Needs.

 4.5 AC

LO
U

IS
LO

U
IS

TOWN CENTERTOWN CENTER

C
IV

IC
 C

EN
TE

R

C
IV

IC
 C

EN
TE

R

HARTLANDHARTLAND

W BIG BEAVERW BIG BEAVER

LIV
E
R
N

O
IS

LIV
E
R
N

O
IS

E BIG BEAVERE BIG BEAVER

LANE DITCH

CIVIC CENTER PRIORITY TASK FORCE ELEMENTS- Amended 5/12/04

Liberty                      Center

Marriott

Community Center

City Hall

Library

Court

Ford&Earl

Parking

Big Beaver

L
iv

er
n

o
is

Fountain Plaza

9.3 AC 

Enhanced Gardens

4.1 AC

Town Center Drive Green Belt
Reflective Head 

Hedge Maze
1.6 AC

Amphitheater

4.3 AC 

Winter Activities

Walking Paths
 Throughout Site

3.2 AC

P
olice D

rive

Police Landscaping 
to Screen

 Adjacent Properties

brattopp
Text Box
22



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 23  

SCHOOL FACILITIES 
 
As in many communities in Michigan, the local school districts 
provide a valuable resource of facilities and programs for local 
community recreation.  The Troy School District operates 
twelve elementary, four middle, and two high schools within 
the City.  These schools occupy about 390 acres of land.  In 
addition to the schools, the Troy School District has other 
properties in the City, including Niles Continuing Education 
Building, the Administration Building, bus garage, and several 
vacant properties. 
 
The Troy School District encompasses most of the City, but 
small segments along its perimeter are served by six other 
school districts.  Two of these school districts, Birmingham 
School District and Warren Consolidated Schools, have 
elementary schools in Troy. 
 
School sites are designed and maintained chiefly to meet the 
recreation needs of the children during school hours.  However 
school facilities also provide recreation opportunities normally 
found in neighborhood parks for the general public.  In 
sections that do not have a municipal park, the school site 
serves as a surrogate park.  Schools also have indoor facilities 
that are available to the public on a restricted basis.  
 
Troy School District Schools 
 
Name: Hamilton Elementary School  
Location: South of I-75, on west side of Northfield 

Parkway, in Section 8. 
Area: 20 acres. 
Amenities: One ball diamond, one soccer field, two 

basketball courts, tetherball, playground, 

walking path, and combined 
cafeteria/gymnasium. 

 
Name: Charles B. Martell Elementary School  
Location: East side of Livernois, south of Square Lake, in 

Section 10. 
Area: 30 acres. 
Amenities: Three ball diamonds, soccer field, asphalt play 

area, tetherball, playground, walking path, and 
combination cafeteria/gymnasium. 

 
Name: Troy Union Elementary School  
Location: South of Square Lake, east of Rochester, in 

Section 11. 
Area: 30 acres. 
Amenities: One soccer field, two basketball courts, walking 

path, playground, and combined 
cafeteria/gymnasium.  

 
Name: Wass Elementary School  
Location: North of Long Lake, west of Dequindre, in 

Section 12. 
Area: 21.5 acres. 
Amenities: Two soccer fields, two ball diamonds, two 

basketball half-courts, asphalt play area, 
tetherball, playground, walking path, and 
combined cafeteria/gymnasium.  

 
Name: Hill Elementary School  
Location: South of Long Lake, west of Dequindre, in 

Section 13. 
Area: 12 acres. 
Amenities: One ball diamond, two basketball courts, 

walking path, asphalt play area, tetherball, 
playground, and gymnasium.  



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 24  

 
Name: Costello Elementary School  
Location: East of Rochester, south of Long Lake, in 

Section 14. 
Area: 23 acres. 
Amenities: Two soccer fields, two ball diamonds, three 

basketball half-courts, tetherball, playground, 
walking path, and combined 
cafeteria/gymnasium.  

 
Name: Leonard Elementary School  
Location: East of Livernois, north of Wattles, in Section 

15. 
Area: 30 acres. 
Amenities: One soccer field, one ball diamond, two 

basketball courts, tetherball, playgrounds, 
walking path, gymnasium and nature area.  

 
Name: Schroeder Elementary School  
Location: West of Coolidge, north of Big Beaver, in 

Section 19. 
Area: 10 acres. 
Amenities: One soccer field, one ball diamond, two 

basketball courts, asphalt play area, tetherball, 
playground, walking path, and combined 
cafeteria/gymnasium.  

 
Name: Bemis Elementary School  
Location: East of Coolidge, south of Wattles, in Section 

20. 
Area: 14 acres. 
Amenities: Multi-purpose field, two ball diamonds, two 

basketball courts, asphalt play area, tetherball, 
playgrounds, walking path, and combined 
cafeteria/gymnasium.  

 
Name: Wattles Elementary School  
Location: South of Wattles, east of Livernois, in Section 

22. 
Area: 14.9 acres. 
Amenities: One soccer field, two ball diamonds, two 

basketball half-courts, asphalt play area, 
playgrounds, walking path, and combined 
cafeteria/gymnasium.  

 
Name: Barnard Elementary School  
Location: West side of John R, south of Wattles, in 

Section 24. 
Area: 17.3 acres. 
Amenities: Two ball diamonds, four basketball half-courts, 

asphalt play area, playground, walking path, 
and combined cafeteria/gymnasium.  

 
Name: Morse Elementary School  
Location: West of Rochester, south of I-75, in Section 27. 
Area: 9 acres. 
Amenities: One soccer field, one ball diamond, two 

basketball courts, asphalt play area, tetherball, 
playgrounds, walking path, picnic area, and 
gymnasium.  

Name: Smith Middle School  
Location: West side of Livernois, south of Square Lake, in 

Section 10. 
Area: 20 acres. 
Amenities: Football field, two ball diamonds, running track, 

four tennis courts, cafeteria, gymnasium and 
indoor pool.  

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 25  

Name: Larson Middle School 
Location: East side of John R, south of Long Lake, in 

Section 13. 
Area: 32 acres. 
Amenities: Two soccer fields, three ball diamonds, running 

track, football field, four tennis courts, indoor 
pool, cafeteria, and gymnasium.  

 
Name: Boulan Park Middle School  
Location: West of Crooks, south of Wattles, in Section 20. 
Area: 16 acres. 
Amenities: One soccer field, one multi-purpose field, 

running track, cafeteria, gymnasium, and indoor 
pool.  

 
Name: Baker Middle School  
Location: North of Big Beaver, west of Rochester, in 

Section 23. 
Area: 38 acres. 
Amenities: One ball diamond, football field, running track, 

four tennis courts, two basketball half-courts, 
cafeteria, gymnasium and indoor pool (Note: in 
Fall 2007, the new Baker Middle School will 
open.  This facility will include a full-size 
gymnasium).  

Name: Troy Athens High School  
Location: West side of John R, north of Wattles, in 

Section 14. 
Area: 50 acres. 
Amenities: Two soccer fields, two softball diamonds, two 

baseball diamonds, football field, multi-purpose 
field, eight lane running track, eight tennis 
courts, two gymnasiums, indoor pool, indoor 
track, sports deck and auditorium.  

 

Name: Troy High School  
Location: South of Long Lake, west of Northfield 

Parkway, in Section 17. 
Area: 75 acres. 
Amenities: Two softball diamonds, two baseball diamonds, 

one multi-use field, stadium, eight lane running 
track, eight tennis courts, wooded area, two 
gymnasiums, swimming pool, auditorium, and 
meeting rooms. 

 
Name: Niles Continuing Education Center  
Location: South side of Square Lake, west of Livernois, in 

Section 9. 
Area: 13.6 acres. 
Amenities: One ball diamond, playground, and two soccer 

fields. 
 
Other Schools 
 
Name: Pembroke Elementary School 
 (Birmingham School District)  
Location: South of Big Beaver, east of Adams, in Section 30. 
Area: 10 acres. 
Amenities: Two ball diamonds, one soccer field, three 

basketball half-courts, asphalt play area, 
playgrounds, tot lot and picnic area. 

 
Name: Susick Elementary School 
 (Warren Consolidated School District)  
Location: West of Dequindre, south of Big Beaver, in 

Section 25. 
Area: 12 acres. 
Amenities: One ball diamond, two basketball half-courts, 

asphalt play area, multi-purpose field and a 
playground. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 26  

Name: Brookfield Academy (private school)  
Location: Southeast corner of Wattles and Livernois, in 

Section 22. 
Area: 3.4 acres. 
Amenities: Playground and picnic area. 
 
Name: Bethany Christian School (private school)  
Location: West of John R, south of Big Beaver, in Section 

26. 
Area: 9 acres. 
Amenities: Two ball diamonds, two soccer fields, 

playground and picnic area. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 27  

NON-PUBLIC RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 
 
Private Facilities 
 
Private recreation developments are important because they 
can relieve the demand and use pressures on public facilities.  
These include for-profit and non-profit facilities and clubs and 
can address a wide range of interests.  For this reason the 
following inventory of private facilities has been included in the 
Plan. 
 

TABLE 9 
PRIVATE RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 

FACILITY NAME FACILITY TYPE  ADDRESS 
Troy Sports Center Ice Rink, training 

center and dance 
studio 

1819 E. Big Beaver 

Bowl One Bowling center 1639 E. 14 Mile  
Troy Lanes  Bowling center 1950 E. Square Lake 
Thunderbird Lanes Bowling center 400 W. Maple 
Clayton Academy of 
Dance 

Dance studio 3527 Rochester  

Juliart Dance 
Studios 

Dance studio 6036 Rochester 

Link School of the 
Arts 

Dance studio 1077 Rankin 

Troy Dance 
Connection 

Dance Studio 4947 Rochester 

Troy Dance Studio Dance studio 4963 Rochester 
Bally Total Fitness Fitness center 203 W. Big Beaver 
Contours Express Fitness center 1071 E. Long Lake 
Curves for Women Fitness center 4951 Rochester 
Curves for Women Fitness center 158 W. Maple 
Lifetime Fitness Fitness center 4700 Investment 

Peak Physique 
Fitness Training 

Fitness center 6044 Rochester 

Power House Gym Fitness center 2585 Livernois 
Shapes 30 Fitness center 1921 South Blvd. 
Swi-Tech Personal 
Training 

Fitness center 53 E. Maple  

Kils Taekwondo Martial arts center 1881 W. South Blvd. 
Taekwondo USA Martial arts center 2903 E. Big Beaver 
Troy Black Belt 
Academy 

Martial arts center 5939 John R 

Troy Gymnastics Gymnastics 
facility 

1600 W. Maple 

Boys and Girls Club 
of Troy 

Gymnasium, 
playground  

3670 John R 

Skate World of Troy Roller skating rink 2825 E. Maple 
Troy Swim Club Swimming pool 538 E. Long Lake 
Troy Racquet Club Tennis courts 3400 Civic Center 

Drive 
Troy Elks Club Ballfield, picnic 

area 
1451 E. Big Beaver 

 
Churches 
 
In addition to these facilities, there are over fifty churches in 
Troy, many of which provide indoor or outdoor recreational 
opportunities to Troy families. 
 
 
Subdivision Open Space Areas 
 
Many subdivision developments in Troy have open space 
common areas.  These areas provide passive leisure pursuits 
and add to the aesthetic quality of the neighborhood.  
Subdivision open space area in Troy encompasses 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 28  

approximately 250 acres of land.  They typically consist of 
open grassy areas with trees and wetland areas, although 
some contain basic recreational facilities such as playgrounds 
and ball diamonds.  They provide passive recreational 
opportunities and assist in alleviating demand for public parks.   
 
Apartments and Condominium Facilities 
 
Most apartment and condominium developments in Troy have 
some recreational facilities to serve the needs of the residents.  
The most common types of facilities provided in these 
residential complexes are oriented toward adults, such as 
outdoor pools, clubhouses and tennis courts.  Some 
complexes have playgrounds.  The Somerset Park Apartments 
complex includes a 9-hole golf course, tennis courts, 
playground, community center and outdoor pools.  These 
recreational facilities address the recreational needs of the 
residents and alleviate the need for public recreational 
facilities in the neighborhood.  
 
Gateways and Corridors 
 
Gateways and Corridors provide passive recreation 
opportunities.  The Big Beaver Corridor features sidewalks on 
both sides, plus a landscaped boulevard.  Beach Road is a 
scenic parkway that includes sidewalks in some areas.  
Sections of major thoroughfares in Troy have sidewalks on 
one or both sides of the road.   

Cemeteries 
 
Cemeteries provide passive open space and historical and 
cultural educational opportunities.  Troy has four publicly-
owned cemeteries:  

• Troy Union Corners Cemetery, 1199 E. Square Lake 
Road  

• Crooks Road Cemetery, 3701 Crooks Road 
• Beach Road Cemetery, 5360 Beach Road 
• Perrin Cemetery, 1050 Coolidge Highway  

 

 

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 29  

5. HANDICAP ACCESSIBILITY 
 
The Michigan Department of Natural Resources requires 
communities to conduct an assessment of the accessibility of 
all public recreational facilities and the access routes to them.  
The following is a summary of the accessibility of each public 
City facility in Troy: 
 
BEACH ROAD PARK 
 
This park has a 37-space asphalt parking lot with 2 handicap 
spots. The slope of the lot is less than 2%. There are no stairs 
from the lot to the field, but a curb surrounds the parking lot. 
There is one 8’ curb opening, with asphalt pathway leading to 
the Rain Garden area and the swing area. The playground 
equipment is compliant with the most recent barrier-free 
codes. The swing area is surrounded by concrete curbing to 
contain the engineered wood fiber safety surface surrounding 
the swings This area is accessible from the asphalt pathway. 
However, the rest of the play equipment is not accessible via a 
sidewalk or hard-surface path. The playground safety surface 
is sand, with rubberized mats at the end of the slide 
components. Safety surface material in the play equipment 
area is contained within a concrete border and there is a step 
to gain access. 
 
Beach Road contains one soccer field and one ball diamond. 
Neither is accessible from the parking lot or other areas of the 
park via concrete or asphalt walk. 
 
Picnic Tables at the site are a mix of standard and ADA 
compliant tables, located on grass with no hard surface 
access to tables. 
There are no water fountains, buildings, or restrooms at this 
site. 

BEAVER TRAIL PARK 
 
Entire pathway system throughout the site is asphalt, 8 feet in 
width. There is no parking at the facility, but the pathway does 
connect with residential sidewalk outside the park. Grade is 
less than 5% with cross grade less than 2%. There are no 
stairs or ramps except a ramp leading from the pathway into 
the swing set area.  
 
Playground equipment and swings are ADA compliant. Safety 
surface beneath play structure is poured in place rubberized 
safety surface. Surface in swing area is engineered wood fiber 
with rubberized safety mats directly beneath swing seats. Pour 
in place surface is at ground level. Engineered wood fiber is 
contained by concrete border. A concrete ramp leads from 
asphalt pathway into the swing area. 
 
Picnic tables are a mix of standard and ADA compliant tables 
with extended table top to accommodate a wheelchair at the 
end of table. There are no parking areas, water fountains, park 
buildings, or restrooms at this site. 
 
BOULAN PARK 
 
Boulan Park has an 8-foot wide asphalt pathway running in 
excess of one mile throughout the park. It is accessible at 
several points from the various parking areas. The pathway 
connects the parking lot to two restrooms, one picnic shelter, 
one concession stand, three ball diamonds, two play 
structures, one swing set area, and rings three soccer fields. 
The pathway also connects to a sidewalk leading from an 
adjoining subdivision, a sidewalk along Crooks Road, and to 
Boulan Middle School. The grade along the path is less than 
5%. There are no stairs or ramps on the path, except for a 
concrete ramp into the swing set area. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 30  

 
The asphalt parking area includes spaces for 451 vehicles. 
Ten of those spaces are signed and identified as handicap 
parking spaces. Parking lots are generally flat with cross slope 
in the handicap spaces not exceeding 2%. 
 
The play equipment and swing sets meet the most recent 
barrier-free codes with access via asphalt path. Safety surface 
beneath two play structures is rubberized pour in place. 
Surface in swing set area is engineered wood fiber bounded 
by concrete curb. Curb is breached in one section by a 
concrete ramp leading from asphalt path into safety surface 
area. Rubberized safety mats are positioned beneath 
engineered wood fiber in location under swing seats when at 
rest. 
 
Other facilities in the park are accessible from the asphalt 
pathways, including three ball diamonds, one of the two picnic 
shelters, two restroom buildings, one concession stand. 
Asphalt pathway also rings three soccer fields, but does not 
lead to soccer field bleacher areas. Pathway also flanks the 
eight tennis courts, although direct access to the courts is from 
the handicap parking area located between the two four-court 
tennis areas. 
 
Picnic tables in the park are a mix of standard and ADA 
compliant models with extended tops allowing wheelchairs to 
pull up to the end of the table. Drinking fountains on the 
restroom buildings are accessible in height and placement. 
Drinking fountains at picnic shelters are also accessible in 
height, although hard surface has not yet been established to 
make them fully accessible with regard to placement. All 
fountains are equipped with a barrier-free actuator button. 

Both restroom buildings were retrofit in 2001 to bring them into 
barrier free compliance. One of the two picnic shelters is 
accessible by asphalt pathway. Future plans include extending 
the asphalt path to the second picnic shelter, as well. 
 
BRINSTON PARK 
 
Brinston Park has an 8-foot wide asphalt pathway leading from 
the parking lot to the soccer field area. There is also a pathway 
from the parking lot to the restrooms, play equipment area and 
picnic shelter. Pathway does not exceed 5% in grade, nor 2% 
in cross-slope. The asphalt parking lot contains 110 parking 
spots, five of which are handicap stalls. 
 
The playground equipment is accessible via 8-foot wide 
asphalt pathway from parking lot, restroom, and picnic shelter. 
Safety surface beneath play equipment is pour in place, 
rubberized material in compliance with ADA and CPSC 
guidelines. Safety surface is flush with surrounding grade 
without a raised border. Play equipment is fully compliant with 
most recent barrier-free codes. Safety surface beneath swings 
is engineered wood fiber. One bay of the swings contains a 
handicap swing. 
 
Not all of the other facilities in the park are accessible from the 
parking lot via sidewalk or paved pathway. The two soccer 
fields are accessible from the parking lot. The tennis courts 
and basketball court are accessible from the parking lot. The 
picnic shelter and restroom are accessible via asphalt path. 
The two ball diamonds are not accessible via hard path. 
Picnic tables are a mix of standard and ADA tables which 
allow wheelchairs to sit at end of table. Tables are located 
under picnic shelter and are accessible from the parking lot via 
asphalt pathway. Accessible drinking fountain is located on the 
restroom building and contains a barrier-free button. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 31  

Restroom building is ADA compliant, located off parking lot 
with hard surface access from parking lot, picnic shelter, play 
equipment area and soccer fields. There are no steps or 
ramps entering the building, and all doorways are wide enough 
to be recognized as barrier-free. Restrooms contain handicap 
accessible stalls and barrier-free sinks. 
 
FIREFIGHTERS PARK 
 
Firefighters Park has a limited number of sidewalks and 
pathways. This is a site for future installation of 8-foot wide 
asphalt pathway linking the parking lots with soccer fields and 
picnic shelter. There is an asphalt pathway leading from the 
front and rear parking lots to the restroom, play equipment 
area, and the lake. 
 
Asphalt parking lot has 375 spaces, nine of which are 
handicap stalls. Parking lot does not exceed a 2% cross slop 
within the handicap stalls. Ramps lead from lot to pathway and 
do not exceed 12% in grade change. 
 
Play equipment and swings are compliant with the most recent 
barrier-free codes, with rubberized pour in place safety surface 
beneath the composite play structure and engineered wood 
fiber beneath the swings. Only the swing area is bounded by a 
raised concrete curb, and is accessible by wheelchair from the 
adjoining asphalt pathway via concrete ramp into the swing 
area. 
Most of the other facilities – soccer fields, ball diamond, disc 
golf course are not accessible via hard surface path. This is an 
area of concern and one expected to be addressed in the near 
future with the installation of asphalt walkway to soccer fields 
and picnic shelter. 
 

Picnic tables at this facility are a mix of standard and ADA 
design units. The ADA tables have extended tops to allow for 
wheelchair accessibility. Most picnic tables are located in the 
picnic shelter, which is not accessible from the parking lot, or 
sidewalk via hard-surface pathway. 
 
Although both drinking fountains are accessible in height and 
feature a barrier-free button, only one – located on the 
restroom/concession building - is fully accessible in 
placement. The other is located at the picnic shelter, which 
does not have an accessible pathway from the parking lot. 
 
The park has one restroom facility, which is combined with a 
privately operated concession stand. The restroom is 
connected to the parking lots via sidewalk and asphalt path. 
There are no steps, or ramps to enter the facility. Doorways 
into restroom are a minimum of 32”. There are no handicap 
stalls or barrier-free sinks. 
 
DONALD J. FLYNN PARK 
 
This site has an asphalt pathway leading from the parking lot 
to the four ball diamonds and to the restroom/concession 
building. All spectator seating (bleachers) is situated on 
concrete slab surrounded by asphalt and is accessible to and 
from parking lot, other ball diamonds, and 
restroom/concession. Asphalt pathway does not connect 
existing facilities with sidewalk outside the park boundary 
along South Blvd., or to children’s play area.  
 
Asphalt parking lot holds 285 vehicles, with six of those 
spaces designated for handicap parking. The handicap 
parking stalls do not possess a cross slope greater than 2% 
within the stall, nor is there a cross slop greater than 2% from 
the handicap parking space to the asphalt pathway. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 32  

Play equipment at this site does include many barrier-free 
elements including access via ramp to the structure. 
Playground safety surface is sand, with rubberized run-off 
mats beneath the slides. Structure is not accessible from the 
parking lot via sidewalk, or asphalt pathway. 
 
Ball diamonds (4) are accessible from the parking lot, 
restroom/concession, and from each other via continuous 
asphalt surface. The diamonds themselves are not of barrier-
free design.  
 
There are very few picnic tables at the site. All are located on 
hard surface with accessibility to each table via asphalt 
surface. 
 
Restrooms are not fully ADA accessible, although there are no 
steps or ramps to impede access into restroom. There are no 
thresholds across the restroom entries. Doorways provide a 
minimum of 32” of unobstructed opening. However, there are 
no handicap accessible stalls or barrier free sinks. Toilet 
flushing mechanisms and sink faucet actuators are battery-
operated automatic units. 
 
JAYCEE PARK 
 
Jaycee Park contains an asphalt pathway along the east side 
of its parking area leading from the sidewalk along Long Lake 
Road to a picnic shelter and restroom in the northern part of 
the park, a distance of approximately 2,100 feet. However, the 
pathway does not link to the play areas, or other restroom 
building without crossing the parking lot. Two play areas are 
accessible from the asphalt parking lot via asphalt pathway. 
There are no accessible pathways or sidewalks leading to the 
soccer fields, or ball diamonds. Asphalt parking lot has 200 
spaces, nine of which are designated as handicap spots. 

Both play structures and the swing areas are ADA compliant 
and accessible from the parking lot. One composite play 
structure uses rubberized pour in place safety surface, one 
structure has sand and rubberized run-off mats beneath play 
components and the swing area utilizes engineered wood fiber 
as its safety surface. All structures are compliant with the most 
recent barrier-free codes. 
 
Soccer fields, ball diamonds, and sand volleyball areas are not 
accessible from other areas of the park or from the parking lot, 
nor are any of those facilities of barrier-free design. 
 
Picnic tables are a mix of standard and ADA compliant units. 
Barrier-free tables have extended tabletops to allow 
wheelchairs to sit at the end of table. Most tables are located 
under picnic shelter on concrete surface. 
 
Water fountains are located on each of the two restroom 
buildings, are accessible in height and placement and include 
barrier-free push button. 
 
Two restroom facilities have limited connection to some park 
facilities via asphalt path. The picnic shelter is connected via 
asphalt path to one restroom. Both are connected from the 
parking lots. However, there is no direct connection via hard 
surface walkway between restroom and the soccer fields, ball 
diamonds, volleyball courts, or play equipment areas. 
Restrooms themselves have no ramps, steps, or thresholds 
limiting entry into the building. Entry doors provide a minimum 
of 32” of clear, unobstructed opening. There are no handicap-
designated restroom stalls, or barrier-free sinks, although sink 
faucets and toilet flushing valves are battery-operated 
automatic units. 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 33  

PHILLIP J. HUBER PARK 
 
There is no sidewalk on the north side of Troy Center Drive at 
this site.  Park users who are not arriving by automobile must 
use the vehicular drive or the lawn area.  There is an asphalt 
ramp leading from the tennis court parking lot to the sidewalk 
at the entrance to the tennis facility, however the ramp is not 
painted and is difficult to see.  The benches, barbecue and 
bleachers surrounding the tennis court are located on the lawn 
area and are not accessible by a barrier-free surface.   
 
The parking area near Huber Park is surrounded by a concrete 
curb, with no break in the curb or ramp over the curb.  There is 
no trail or sidewalk leading from the parking lot to the entrance 
to the Huber Park trail system, users must walk on grass.  The 
Huber Park trail varies is width from 8 to 10 feet wide.  The 
trail is comprised of wood chips and is well maintained.  The 
trail is not barrier-free because during periods of rain or snow 
melt it becomes very soft and is not usable for users with 
mobility limitations.   
 
RAINTREE PARK 
 
This site has an 8-foot wide asphalt pathway leading from the 
sidewalk on John R west into the park and to the play 
equipment. Pathway connects play area with restroom building 
and parking lot. Pathway does not connect to picnic shelter, 
ball diamond, or soccer fields. Nor does the pathway connect 
to the disc golf or volleyball court areas of the park. 
 
There are a total of 126 parking spaces at Raintree Park, 
including six designated handicap spots. Cross slope on all 
spaces does not exceed 2% and access from parking lot to 
asphalt pathway does not exceed 12%. 
 

All play equipment and swings are compliant with the most 
recent barrier-free codes and are accessible from the asphalt 
pathway and parking lot. The safety surface beneath one of 
the play structures is pour in place rubberized material; the 
other play structure uses sand as the safety surface with 
rubberized run-off mats at the slide exits. The swings are set in 
an area contained by concrete curbing with engineered wood 
fiber as the safety surface material. Access into the swing area 
is via concrete ramp from asphalt pathway. 
 
Ball diamonds, soccer fields, picnic shelter, sand volleyball, 
and disc golf areas are not accessible via hard-surface 
walkway from the parking lot or from other areas of the park.  
REDWOOD PARK 
 
Redwood Park has a small 8-space asphalt parking lot with 2 
dedicated handicap spaces. An asphalt pathway, 8 feet in 
width leads from the parking lot to the children’s’ play area and 
swing set. The pathway does not connect to existing sidewalks 
in the adjoining subdivision. Grade throughout the asphalt 
parking lot and pathway is less than 5% with cross grade less 
than 2%. There are no stairs or ramps except for a ramp 
leading into the safety surface of the swing set area. 
 
Playground equipment and swings are ADA compliant. Safety 
surface beneath play structure is pour in place rubberized 
safety surface. Surface in swing area I engineered wood fiber 
with rubberized safety mats directly beneath swing seats. Pour 
in place surface beneath play structure is a ground level. 
Engineered wood fiber in swing area is contained by concrete 
border. A concrete ramp leads from the asphalt pathway into 
the swing area. 
 
There are no pathways leading from the parking lot or play 
areas to the backstop, players’ benches, or bleachers of the 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 34  

ball diamond located at this site. Redwood Park has no 
restroom facility. Drinking fountain is ADA compliant. Picnic 
tables are a mix of standard and ADA compliant tables, 
located throughout the site. Some are on hard surface with 
access from the parking lot. 
 
ROBINWOOD PARK 
 
This site has a one-mile long, 8-foot wide asphalt pathway 
winding from Cherry Street on the north side of the park past 
two small picnic shelters, play equipment, and swings through 
this 19-acre park site. Robinwood Park does not have any 
parking, drinking fountains, or restrooms. However, parking is 
available at Morse Elementary School directly across Cherry 
Street from the park. A crosswalk across Cherry Street 
connects the school parking area with the park. Pathway does 
not connect to sand volleyball court. 
 
All play equipment and swings are compliant with the most 
recent barrier-free codes and are accessible from the asphalt 
pathway and adjacent school parking lot. The safety surface 
beneath one of the play structures is pour in place rubberized 
material; the other play structure uses sand as the safety 
surface with rubberized run-off mats at the slide exits. The 
swings are set in an area contained by concrete curbing with 
engineered wood fiber as the safety surface material. Access 
into the swing area is via concrete ramp from asphalt pathway. 
 
SANCTUARY LAKES GOLF COURSE 
 
This golf course has a paved parking lot with 203 parking 
spaces, of which 7 are accessible spaces.  The entrances, 
drinking fountains and restrooms in the clubhouse facility are 
barrier-free.  Access to the golf carts and golf course from the 
parking lot and clubhouse are barrier-free. 

SCHROEDER PARK 
 
This site consists of a soccer field and a wooded area. There 
is pedestrian access to the site via 5’ wide asphalt pathway 
from the cul-de-sac on Chelsea Court. The pathway crosses 
the corner of the site and leads to a 6’ asphalt pathway on the 
adjacent school grounds. There is a pipe fence across the 
entrance of the pathway at the end of Chelsea Court with a 33” 
opening for pedestrians. Additional access is present from 
Schroeder Elementary School. There is no parking for the 
Schroeder Park site, although there is parking at the adjacent 
Schroeder Elementary School. There are no drinking 
fountains, picnic tables, or restrooms at the site. The site 
contains approximately 10 acres of woods with natural, 
unimproved walking pathway, which is not barrier-free. It does 
not connect to another pathway system inside or outside the 
park. 
 
SYLVAN GLEN LAKE PARK 
 
This site measures 40 acres with a 16-acre lake and 10 acre 
wooded area. There is a gravel drive and gravel parking lot 
with capacity for 16 vehicles. There are no handicap stalls. 
The wooded area has wood chipped trails leading from a 
subdivision to the west. The trails in the wooded area are not 
barrier-free and there are no sidewalks, trails, or pathways 
leading from the gravel parking lot to the lake, or wooded area. 
No drinking fountains, restrooms, buildings, or play equipment 
are available. There are a mix of standard and ADA compliant 
picnic tables located in several areas throughout the park.  



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 35  

TROY COMMUNITY CENTER 
 
All public spaces inside and outside of building are accessible, 
second floor accessible via elevator. Exterior play equipment, 
and asphalt pathway are accessible from parking lot as well as 
from Community Center building. There are a total of 28 
handicap parking spaces in the parking lot. 
 
 
 

 
 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 36  

6. REGIONAL RECREATION OPPORTUNITIES 
 
There are a number of public agencies in the region that 
provide recreational opportunities to residents.  Troy is located 
in Oakland County but borders Macomb County along its 
eastern boundary.  Given this proximity, it is important to 
consider Macomb County when determining regional 
recreational opportunities.   
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN PARKS 
 
The Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) is 
committed to the conservation, protection, management, use 
and enjoyment of the State’s natural resources for current and 
future generations.  Given Troy’s location, State parks in 
Oakland and Macomb County provide a wide range of passive 
and active recreational opportunities to residents, including 
hiking, biking, fishing and boating.  The following table lists the 
State park facilities in Oakland and Macomb County: 
 

TABLE 10 STATE OF MICHIGAN PARKS IN  
OAKLAND AND MACOMB COUNTY 

Park Name, Location Area (Acres)
Dodge #4 State Park, Waterford 139 
Highland Recreation Area, White Lake 5,900 
Holly Recreation Area, Holly 7,817 
Ortonville Recreation Area, Ortonville 5,400 
Pontiac Lake Recreation Area, Waterford 3,745 
Proud Lake Recreation Area, Commerce 
Twp 

4,700 

Seven Lakes State Park, Holly 1,434 
Wetzel State Recreation Area, Harrison Twp 900 
 

MACOMB AND OAKLAND COUNTY PARKS 
 
While typically not as large as State parks, county parks also 
provide recreational opportunities for City residents.  The 
following table lists the park facilities in Macomb County: 
 

TABLE 11 MACOMB COUNTY PARKS 
Park Name  
(Location) 

Facilities 

Freedom Hill County 
Park  
(Sterling Heights) 

100 acres, including amphitheater, 
hiking and biking paths and nature trail, 
playscape, covered picnic shelters and 
pavilions 

 
The following table lists the park facilities in Oakland County:  
 

TABLE 12 OAKLAND COUNTY PARKS 
Park Name  
(Location) 

Facilities 

Addison Oaks  
(Addison Twp) 
 

1,141 acres, including 2 lakes and 
spring fed ponds, swimming, fishing 
and picnicking, 174 camp sites and 
cabin rentals, beach with concession 
building, boat and bike rentals, 6 miles 
of biking and hiking trails, 24-hole disc 
golf course, 2.5-mile paved Buhl Lake 
Trail, 3.6-mile equestrian trail  

Glen Oaks Golf 
Course 
(Farmington Hills) 

18-hole golf course with pro 
shop and club room  

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 37  

 
Groveland Oaks  
(Holly Twp) 
 

360-acre park, including beach, 
concessions and bathhouse building on 
Stewart Lake, boat and bike rentals, 
picnicking, 18-hole mini golf course, 
playscape and skateboard area and 363 
campsites and cabin rentals  

Independence 
Oaks  
(Independence 
Twp) 
 
 

1,088-acre park, including 68-acre 
Crooked Lake, picnicking, fishing, 
swimming, nature study, youth group 
overnight camping area, 10 miles of 
marked nature and ski trails, 2.5 mile 
paved multi-use pathway, boat launch 
(non-motorized boats) and boat rentals, 
picnic areas, ball field, sand volleyball 
courts, playground equipment and 
horseshoes pits, cross-country skiing, ski 
rental, ice skating, ice fishing, warming 
shelters and vending machines 

Lyon Oaks  
(Lyon Twp) 
 

1,043-acre park, including 800 acres of 
wetlands, fenced dog park, 3.6 miles of 
hiking trails, picnic shelter and 
playground, recreation fields, nature 
interpretive center and 18-hole golf 
course with driving range  

Orion Oaks  
(Orion Twp) 
 

927 acres of environmentally-sensitive 
green space, including 90-acre Lake 
Sixteen, 14-acre fenced dog park, boat 
launch, 10 miles of hiking and biking 
trails and wheelchair-accessible fishing 
dock and boardwalk  

 
 
 

 

METROPARKS 

The Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority is a regional special 
park district encompassing Wayne, Oakland, Macomb, 
Washtenaw and Livingston counties.  It was sanctioned by the 
Michigan State Legislature in Act No.147 of the Public Acts of 
1939, and was approved in 1940 by the residents of the five 
counties.  

The Authority is responsible for management of the 
Metroparks, which are funded principally by a property tax 
levy, limited to one-quarter of one mill, and by revenues from 
vehicle entry fees and other user fees for various facilities 
such as golf courses.  

Red Oaks 
Waterpark 
(Madison Heights) 

Water playground with bathhouse, 
picnic and concession areas and 
playground  

Rose Oaks  
(Rose Twp) 

620 acres, including 200 acres of 
wetlands and lakes, fishing and 10 
miles of hiking trails  

Springfield Oaks  
(Davisburg) 

Historic Ellis Barn, community garden, 
multipurpose room and equestrian 
center  

Waterford Oaks  
(Pontiac) 

145 acres, including bmx track, court 
games complex, 4 miles of hiking trails, 
picnic shelters, Waterford Oaks 
Waterpark and “The Fridge” toboggan 
run 

White Lake Oaks 
Golf Course  
(White Lake Twp.)  

18-hole golf course with clubhouse 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 38  

Currently, 13 Metroparks covering almost 24,000 acres, serve 
about 9.5 million visitors annually. The Metroparks are located 
along the Huron and Clinton rivers, providing a greenbelt 
around the Detroit metropolitan area.  Five of these parks are 
located near Troy, three in Macomb County (Wolcott Mill, 
Metro Beach and Stony Creek) and two in Oakland County 
(Kensington and Indian Springs).  The following table 
summarizes the facilities at these five area Metroparks:  

 

TABLE 13 METROPARKS IN MACOMB AND OAKLAND 
COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

Park Name 
(Location) 

Facilities 

Metro Beach 
Metropark 
(Harrison Twp, 
Macomb County) 

770 acres, including 1-mile shoreline 
and 1,600-foot boardwalk on Lake St. 
Clair, bird watching, swimming pool, 
spray park and picnic areas, marinas, 
nature center, par-3 golf course and 
adventure golf 

Wolcott Mill Metropark 
(Ray Township, 
Macomb County) 

2,625 acre park with access to North 
Branch of Clinton River, including 
Camp Rotary, farm learning center, 
historic grist mill and 18 hole golf 
course 

Stony Creek 
Metropark 
(Washington Twp, 
Macomb County) 

4,461 acres, including 500-acre Stony 
Creek Lake, nature center, hike-bike 
trail, beaches, boat launch facilities, 
disc golf course and 18-hole regulation 
golf course 

 

 
Indian Springs 
Metropark 
(White Lake Twp, 
Oakland County) 

2,215 acres of parkland at the 
headwaters of the Huron River, 
including 18-hole regulation golf 
course, nature center, paved hike-bike 
trail, unpaved hiking trails, picnic areas 
and Environmental Discovery Center  

Kensington Metropark 
(Milford Twp, Oakland 
County) 

4,481 acres, including Kent Lake, 18-
hole regulation golf course, disc golf 
course, nature center and farm 
learning center, picnic areas, beaches 
and boat rentals and paved hike-bike 
trail 

 
REGIONAL TRAIL SYSTEMS 
 
Oakland County Parks & Recreation (OCPR) and its partners, 
The Oakland Trails Advisory Council (OTAC), are teaming up 
to expand and coordinate a network of trails.  OTAC envisions 
an interconnected trail system throughout the region for 
enjoyment of the outdoors and fitness activities.  The OTAC 
group is represented by various partners involved in trails and 
pathways.  
 
According to the Oakland County website, there are 72 miles 
of completed trails, 27 miles of trails in the planning, design 
and development stage, and 142 miles of trails under 
consideration in Oakland County.  Macomb County has two 
trail systems totaling 39 miles in length.  Most of the system is 
completed but some portions of the trail are unimproved.  The 
following is a summary of the trail systems in the region:  



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 39  

 
TABLE 14 

REGIONAL TRAIL SYSTEMS 
Trail System Communities Trail Length 
Clinton River 
Trail 

Sylvan Lake, Pontiac, 
Auburn Hills, Rochester 
Hills, Rochester 
(Oakland County) 

12 miles 

Macomb 
Orchard Trail 

Shelby Twp, Washington 
Twp, Bruce Twp, 
Armada Twp, Armada, 
Richmond Twp, 
Richmond (Macomb 
County) 

19.5 miles 

Paint Creek 
Trail 

Rochester, Rochester 
Hills, Orion Twp, Lake 
Orion (Oakland County) 

8.5 miles 

Polly Ann Trail Orion Twp, Oxford Twp, 
Oxford, Addison Twp, 
Leonard (Oakland 
County) 

14.2 miles 

Stony Creek to 
Metro Beach 
Trail 

Shelby Twp, Utica, 
Sterling Heights, Clinton 
Twp, Harrison Twp, Mt. 
Clemens (Macomb 
County) 

19.5 miles 

West Bloomfield 
Trail 

West Bloomfield Twp, 
Orchard Lake, Keego 
Harbor, Sylvan Lake 
(Oakland County) 

4.25 miles 

 

The nearest trail system is the Clinton River Trail, which 
crosses Adams Road approximately 1.25 miles north of Troy’s 
northern boundary at South Boulevard.  The systems are 
interconnected, and comprise a network of approximately 80 
miles of trails.  The following map demonstrates Troy’s 
proximity to this regional network of trails. 
 
Troy has a relatively complete system of 8-foot wide sidewalks 
along the major thoroughfares and 5-foot wide sidewalks on 
many local streets.  These paths are sidewalks and do not 
function as recreational trails.  Some of the City parks feature 
trails, however linkages to adjacent properties are limited.  
There is not a system of recreational trails within Troy.   
 
 
 

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 40  

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 41  

7. DESCRIPTION OF THE PUBLIC INPUT PROCESS 
 
The Michigan Department of Natural Resources mandates that 
the parks and recreation planning process must incorporate 
public input using at least two means.  Troy utilized a Parks 
and Recreation Survey during the preparation of the Plan and 
then provided residents an opportunity to review and comment 
on the Plan before it was officially adopted. 
 
CITY OF TROY PARKS AND RECREATION SURVEY - 2005 
 
One of the first steps of the five-year master plan process is to 
begin to gather input on the recreation issues that are 
important to the community.  Focus groups were assembled 
which included community residents, special interest groups, 
advisory boards and Parks and Recreation staff as a part of 
this process.  On August 31, 2005, focus groups conducted 
information-gathering sessions that assisted in creating the 
City of Troy Parks and Recreation Survey.   
 
A list of property owners was acquired from Troy’s Assessing 
Department and a 5% random sample of property owners was 
selected to receive the community survey with each section in 
the City and a group of businesses getting an equal 

percentage of the surveys.  A total of 3,254 surveys were sent 
out in the Troy community.  Bad addresses accounted for 111 
surveys being returned as undeliverable bringing our 
beginning number of surveys distributed to 3,143.  Nine 
hundred and sixty (946) surveys were returned and analyzed 
for a return rate of 31%.   
 
Once the surveys were returned to Troy Parks and Recreation 
Department, they were given to Pam Kirbach, research 
specialist from Kirbach Consultancy to input into a survey 
software program (SPSS Statistical Software). When the data 
was completely entered, Kirbach analyzed the data and 
formulated results.  An initial report was created based on the 
responses for each of the community survey questions.  This 
final report also included responses from individual groups 
based on sections in Troy, gender, age groups, income, length 
of residency, and ethnic origin.   
 
Summary Of Parks And Recreation Survey  
 
Respondents were asked to list their first, second and third 
choices of facilities they would like to have in their community.  
The following graph summarizes the survey results: 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 42  

New Facilities Choices for Troy Community

4%

42%

9%

3%

7%

5%

7%

3%

3%

5%

16%

7%

10%

4%

4%

5%

4%

15%

4%

7%

9%

8%

7%

4%

7%

7%

12%

5%

3%

1%

1%

1%

2%

1%

1%

1%

2%

2%

1%

2%

1%

1%

2%

3%

1%

2%

2%

2%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70%

Develop Sylvan Glen Lake Park

Trails for Walking/Biking

Community Gardens

Football Field

Small Neighborhood Parks

Softball Fields

Bocce Ball Courts

Develop Five New Parks

Civic Center Task Force Plan

Dog Park

Cricket Field

Tennis Courts

Outdoor Ice Skating

Develop Troy Farm

Upgrade Pro Shop at Sylvan Glen

Lacrosse Fields

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s

Percentage of All Survey Respondents

1st Choice
2nd Choice
3rd Choice

 
Source: City of Troy Parks and Recreation Survey – 2005. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 43  

The graph shows that 67% of respondents listed “Trails for 
Walking/Biking” as their first, second or third choice for new 
facilities.  42% of respondents listed trails as their first choice, 
which exceeded the combined first, second and third choices 
of every other facility listed in the survey.   
 
Respondents were categorized based on various 
socioeconomic characteristics.  The survey yielded the 
following findings: 

• Trails were the number one requested recreational 
facility based on the location of residence, for each 
section in Troy. 

• Trails were the number one requested facility by both 
males (39%) and females (43%). 

• Trails were the first choice of recreational facility for all 
five age groups. 

• Trails were the first choice of recreational facility based 
on length of residency, for each of the five groups. 

• Trails were the first choice of recreational facility based 
on income, for each of the seven income groups. 

• Trails were the first choice (or tied for the first choice) 
of recreational facility based on ethnic origin of 
residents in Troy.  

 
Clearly, “Trails for Walking/Biking” is the number one priority 
for future recreational facilities based on resident input. 
 
“Outdoor Ice Skating” was the second most popular response, 
with approximately 34% of respondents listing it as their first, 
second or third choice. 
 
“Small Neighborhood Parks” was the third most popular 
response, with approximately 26% of respondents listing it as 
their first, second or third choice. 
 

“Dog Park” was the fourth most popular response, with 
approximately 19% of respondents listing it as their first, 
second or third choice. 
 
“Community Gardens” was the fifth most popular response, 
with approximately 18% of respondents listing it as their first, 
second or third choice. 
 
MASTER PLANNING MEETINGS FOR 5 NEW PARKS 
 
In 2003, the Parks and Recreation Department contracted with 
M.C. Smith Associates and Architectural Group to create 
designs for five new City parks.  These parcels were acquired 
as part of the 1999 voter-approved bond proposal. 
Site #1: 22 acres located in Section 22, on Livernois Road 

between Big Beaver and Wattles. 
Site #2: 6.5 acres, located in Section 2, north of Square 

Lake/Willow Grove, west of Kensington Church. 
Site #3: 12 acres, located in Section 11, south of Square 

Lake, east of Willow Grove. 
Site #4: 14 acres, located in Section 24, on John R between 

Big Beaver and Wattles. 
Site #5: 15 acres, located in Section 36, south of Maple and 

west of Milverton. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 44  

The following is a summary of the public input for the master 
plan development process: 
 
TASK DATE 
Program Review Meeting January 30, 2003 
Walk and photograph all sites February 12, 2003 
Site Inventory Review Meeting (w/ Parks 
and Recreation Staff) February 27, 2003 
Site Opportunities/Constraints Review 
Meeting(w/ Parks and Recreation Staff) March 20, 2003 
Opportunities and Needs Visioning 
Workshops  
 Parcels #1, #4 and #5 Neighbors March 20, 2003 
 Seniors Advisory Board April 3, 2003 
 Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens April 3, 2003 
 Parcels #2 and #3 Neighbors April 3, 2003 
 Parks Advisory Board April 3, 2003 
Concept Plan Review Meeting (w/ Parks 
and Recreation Staff) April 23, 2003 
Concept Plan Community Meeting April 30, 2003 
Master Plan Review Meeting May 29, 2003 
Final Plan Review June 2, 2003 
 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
On their November 16, 2006 public meeting, the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board recommended to the City Council 
adoption of the Five Year Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
with revisions/adjustments as proposed.  The resolution is 
included in the Appendix at the end of the document. 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Notice of the Parks and Recreation Plan process was 
published in the Troy-Somerset Gazette on December 4, 
2006.  The notice offered residents the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Draft Plan by January 5, 2007.  
Additionally, the Troy Eccentric newspaper published two 
articles on the planning process, on December 3, 2006 and 
December 10, 2006.  A copy of the notice, the newspaper 
articles and the comments that were provided are included in 
the Appendix at the end of the document.   
 
 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 45  

8. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
The following goals and objectives were developed to guide 
future parks and recreation improvements in the City of Troy. 
 
SCOPE OF RECREATION OPPORTUNITIES 
 

 Provide a range of parks and recreation facilities to 
meet the needs of all components of the population 
and all geographic areas of the City. 

 Provide neighborhood park space, or its equivalent, in 
every residential section. 

 Provide city-wide parks to address the need for active 
and passive recreation pursuits. 

 Provide special use facilities (such as swimming pool, 
golf course, historic village, museum, cultural activities 
center, etc.) to address particular recreation or leisure 
interests of residents. 

 Provide a system of trails, pathways and sidewalks.  
 
MAXIMUM USE OF EXISTING FACILITIES 
 

 Fully develop and utilize existing parks and recreation 
facilities. 

 Expand the range of facilities within each park. 
 Develop existing park sites for their appropriate use in 

consideration of community needs and resource 
limitations. 

 Promote and implement recreation programming at 
parks. 

 Adhere to high standards of maintenance for all parks 
and recreation facilities. 

 Collaborate with other agencies and organizations to 
provide adequate recreation resources for residents. 

 Coordinate recreation plans with those of adjoining 
communities, Oakland County, the Huron Clinton 

Metropolitan Authority, SEMCOG, and State of 
Michigan. 

 Collaborate with the Troy School District and other 
districts in the planning and use of parks and school 
sites, and coordination of recreation and education 
programs.  Written agreements of cooperation should 
be entered into when appropriate. 

 Augment public park and recreation facilities by 
encouraging usable open space and recreation 
facilities in subdivisions, apartments and 
condominiums, and other residential developments.  
Encourage the continued maintenance of all such open 
space and recreation facilities. 

 Advise homeowners’ associations concerning the 
optimal use, maintenance, and control of open spaces 
in subdivisions or other residential developments. 

 Encourage the use of cemeteries as passive 
recreational facilities by providing upgrades and 
amenities.  

 
ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION 
 

 Improve access and transportation to parks and 
recreation facilities. 

 Continue efforts to develop bicycle pathways 
throughout the City. 

 Provide pedestrian and bicycle pathways that are 
separate from the vehicular routes in and approaching 
all parks. 

 Connect sidewalks between signalized intersections 
and parks. 

 Continue to work with other agencies to maintain and 
improve public transportation services, particularly for 
elderly and handicapped residents.  

 
RECREATION PROGRAMS 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 46  

 
 Continue to develop, improve, and offer a 

comprehensive range of recreation programs for 
residents to participate in. 

 Continuously monitor and adjust the programs to the 
changing population make-up of the City. 

 Offer passive and active recreation programs, 
instructional programs, sports leagues, adaptive 
recreation programs, and other programs to address 
the varied interests of residents. 

 Continue to develop and offer programs (such as the 
corporate recreation, adaptive recreation, and senior 
citizens programs) to address the special needs of 
residents. 

 Continue to publish the successful quarterly brochure 
to publicize parks and recreation services and market 
them actively to the community. 

 
PRESERVATION OF NATURAL AREAS 
 

 Encourage protection of natural features, such as 
wooded areas, wetlands, wildlife habitat, natural 
drainage ways, and unusual topography. 

 Provide and maintain high quality medians to add 
character to roadways. 

 Preserve natural features on existing park sites and 
City-owned property to the maximum extent feasible, in 
consideration of the multiple-use character of most 
parks. 

 Maintain street tree program and aim for a street tree 
for every homeowners property. 

 Develop programs and utilize sites in a manner that 
results in a greater appreciation of the City’s natural 
resources. 

 Preservation of Troy Farm and buildings to promote an 
understanding of Troy’s history and strengthen its 
identity as a unique suburban community. 

 Consider open space and natural areas as desirable 
and an important part of the park system. 

 
FUNDING 
 

 Develop stable sources of funding and practice sound 
fiscal management of the parks and recreation system. 

 Pursue all available funding sources for capital 
improvements and operations and maintenance, 
including local sources, state and federal grant 
programs, sponsorships, fund-raising committees, and 
other sources. 

 Charge reasonable user fees to help support park 
programs. 

 Continue to explore opportunities for privatization as a 
management tool. 

 Cooperate with the schools in providing recreation 
resources in order to avoid duplication of services and 
make efficient use of public funds. 

 Develop long-range projections of costs and revenues 
as a management tool for the Parks and Recreation 
Department. 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 47  

QUALITY OF DESIGN 
 

 Provide residents with high quality parks and recreation 
facilities. 

 Adhere to the high quality design specifications when 
developing or replacing recreation facilities or 
equipment. 

 Design quality parks and recreation facilities and 
equipment that will reduce routine maintenance costs. 

 Consider the cost of maintenance and operation in 
designing new recreation facilities. 

 Develop design standards for parks and facilities to 
include fencing, landscaping and amenities for 
aesthetic appeal as well as functionality. 

 
PLANNING 
 

 Maintain an ongoing parks and recreation planning 
process. 

 Review and update the parks and recreation Action 
Plan annually. 

 Provide for citizen input in recreation planning and 
decision-making. 

 Begin development of specific conceptual plans to 
assist in focusing the vision of major projects such as 
trails, open space and undeveloped parcels. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 48  

9. ACTION PLAN 
 
The Action Plan identifies how the City of Troy intends to work 
towards meeting the Plan’s Goals and Objectives over the 
next five years.  The following is a list of proposed projects, 
with justification provided for each.  Note that the list is not 
broken down by year, rather it reflects all of the recreational 
improvements proposed for the next five years. 
 
DEVELOP CITY OF TROY TRAILWAY SYSTEM 
 
The development of a trail system in Troy is the City’s number 
one recreational priority based on the results of the survey.  
There is a wide range of benefits associated with the 
establishment of a trail system: 
  

 Health and physical fitness. 
 Increases property values. 
 Promotes community enrichment/character. 
 Provides connectivity to neighboring communities. 
 Improve landscape aesthetics. 
 Recreation for diverse users. 
 Income for Michigan’s tourism related business. 
 Linkages for a statewide network of trails. 
 Safe non-motorized transportation routes. 
 Conservation of green space and wildlife habitat. 
 Environmental quality education opportunities. 
 Transportation alternative. 
 Connect with existing and proposed bicycle lanes. 

 
The following tasks establish a basic framework for organizing, 
planning, designing, funding and constructing a system of 
recreational trails in Troy through a grass roots community 
effort.  More specific details can be included in the City of Troy 
Trailway Master Plan.  The tasks are listed in chronological 

order and have been incorporated into the Capital 
Improvements Program.  
 

1. Establish City of Troy Trailway Task Force 
A. Create Mission Statement. 
B. Appoint members. 
C. Create meeting schedule. 

2. Develop City of Troy Trailway Master Plan 
A. Determine trailway system location. 
B. Determine phasing for trailway system 

development. 
C. Identify future connections with existing trail 

systems including the Clinton River Trail to the 
north 

D. Identify funding opportunities 

3. Develop support for City of Troy Trailway Master Plan 
A. Media coverage. 
B. Create website. 
C. Create newsletter. 
D. Organize events. 

4. Establish Trail Development Fund 

5. Establish Troy/Rochester Hills Trailway Authority 
A. Create By-Laws and Mission Statement. 
B. Appoint members. 
C. Investigate potential for connection between 

Troy Trailway and Clinton River Trail. 
D. Investigate funding opportunities. 

6. Construct future phases of trailway system, beginning 
with Phase 1 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 49  

DEVELOP OUTDOOR ICE SKATING FACILITY 
 
“Outdoor Skating Facility” was the second highest facility 
choice in the Parks and Recreation Survey.  Approximately 
34% of respondents listed this use as one of their top three 
facility choices.   
 
The pond area is located south of the Family Aquatic Center 
on the Troy Civic Center property.  The Civic Center Priority 
Task Force identified an outdoor skating facility as a high 
priority item in 2004.  The pond would be reshaped to provide 
more surface area with approximately the same amount of 
water.  That is, make it an even, shallow depth (1 to 2 feet) 
and enlarge the area it covers.  Lights and benches would be 
needed along with information signs on how it is to be used.  A 
warming building could be added as the facility gains 
popularity.  Visitors could park at the existing parking lot 
presently used by the Family Aquatic Center and tennis 
facility.   
 
COMPLETE ASPHALT PATHWAYS IN ALL PARKS 
 
Completing a system of asphalt pathways in all parks is 
consistent with the results of the survey, which overwhelmingly 
supported more trails for walking and biking.  Asphalt 
pathways can be used for a wide range of uses including 
walking, running, pushing a stroller, biking, inline skating and 
skateboarding.  Pathways can be linked to sidewalks and trails 
in the abutting neighborhood. 
 
BEGIN DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PARK SITES 
 
M.C. Smith Associates and Architectural Group, Inc. prepared 
master plans for five park sites in 2003.  These park sites are 
located in sections 22, 2, 11, 24, and 36.  Each of these parks 
was designed after consideration of public input generated at 
neighborhood meetings.  Preliminary cost estimates were also 

prepared for each of these five park master plans.  Plans and 
cost estimates are included in a document titled “Master 
Planning for 5 New Parks”, prepared by M.C. Smith 
Associates and Architectural Group, Inc.  Note the master 
plans are conceptual in nature and may be revisited and 
adjusted prior to the preparation of construction documents. 
 
Section 22 New Park Improvements 
 
This 22-acre parcel is proposed to be developed as a 
neighborhood park.  Proposed improvements include the 
following: 

 
• Two youth softball fields, both with 5 V 5 soccer fields 

in the outfield. 
• Children’s play area 
• Basketball court with bleachers 
• Restroom building with maintenance storage facilities. 
• City garden, including gazebo and art in the park pads. 
• Grass volleyball court. 
• Group picnic shelter/performance stage with grills and 

serving tables. 
• ½ mile long loop 8-foot wide paved walking path, 

including connection with neighborhood to the east. 
• 6-foot wide boardwalk through wetland area. 
• Landscaping. 
• Enhanced wetland area. 
• Parking for 167 cars 
 

These improvements will expand the range of both active and 
passive recreational facilities in Troy including access to a 
drain and wetland area.  Specific facilities were requested by 
residents during public meetings.  The walkways are 
consistent with the results of the survey, which listed “trails for 
walking/biking” as the number one recreational priority.  See 
document titled “Master Planning for 5 New Parks”, prepared 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 50  

by M.C. Smith Associates and Architectural Group, Inc., for 
more detailed information on this project.    

 
Section 2 New Park Improvements 
 
This 6.5-acre parcel is proposed to be developed as a 
neighborhood park.  Proposed improvements include the 
following: 
 

• ¼ mile loop 8-foot wide paved walking path and 
boardwalk 

• 6-foot wide boardwalk through wetland area. 
• Overlook decks. 
• Footbridge over Fetterly Drain 
• Small shade structure with table. 
• Benches. 

 
Improvements will provide walking and passive recreation 
opportunities, including access to a drain and wetland area.  
Specific facilities were requested by residents during public 
meetings.  The walkways are consistent with the results of the 
survey, which listed “trails for walking/biking” as the number 
one recreational priority.  See document titled “Master 
Planning for 5 New Parks”, prepared by M.C. Smith 
Associates and Architectural Group, Inc., for more detailed 
information on this project.   

Section 11 New Park Improvements 
 
This 12-acre parcel is proposed to be developed as a 
neighborhood park.  Proposed improvements include the 
following: 

 
• Fenced dog park. 
• Children’s play area. 
• Seating area with benches. 
• Restroom building. 
• ½ mile loop 8-foot wide paved walking trail.  
• 6-foot wide boardwalk through wooded wetland area. 
• Footbridges over the Fetterly Drain. 
• Overlook deck. 
• Shade structure. 
• Prairie plantings and restoration. 
• Parking for 14 cars. 

 
Improvements will provide walking and passive recreation 
opportunities, including access to a drain and wooded wetland 
area.  Specific facilities were requested by residents during 
public meetings.  “Dog Park” was the fourth most popular 
response, with approximately 19% of respondents listing it as 
their first, second or third choice. Dog parks have become very 
popular in cities throughout the United States.  They provide 
opportunities for exercise and socialization for dogs and dog 
owners.  See document titled “Master Planning for 5 New 
Parks”, prepared by M.C. Smith Associates and Architectural 
Group, Inc., for more detailed information on this project.   
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 51  

Section 24 New Park Improvements 
 
This 14-acre parcel is proposed to be developed as a 
neighborhood park.  Proposed improvements include the 
following: 

• Basketball court. 
• Roller hockey rink. 
• Restroom building with maintenance/storage. 
• Bike racks. 
• Two horseshoe pits. 
• Two picnic shelters. 
• Shade structure. 
• Children’s play area. 
• Football/lacrosse field. 
• ½ mile 8-foot wide paved loop walking path. 
• Pedestrian connection to Grove Street and Barnard 

Elementary School. 
• Six 5 V 5 soccer fields/multi-use open lawn area. 
• Landscaping. 
• Picnic tables/benches. 
• Parking for 98 cars. 
 

Improvements will provide walking and passive recreation 
opportunities.  Specific facilities were requested by residents 
during public meetings.  The walkways are consistent with the 
results of the survey, which listed “trails for walking/biking” as 
the number one recreational priority. See document titled 
“Master Planning for 5 New Parks”, prepared by M.C. Smith 
Associates and Architectural Group, Inc., for more detailed 
information on this project.   

Section 36 New Park Improvements 
 
This 15-acre parcel is proposed to be developed as a 
neighborhood park.  Proposed improvements include the 
following: 

• 1-mile walking path. 
• Pedestrian connections with abutting neighborhoods. 
• Covered pedestrian bridge over the Spencer Drain. 
• 6-foot wide boardwalk through wetland area, with 

overlook decks. 
• Benches. 
• Boardwalk. 
• Picnic shelter. 
• Restroom building. 
• Basketball shooting area. 
• Children’s play area. 
• Shade structure. 
• Art in the park pads. 
• Parking for 29 cars. 

 
Improvements will provide walking and passive recreation 
opportunities, including providing access to a wetland area 
and drain.  Specific facilities were requested by residents 
during public meetings.  The walkways are consistent with the 
results of the survey, which listed “trails for walking/biking” as 
the number one recreational priority.  See document titled 
“Master Planning for 5 New Parks”, prepared by M.C. Smith 
Associates and Architectural Group, Inc., for more detailed 
information on this project.   



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 52  

Section 10 New Park Improvements 
 
This 3-acre park is planned as a neighborhood park.  Basic 
amenities are proposed for this site, including a walkway and 
benches.  It will be considered as a potential location for a 
segment of the Troy Trailway system.  The walkways are 
consistent with the results of the survey, which listed “trails for 
walking/biking” as the number one recreational priority.   
 
New Park Improvements – Section 16 
 
This 20-acre site provides has potential to provide passive 
recreation opportunities.  Basic amenities are proposed for this 
site, including a walkway and benches.  It will be considered 
as a potential location for a segment of the Troy Trailway 
system.  The walkways are consistent with the results of the 
survey, which listed “trails for walking/biking” as the number 
one recreational priority.   
 
 

 

 
 
 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 53  

ESTABLISH COMMUNITY GARDENS SITE 
 
“Community Gardens” was the fifth most popular survey 
response, with approximately 18% of respondents listing it as 
their first, second or third choice.  Community gardens provide 
residents with small individual plots of land that can be used to 
plant vegetables or flowers.  Gardening is a passive hobby 
that provides exercise and fresh air.  Amenities to be provided 
would include benches, irrigation, equipment, and storage 
shed.  A site for the garden has not been selected at this time. 
 
DEVELOP SYLVAN GLEN LAKE PARK 
 
Sylvan Glen Lake Park is the largest of Troy’s neighborhood 
parks.  It is a popular park and needs to be updated to take 
advantage of its main amenity, the 16-acre Sylvan Glen Lake.  
Proposed amenities include paved parking spaces, asphalt 
walkways and fishing piers.  Troy has few lakes and rivers so 
fishing opportunities are presently limited.  The asphalt 
pathways are consistent with the results of the survey. 
 
REPLACE RESTROOMS AT FLYNN, FIREFIGHTERS, 
JAYCEE 
 
The restrooms in all three parks are in poor shape and need to 
be replaced.  The cost to update the buildings and bring them 
all into compliance with ADA requirements would be 
excessive.  It makes financial sense to replace the outdated 
buildings with new facilities.  These facilities improve the 
recreational experience for all park visitors. 
 

NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOR MINI-PARKS AND ESTABLISH 
LAND BANK RESERVE FOR SMALL PARK SITES 
 
“Small Neighborhood Parks” was the third most popular 
response, with approximately 26% of respondents listing it as 
their first, second or third choice.  Mini parks provide 
recreational opportunities for neighborhoods, however they are 
limited in size and scope.  Furthermore given their small size 
and isolated locations they are relatively expensive to 
maintain.  The Parks and Recreation Department shall 
conduct a needs assessment for mini parks.  A Land Bank 
Reserve shall be established to purchase and develop mini 
park sites identified by the needs assessment.  
 
ADDITIONAL LAND ACQUISITION 
 
Additional land acquisition may be pursued if future uses of the 
property will address recreational need and will be consistent 
with the Goals and Objectives of the Plan. 
 

 



City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2007 - 2012 
 
 

"Creating Communities through People, Parks and Programs!" 54  

10. APPENDIX 
 
The following items are included in the Appendix: 
 
 MDNR Recreation Grant Inventory 

 Park Concept Drawings: 
 
 Parcel #1 – Section 22 
 Parcel #2 – Section 2 
 Parcel #3 – Section 11 
 Parcel #4 – Section 24 
 Parcel #5 – Section 36 
 New Park Site #7 
 New Park Site #9 

 Resolutions of Adoption from Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Committee and City Council 

 Copy of Opportunity for Public Comment, published in the 
Troy-Somerset Gazette, December 4, 2006. 

 Copy of newspaper article, “Parks master plan needs 
public input”, published in Troy Eccentric, December 10, 
2006. 

 Copy of newspaper article, “Rec plan aims to increase 
residents’ quality of life”, published in Troy Eccentric, 
December 10, 2006. 

 Public comments on Draft Five Year Parks and Recreation 
Plan. 

 Copy of Notice of Public Meeting, published in the Troy-
Somerset Gazette, February 12, 2007. 

 Copy of City Council Resolution of Adoption 

 
 



MDNR RECREATION GRANT INVENTORY 
 
The Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) requires that Five Year Parks 
and Recreation Plans include information on each park that was funded or developed 
using MDNR recreation grant funds.  The following addresses this requirement. 

 
Park Boulan 
Grant # 26-00054 
Grant Type LWCF, Acquisition 
Acreage Acquired 38 acres 
Date 1967 
Description Boulan park has three ball diamonds, three soccer fields, eight 

lighted tennis courts, football field, two sand volleyball courts 
lacrosse field, paved walking path, two picnic shelters, two play 
structures, restrooms and concession area. Condition of facility is 
good with newly renovated tennis courts. One picnic shelter has 
been recently replaced and the other is slated for replacement in 
2007. Play equipment has been replaced within the last 7 years. 

 
Park   Raintree   
Grant #  26-00263   
Grant Type  LWCF Acquisition 
Acreage Acquired 38 Acres 
Date   1972 
Description Park is currently being used as a community park with ball 

diamond, soccer field, 9-hole disc golf course, two play structures, 
sand volleyball court picnic shelter, restrooms and wooded area. 
Park facilities are in good condition with new play equipment 
within the last 7 years. Restroom will require renovation, or 
replacement in near future (3-5 years) 

 
Park Raintree 
Grant # 26-00855, amended 26-00855.1 
Grant Type LWCF, Development  
Date 1977 
Items Constructed Multi-use sports field, shuffleboard courts, bocce courts, handball 

courts, picnic area, roadway, water sewer, restroom.  
Shuffleboard, bocce, and handball were never installed. Reason 
unknown. Condition of existing facilities is good, although 
restroom will require renovation, or replacement in near future (3-5 
years). 

 
Park Brinston 
Grant # B-1164-AD 
Grant Type Michigan DNR Recreation Bond Fund, Acquisition 
Acreage Acquired 9.4 Acres 
Date 1972 
Description Park is currently used as a community park with two soccer fields, 

two ball diamonds, picnic shelter, play structure, two tennis courts, 
basketball courts and restroom. Condition of facilities is good, with 



new picnic shelter and play equipment installed within the last 7 
years. 

 
Park Brinston 
Grant # 26-00382 
Grant Type LWCF, Development 
Date 1973 
Items Constructed Magic Square (combined tennis and basketball court), play area, 

two ball diamonds, group shelter, restroom, parking, landscaping, 
fencing. Current condition of facilities at this park is good, although 
tennis court will require re-surfacing in near future. 

 
Park Brinston 
Grant # 26-00382.1 Amendment 
Grant Type LWCF, Development 
Date 1976 
Description Amended to remove the group shelter and restroom and add one 

shelter. 
 
Park Brinston 
Grant # 26-01502 
Grant Type LWCF, Development 
Date 1993 
Items Constructed Soccer fields, ball diamonds, picnic shelter, restroom building, 

play structure, paved parking lot, lighting parking lot, site 
work/landscaping, bleachers. Facilities at this site are in good 
condition. 

 
Park Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center 
Grant # TF 98-157 
Grant Type Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund, Development 
Date 1999 
Items Constructed New interpretive center with classrooms, library, gift shop, display 

rooms, staff offices, staff kitchen, restrooms, site work, paved 
handicapped parking. Facilities at the site are in excellent 
condition. 

 

















 
 
 
November 22, 2006 
 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Approval of Master Plan Draft 
 
 
At the November 16, 2006 meeting of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board the 
following action was taken: 
 
Resolution # PR – 2006 – 11 – 017 
Moved by Fejes 
Seconded by Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends to the City 
Council adoption of the five year Parks and Recreation Master Plan with 
revisions/adjustments as proposed.  The revisions will be included in the minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 











COMMENTS ON DRAFT FIVE YEAR PARKS AND RECREATION PLAN 
 
The written following comments were submitted to the City of Troy Planning Department following publication of the Opportunity 
for Public Comment in the Troy-Somerset Gazette on December 4, 2006.  Note that the comments were provided verbatim, 
however personal information such as name and address was not included: 
 
1) I have been a nearly life-long resident in Troy (minus 2 years in the military and 5 years in Shelby Township).  I have had the 

pleasure of using most of the parks in Troy at one time or another.  I can say that Troy has some of the best facilities 
available in the area.  The parks are beautifully maintained, provide a number of activities, and are well-placed. 

 
As I get older I have come to realize that there are a few things more important to me now than when I was a child.  Of course 
playgrounds and soccer fields are wonderful and help to get the kids away from their video games, but they don't do much for 
adults unless you have children.   

 
In reading the survey the primary thing residents polled wanted was walking trails.  I would have to agree with that sentiment.  
There are very few areas in Troy where one can go to have a peaceful, scenic walk.  Huber Park's trail is very nice, but the 
condition is not always the greatest (especially in the springtime).  I enjoy walking and always take my dog with me.  The 
woodchip surface at Huber is very hard on her foot pads.  I noted that the goal is to put asphalt pathways down.  Asphalt is a 
better surface, and not as hard on our feet as cement.  Of course crushed limestone is a wonderful surface for both humans 
and canines.  I would also suggest that a plan to maintain the trails in the winter is considered, at least in a few of the parks.  I 
walk all year round and find it difficult to locate a walking location where I can be assured of two things:   

 
1.  There is a sidewalk available for the entire length 
2.  The sidewalk is properly cleaned of snow and/or ice 

 
I have frequented Rochester Hills in the winter because they have asphalt sidewalks which are maintained by the city. 

 
The second thing I would like to address is the 4th most important on the survey, and that is a dog park. 

 
I own Faith the Firedog, she is a very popular dog who visits all of the schools, preschools, and senior centers in Troy.  Faith 
is a Border Collie.  She enjoys lots of exercise.  Several years ago I sold my home and moved to an apartment in Troy so that 
I could have more time to spend walking and exercising (lawn care takes a lot of time!) with my dog.  I have found that the city 
is very lacking in acceptable facilities for our canine friends.  There is currently no place in Troy where I can legally take my 
dog and use the Chuck-it for her to run.  I usually end up behind fire station 2 where there is wide-open space and little 



chance of her causing any trouble.  I have taken her to Sylvan Glenn in the summer and firefighter's park as well.  I have to 
interrupt our game whenever people are near.  Because the city requires a leash, I am breaking the law any time I take her off 
leash to play.  I have common sense when it comes to my dog, whenever people are nearby or other dogs are around she 
goes back on leash.  Unfortunately, not everyone practices that behavior.  I have seen numerous occasions where dogs have 
been allowed off leash to roam around children playing on the swings and other playground equipment. 

 
Most of the homes in Troy have smaller lots and many subdivisions do not allow fencing.  There has been an increase in the 
number of condominiums built recently.  There are a large number of apartment dwellers.  Because of this there are a large 
number of people looking for a place to take their canine companion to for exercise.  In my walking excursions I talk to a 
number of dog owners who are all wanting a dog park.  I know that the trails were high on the list, but I believe that having a 
dog park (as do several surrounding communities) is a necessity and should be given high priority. 

 
I would suggest that temporarily, and area in a park be fenced in so that dog owners have a temporary place to take Fido.  Of 
course having a pond and other dog-friendly items is nice, but I think many people are looking for a place to play ball and 
socialize their dogs.  The dog-owning community may even be willing to put in some sweat-equity or fund-raising help, I know 
I would. 

 
2) I quickly reviewed the plan and it looks quite comprehensive.  I was most pleased to see inclusion of hiking trails and intention 

to connect to hike/bike trails in Oakland and Macomb Counties.  I don't always have time to throw my bike in the car and drive 
to one of these trails.  I often just bike in Troy, which is like taking my life in my hands.  Besides deplorable road conditions for 
bikes on many of our streets, motorists do not know how to "share the road."  I know this is probably a streets issue and not 
parks and recreation, but in other states I have seen signs that say just that - Share the Road with a picture of a bicyclist.  It 
might be nice to have those on the few streets we have that actually have a shoulder.   Thanks for all the hard work.   

 
3) Very nice plan.  I sure hope you can speed up the development of this parcel since we need the park very badly.  We have 

nothing south of Maple. 
 
4) We are tandem bike riders who live in the city of Dearborn, MI. There is a recently completed bike trail which is an extension 

of the Edward Hines bike trail in Dearborn. It goes from where the Hines bike trail formally ended at Ford road to the west 
Dearborn shopping district. We have used and enjoyed it many times since it opened. Dearborn, however, has virtually no 
bike lanes on its city streets. So, we travel to other cities that do. For example, we frequently go to the Paint Creek trail 
between Rochester and Lake Orion. However, since Troy doesn't have any bike trails or bike lanes either that we are aware 
of, we probably will not have any occasion to visit your city.  

 



5) I was happy to see an emphasis on walking/biking trails in the proposed five-year plan. However, I believe the implications of 
the plans regarding cycling should be carefully considered.  Trails that combine cycling and other uses are less than ideal. 
The speed differences between cyclists and others on the trails create dangers and conflicts that are hard to manage. Slow 
riders will be traveling 10 m.p.h., many average riders 15 m.p.h., and recreational riders nearly 20 m.p.h. Those speeds make  
sharing a trail with dog walkers  and  strollers  difficult, and I'm sure dog-walkers and stroller pushers feel the same.  Also, 
unless access is limited, cyclists are vulnerable to being struck by motor vehicles pulling out of driveways or making turns.   A 
better alternative for riders is on-street bike lanes; there has been a reasonable amount of research on bike lanes, which 
should be available from the League of Michigan Bicyclists, among other sources. 

 
From a rider's point of view, the design and execution of most "bike" trails is primarily for small children. When riders have a 
choice, they almost always will use a street over a multi-use path.  Probably the most heavily ridden street in the Detroit area 
is Hines Drive in western Wayne County. The vast majority of riders - hundreds of riders on a weekend - are on a wide paved 
shoulder, even though there is a multiple use trail that parallels the road.  Also, I feel it is important to encourage planning 
with other communities. Although the idea of coordinating with the Rochester communities is a good one, the best strategy 
would be to create a system that links the county from north to south and east to west.   Though I'm primarily a recreational 
rider, I and some of my colleagues cycle to work in Troy occasionally, and would ride more often if we didn't have to make a 
choice between sharing lanes with cars and trucks or dealing with the safety issues of sidewalks. 

 
6) It would be inexpensive for the city to place several picnic tables at the Sylvan Glen Lake Park near the driveway and 

overlooking the lake.  There has been only one table there for the last several years.  Many times I have heard residents 
comment that it would be nice to stop there for lunch or dinner or just to sit and chat with friends. Several older friends said 
they would feel safe there because the tables would be visible from Rochester Road. 

 
7) As a citizen in Troy for 33 years, I feel strongly about Troy’s future.  Troy needs a bike trail and a dog park like many other 

surrounding communities have. 
 
8) The plan for parks should allow for more space for dog park.  The planned and proposed dog park is not big enough. 

 
9) The last sentence on page 48 of the “Draft” describes the frustration of walkers, joggers, runners and bicyclists: “There is not 

a system of recreational trails within Troy”.  
  
10) The Draft proposes the establishment of the “Troy/Rochester Hills Trailway Authority”. I wholeheartedly support this initiative 

and volunteer to participate as a committee member or in any way required to improve the trail environment in the City of 
Troy. 



 
11) I ask that you vote "yes" on this drafted plan.  I especially approve of the plans for the land site located in between the Troy 

City Building, Troy Library and Troy Community Building.  It will give us a "hometown" feeling with activities for all ages and 
physical capabilities. 

 
I know that the City of Troy owns the land in between the backyard of some Wexford Condo residents, some Garry Street 
residents, and St. Joseph Church.  Perhaps I missed the plan for this area.  Please enlighten me.  Thank you for giving 
residents the opportunity to voice their opinion regarding this drafted play. 

 
12) It seems I am with the majority of Troy residents and would like to see trails added to connect to the other trail ways.  I am a 

runner and my husband runs and bikes, my kids are also very active and enjoy running, biking and hiking.  I think connecting 
to the Clinton River Trail would enhance the activity in our city.  I like that on any given day, rain or shine, I see people out 
walking, running or biking, we have a very active community and I think it would make Troy a more desirable place to live to 
have the trail system in place.  I would also like to see the ice rink in place and Sylvan Glen updated. 

  
Nice job on the proposal.  It was written clearly and answered all of my questions. 

 
13) I have been a Troy resident for 18 years and recently the property off Rochester Road (north of Wattles) and adjacent to my 

home has been considered for purchase by the city for park renovation.  I also just read the article in the Troy Times and so 
would like to send you my opinions. 

 
My family relocated to Troy so many years ago for 2 reasons:  the excellent school system, and also to reside in a more 
peaceful community.  We have enjoyed the woods behind our home, along with all the wildlife, which includes many deer. 

 
I would like to see as many nature areas as is possible be preserved in Troy, as I think it provides balance with all the many 
businesses that we also have in our community. 

 
I think keeping wooded areas is important, along with our deer, with maybe walking trails so that people can enjoy the nature 
atmosphere.  I definitely am (very adamantly) against creating dog parks.  I don't think residents should be subjected to the 
noise, mess, and other potential hazards.  My mother, who also owns a home in Troy and has a dog, even agrees with me on 
that one! 

 
I appreciate your consideration of my views as the planning for our community continues. 

 



14) I was very excited to see all the great plans and appreciate the opportunity to voice my opinion and give some suggestions.  I 
was especially interested in the plans for the Troy Civic Center.   

  
It has always concerned me that there seemed to be no plan to utilize the land between the Civic Center, Waterpark and 
Library.  Our city does not have a truly defined meeting place for public events that could be our "town center".   

  
This area would fulfill this purpose beautifully.  The planned amphitheater would be a great beginning but there would also be 
a need for hard surfaces around the structure to allow handicapped and elderly safe use.  Benches would be welcoming 
along paths between the amphitheater and the fountain area with lots of soft night lighting along the paths and in the trees to 
encourage evening use by families.  Picnic tables scattered among trees, slightly off the paths, would encourage use by 
surrounding office workers for lunches, impromptu open-air meetings and family picnics.   

  
We need to further embrace the arts.  Sculptures and other art along walkways and in outdoor meeting areas would heighten 
the experience.  It would be incredible if the city could somehow purchase the Ford & Earl Building and develop it into a 
permanent area for art enrichment:  classes, exhibits, outdoor art and craft shows and sales, summer art camps for youth.  
Troy schools were given an award for their art excellence - cannot the city take this one step further?  This hub would 
become an amazing destination for the citizens of Troy. 

  
And that is what the city needs - a destination - a town center.  The high schools could have their homecoming parades end 
in this area.  It would be perfect for summer concerts on the lawn.  The holiday tree lighting could take place here with hot 
cocoa, caroling and ice skating at the ice rink. The point is, large events for the citizens could be planned when such a 
wonderful place would be available.  

  
It was stated that there would be trails.  Perhaps consideration could be given to developing a hard surface trail around the 
perimeter of the entire property designated for fitness walkers and runners to hopefully make the internal paths safe for less 
active movement.  Maybe there would be some way, even, that cross-country skiers could share this pathway in the winter if 
they were made wide enough. 

  
It would be wonderful to update the library on the scale of Southfield's and surround it with similar beautiful garden rooms, 
large windows, a fireplace and appropriate seating overlooking the peaceful re-landscaped views.  I saw that enhanced 
gardens were planned for one area but the entire piece of property badly needs to be considered for treatment.  We would 
need to attend to the project one section at a time, especially considering construction traffic, but the plans do not indicate 
that thought has been given on developing the entire property into a truly cohesive park-like vista. 

  



Because my college major was Horticulture, I can envision such wonderful things for this property.  I have probably touched 
on items that have already been fully developed but I was unable to determine this by reading your five-year plan.  It did 
appear that several parks had been carefully planned and the Civic Center area is in the beginning design process.  I have 
recently retired and, having more spare time, am available to help in any way that I can within my scope of expertise on any 
future planning sessions.  

 
15) It is great to see the city look into the needs of the citizens.  I briefly reviewed the plan (Troy Times made me aware) and am 

very pleased.  I realized that we only have until January 5th to provide feedback so I wrote this right away.  Consistent with 
the main desire noted in the survey, it would be excellent to see some mountain biking trails go into the city parks plan. 

 
I occasionally go to Stony Creek, Pontiac Lake, and other area mountain biking locations.  Unfortunately, with traffic and the 
time to load and unload bikes a great deal of time and energy goes into traveling to these excellent areas.  Placing a (some) 
small area(s) for riding could help tremendously for off road riding skills building and quality riding time for all.  Further, traffic 
congestion and energy usage could be kept to a minimum with: ride to trails. 

 
I live in the Troy Meadows subdivision and am familiar with a couple of locations that would be ideal for various reasons.  
First, the Stage Nature Center and or Sylvan Glen could make decent areas but the former may compete with other uses 
such as hiking and bird watching.  Second, a trail between I-75 and the Troy Aquatic Center, Huber Park, and Troy Meadows 
Subdivision.  There is an earthen berm and drain / creek running thru this area making it interesting.  Also, a pedestrian / 
cycling connection to the neighborhood and Wattles would be desirable (if easement exists or could be obtained).  
http://www.mmba.org/ is an organization that may help guide the design and building of a trail.  Much useful information can 
be found particularly at: http://www.mmba.org/portal.php?h=trailschool. 

 
Please consider adding mountain biking trails to the plan.  I would be happy to provide additional feedback or even participate 
on a regular basis to see something like I have described come to fruition. 

 
16) Thanks for making us aware.  I'll send a short email in support.  

But what about the motorcycle drag race track?   
 

17) Generally our family is enthusiastic about the plan. We are especially looking forward to the trail system and the connection to 
the Clinton River Trail. It would also be nice to some day connect to the Stoney Creek to Metro Beach Trail. 

 
Are there any plans to provide increased security to homes that will be in close proximity to the new trails? 

 



I believe Troy could better use the retention ponds and flood plain property in the city for Parks and Recreation facilities. 
Many are now fenced in and are unusable and unattractive. The million square foot retention pond in the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Long Lake Roads is a terrific asset with a small creek running through it and is largely unused. I presume this 
is a liability issue, but somehow other communities seem to be able to use these kinds of resources. 

 
I noticed in the Draft Plan that Troy Parks & Recreation Plan to "advise homeowners associations on the optimal use, 
maintenance, and control" of subdivision commons areas. I am involved with our homeowners association and would like to 
get networked in with these people. Who are they? 
Thank you for the opportunity. 

 
18) I am a 27 year resident of the City of Troy.  It appears that the park plan has recommended a separate entity to develop the 

number one desire of its residents - a recreational trailways system for biking/hiking/walking.  I am also a long distance biker.  
Though the plan makes the statement that there are bike routes located throughout the city and that there are sidewalks that 
run parallel to our city streets, I can attest to the fact that they are wholly inadequate for bike riding.  Many of the sidewalks 
are old and narrow bordered by hedges and trees that are unkept, either forcing the biker off the path or preventing visibility.  
The sidewalks are not level, when they cross a street, many have curbs and many simply end in the middle of nowhere.  The 
other option, riding on the street is equally harrowing - there are no bike shoulders on many of our streets, there is either a 
curb with no shoulder or no bike shoulder at all leaving one to navigate the gravel. Many of our suburban bike routes are on 
subdivision streets that are in dire need of repaving with 6 inch wide cracks that are very dangerous for the bike tire. The most 
harrowing experience is crossing the interstates on Livernois, Crooks and several other locations within the city. I am sure my 
comments are not new but as an avid biker and resident I hate riding my bike in Troy - it is not safe, relaxing or enjoyable in 
any sense of the word.   I have to go outside of the city, i.e. Rochester Hills to find a place to ride.  My suggestion is to 
duplicate what Rochester Hills has done.  They have 6 foot asphalt pedestrian paths that parallel their city streets.  This has 
several advantages for the biker - there are no bumps in the path, it is wide enough to pass a pedestrian, you can stay out of 
the congested traffic and you can get anywhere easily and safely on these paths. I appreciate the parks and recreation plan, 
but there is nothing in it to satisfy my immediate need and desire to bike.  Currently, I am considering moving out of this city 
so I can be close to one of our trailway systems to pursue my hobby.  With all of the planning and building that has gone on 
around me within the last 27 years, it is a shame that a path system was not integrated at that time. Unfortunately, a trailways 
system will most likely not happen within my tenure here in this city. 

 
19) I would like to take this opportunity to comment on the Subject Draft Parks and Recreation Plan.  I like the overall approach 

and direction of the Plan contents.  I agree with the majority of respondents that my number one desire to see an outdoor ice 
skating rink and more hiking, walking and biking trails in the parks.   

  



Another top priority, in my opinion, should be the preservation of natural areas in their present state, or even the 
enhancement of these areas back to their natural state.  One area in particular that I highly desire to see preserved is the 
wetland habitat located west of John R. Rd and south of Square Lake Rd., behind the Troy Lanes bowling alley.  As you 
know, this habitat supports nesting of the Great Blue Heron.  There aren’t any other habitats like this, as far as I know, in the 
city of Troy.  I imagine that the heron that visited my backyard pond this fall was an immature heron that was born at this site.  
My children were able to see this heron up close, a thrill that many other residents can enjoy if this, and other wetland 
habitats, are preserved.   There are many tried and true methods for enhancing natural areas back to their natural state from 
planting more native vegetation, adding nesting boxes/platforms for birds, to actually building a wetland area.   

  
The only way that the city of Troy will preserve some of the wildlife habitat left in Troy (and there isn’t much left) is to convert it 
to parkland/wildlife viewing areas.  Otherwise, as we have all witnessed, any undeveloped land, and hence land that will 
support wildlife, will be developed into either housing or commercial land in the not-to-distant-future. 

  
Thank you for including my comments in the register and considering them as you implement this Plan. 

 
20) I am writing to express my full support for the proposed City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan.  I would also like to 

thank Carol Anderson and her staff for recognizing and responding to input from the citizens of Troy in the creation of this 
plan.   
 
In my opinion, this plan reflects not only the desires of the citizens of Troy, but also to a large extent, the expectations of new 
home buyers on a national scale.  The attached portion of a survey from the National Association of Realtors and the National 
Association of Home Builders indicates the key amenities new home buyers seek.  From this survey it can be seen that Troy 
would likely score well on the #1 expected item -- access to highways -- but would score quite poorly on the #2 and #3 items -
- trails and sidewalks on both sides of the road.  Having the amenities buyers expect in a community is one of the keys to the 
City of Troy maintaining it's property values as well as its overall quality of life.  This 5 year plan is the first step toward 
correcting part of the deficiency. 
 
The proposed plan is also consistent with the results of recent study/futures activities.  The Maple Road redevelopment study, 
the Big Beaver Corridor study and several of the Vision 2020 futures task team reports all stressed the need to make the City 
more walkable/bikeable.  Having a City-wide system of trails along with pathways through developed parks, as proposed in 
the 5 yr. plan, is fully supportive of those recommendations. 
 
While trails might be my own #1 priority, I am fully supportive of the other actions proposed in the plan.  Having access to an 
outdoor skating facility* would be outstanding. Additional developed parks are also desirable. 



 
One caution I'd offer in considering these additional facilities is to try where possible to avoid facilities that appeal to a narrow 
portion of the population and are seasonal in their use.  For example, the current Aquatic Center appeals mostly to toddlers 
and their parents.  And, it is definitely seasonal in its use.  The facility sits unused for the majority (?) of the year.  Now if 
somehow the Aquatic Center locker room could be configured to be used for warming and putting on skates for the Outdoor 
Skating Facility that would leverage existing investments.  Of course, it wasn't designed with that use in mind.   
 
Another consideration in prioritizing specific park developments is to provide facilities that interest older teens and college age 
students.  It is critical to Troy's future to retain and attract as many young adults as possible to offset the existing "brain drain" 
that occurs as Troy students go to college and don't return.    At some level there should be a visionary or strategic aspect to 
the plan as well as its direct response to citizen input.  A climbing wall probably won't get a lot of support from senior citizens, 
yet, it may well attract a segment of the population which the City needs to expand. 
 
Just my thoughts... 

 
21) I have reviewed the plan and am pleased with the output.  It is unclear when the pathways for walking and bikes will be 

developed.  It seems the plan to build new parks will happen first, even though the pathways were the number one 
recreational priority for survey respondents.  Given the cost of gas, the aging population and the Big Beaver Corridor Plan, I 
think the pathways should be the number one effort.  The aging US and Troy population will most likely use walking as a 
primary fitness choice.  We really need to have a safe, pleasant and accessible way around the city and neighborhoods for 
pedestrians and bikers. 

 
22) I read with interest the draft of the City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 2006-2011.  My overall impression is that 

it is a good plan.  The statistics presented were very helpful in making the plan completely understandable.  It is an ambitious 
plan and some of the amenities may be more costly than Troy can afford at this time.  However, I have not seen any cost 
projections so that may not be the case. 

  
One issue that I have with the plan is the meager response to the desire of the community to have Dog Parks.  As I read the 
plan, you are only considering one Dog Park.  To make matters worse you are projecting the size of the Dog Park to be only 
1/3 of an acre.  As Troy Parks and Recreation manages over 850 acres of park land, it seems to me that man’s best friends 
merit much more than 1/3 of an acre.  There are homes with dogs in fenced in backyards that are bigger than 1/3 of an acre. 

  
Colorado is known to be quite dog friendly.  I’ve talked to acquaintances in Denver who thought that 1/3 of an acre was 
laughable.  They said that an absolute minimum would be twice that size and preferably more like 2 acres.  As our City 



Manager Mr. Nelson recently came from Colorado, he should have some good insight into what a Dog Park should be like. 
Although the plan doesn’t specify, I assume that the plan will include double gating and a source of drinking water for the 
dogs. 

  
You correctly state that “Dog Parks have become very popular in cities throughout the United States.  Dog Parks provide 
opportunities for exercise and socialization for dogs and dog owners.”  I might also add that studies have shown that pets, 
particularly dogs, are conducive to the mental health of older people and Troy does have an aging population.  So the dogs 
help peoples’ minds as well as help them get exercise to stay physically fit.  Dog Parks are good for everyone, not just dog 
owners.  Unfortunately not all dog owners are responsible and in absence of Dog Parks some let their dogs run loose.  So 
Dog Parks are a win-win benefit. 

  
The City of Troy is looking into purchasing the Kwitt property (6.3 acres) on the west side of Rochester Road, north of 
Wattles.  In my opinion, that would be an excellent place to carve out an acre for a second Dog Park. 

  
Thank you for your consideration of my thoughts. 

 
23) I have reviewed the plan and am very encouraged and excited about what you hope to achieve.  I'm looking forward to 

enjoying the results in the next couple of years. Great Job! 
 
I just had one suggestion regarding the much needed walking and biking trails, please consider not paving all paths (maybe 
the longer ones) which would still be appropriate for walking and biking, but would also provide the many runners in Troy a 
couple of places to run without enduring the pounding impact of concrete or asphalt which makes a huge difference in the 
legs! 
 
That's it.  Thanks for accepting the input!  

 
24) I reviewed your park plans as proposed and they look good. I just have a few comments about names and landscaping. 

 
Most parks have a lot of trees and it would be nice to see a couple of parks named after them and even used as focal points 
in the entrance-ways, etc. A good example is the Ginkgo tree (Ginkgo Park), which is one of the finest landscape trees you 
can plant. There are many different cultivars to choose from and they can be planted in select areas around the park and at 
the entrance-ways. Some unusual cultivars could even be labeled and added at later dates through procurement or 
donations. Different species of trees should be used as well to avoid planting one kind. Other choices could be the Chinkapin 
Oak tree (Chinkapin Park), Hickory tree, (Hickory Park, Shagbark Park), Sugar Maple tree (Sugar Maple Park), etc.  



 
It would be good to see more native trees used in parks as well, especially if the site will remain with most of the original soil. 
Portions of some parks could even have labels on some trees similar to an arboretum for native and introduced species. 

 
Troy's Landscape Analyst, Ron Hynd, is quite knowledgeable about trees and can assist you with the aforementioned 
suggestions. 

 
Feel free to contact me for clarification or questions on the above and thank you for allowing me to comment. 

 
25) I live in Rochester Hills, but commute to and work in Troy.  I am an avid bicyclist and know of at least three cycling clubs that 

meet and ride in Troy.  The addition of a trail system to Troy would be a tremendous asset to the city.  There are several 
appealing connections to other trails that could enhance the experience of cycling and provide an alternative to automobile 
commuting. 

  
I know I am not alone in my conviction that given a safe and well-maintained system of connecting trails, I would commute to 
work three out of four seasons of the year.  This is not a trivial point.  My commute from Rochester Hills is approximately 10 
miles, but it takes me 30 minutes to an hour to commute during rush hour.  Livernois is a parking lot between Square Lake 
and Auburn Roads.  A bicycle commute would save me time and money, and make me healthier.  It would also ease traffic 
and pollution in Troy. 

  
I hope you will consider a paved trail as opposed to a crushed stone trail.  Crushed stone is messy and destructive for 
bicycles.  Paved trails can be used by walkers, runners, bladers, baby strollers, wheelchairs, etc., and are low-maintenance. 

  
I also hope you will study the trail systems now in use and under development in surrounding communities, and work to 
connect the Troy trail system with those.  This would open countless fitness and explore options for pedestrians and cyclists 
alike. 

  
I greatly appreciate having the opportunity to comment on your plan.  Your citizens have excellent instincts and your 
government is wise to listen to them. 

  
Thank you for considering my input. 

 
26) I'd like to see the dog park in proposed park section 11 developed first.  Based on the other dog parks in the metro Detroit 

area, it doesn't take much more than putting up a fence and making a gravel parking lot.  You don't need any other amenities, 



not even running water, because most dog park users know to bring their own water.  And the park users wouldn't be very far 
from home anyway. 

 
27) Goals and Objectives  

The first item listed under “Scope of Recreational Opportunities” is “Provide a range of parks and recreation facilities to meet 
the needs of all components of the population and all geographic areas of the City.” I would ask that this plan expand the 
range of facilities beyond the items that were previously agreed to in plans developed prior to this plan, that being the Troy 
Civic Center Plan and the 5 Undeveloped Park Master Plans. Even these plans really only provided a limited range of new 
facilities: an outdoor skating rink (we do have private indoor ones at Big Beaver and John R), a roller hockey rink (although 
Parks & Rec has in the past provided a potable rink used on parking lots), and the dog park. The other items are only 
increasing what we already have. An item that comes to my mind that was a hotly contested issue for this city was the desire 
for a cricket field. If that desire still has the backing that it had a few years ago, I would suggest looking at site 6 (proposed F) 
to see if a cricket field could be fitted there. Since the dimensions were not provided, I do not know if it would be wide enough 
(450 foot width is needed for the field) although the depth (550 feet) does not seem to be a problem. Let us expand the range 
of opportunities, not just the amount of opportunities.  

 
Walking/Biking Trails  
You address the large walking/biking trail system with action item 1 and paved trails with action item 3. Since only 4 of the 
current park facilities have unpaved nature trails (table 8), I would hope you would add more unpaved trails for walking. Every 
trail does not need to be paved, but I didn’t see any action item for more unpaved trails in the existing parks. You can have a 
main trail that is paved with splinter trails that are unpaved, especially when you want them to go by natural features. I hope 
the trails in the undeveloped parks as they are developed are not with paved trails only.  

 
Restrooms  
You cite the need to replace some restrooms. Unfortunately, you close these restrooms during the winter. Would you 
consider adding some self-contained units that would be open year round? I know firefighters could use one by the disc golf 
course and it would also help alleviate some of the residential complaints. It would also be used by the volleyball players.  By 
adding self-contained units in other parks that don’t have any restroom facilities, you will increase their usage.  

 
These are a few of my comments concerning the action plan within the new Master Plan. I have others, but these address 
my major ones.  



 
28) As a Troy resident who loves nature and the beauty of the natural setting of 

Sylvan Glen Lake Park I wish to ask you and strongly urge you to think 
again before making changes to this beautiful natural setting that would 
destroy or diminish the very thing that makes it unique. 
 
Adding cement (both parking lot and walking path) would be completely redundant.  The area needs earth to allow for natural 
water run off-not cement. 
 
Does anyone there remember the old 70's song 
"Put Up A Parking Lot"?  "Don't It Always seem to go that you don’t know what you've got till it's gone- sweet paradise, put up 
a parking lot. 
Cut all the trees, put 'em in a tree museum 
Wait all night, pay a buck and a half just to see ‘em... 
Don't it always seem to go that you don't know what you've got till it's gone 
Sweet Paradise 
Put Up A Parking Lot. 
 
From what we observe and from conversations with the people who fish here 
they don’t need piers or cement.  They are happy with wading boots, and sweet 
grass under foot to walk on. 
 
You can improve this park by keeping it clean (there has been a huge improvement in the last year) and by sending a patrol 
in early morning and late 
evening hours to check on the occasional illegal dumper. 
 
Thank you for reading my input. 

 
29) After reviewing the parks and recreation plan, I was disappointed to see no emphasis on a free resident access swimming 

solution.  Troy has a great parks system with soccer, baseball tennis and more.  All are available at no cost to city residents.  
Unfortunately, the only outdoor swimming option, the Aquatic Center, is priced cost prohibitively for Troy families.  Other 
communities like all five Grosse Pointes, have beautiful lakefront parks that are available at no additional cost to residents.  I 



do not understand why this cannot be done in Troy with the Aquatic Center.  The Matt Pryor "pay as you go" strategy was 
wrong.   

  
I challenge the city of Troy to eliminate fees for the aquatic center.  Drivers’ licenses or student ID cards could be used for 
access.  If ID cards are needed for some reason, they can be offered at minimal cost ($2-$3). 

  
Please give this careful consideration.  Troy is a leading community that should provide leading services to its tax paying 
residents. 

 
30) As Todd Scott has indicated, although many positive things have been listed for trail bike riding, no mention of bike lanes has 

been described for road-bike lanes.  Whether intentional or not, there are those of us who appreciate efforts for park trail 
riding as well as protection on the road with a space that is reserved for two-wheel traffic.  

  
All things considered, please keep up the good work.  

 
31) I am a Troy resident, living on Davis Ct. (e. of Rochester s. of Long Lk).  This is my input relative to the Parks Plan which I 

read on-line.  My wife and I run / jog for health and have to go  all the way to Rochester's Paint Creek trail.  The survey 
summarized in the plan makes it clear that people want more places in their own city where running, walking, hiking, & biking 
can be done.  If you built one good trail obviously 70% of the Troy responders would be happy.  But, the plan doesn't seem to 
get to this point directly. A second popular item on the survey is improving Sylvan Lake Park.  So -- combine these two 
items!!!  Secure the land completely around the lake and put in a level, 10' wide, crushed limestone trail all the way 
around it -- what a great scenic run/walk -- the residents of Troy -- especially me and my wife would be thrilled.  It would 
become so popular that you would have to add bigger parking lots!  MORE TRAILS for runs/walks of over 3 miles!!!  Street 
running is unsafe.  Those are my comments! 

 
32) I wanted to submit a few comments on the 5 year parks plan. I'm really sorry that they are late. 

 
1. It would be really great it Troy could develop a greenway system, connecting the local parks, and connecting to the existing 
greenways in surrounding Cities. 
 
2. It would also be great if Troy had a dog park, however, the park should be located in an area that is already de-forested, 
and not in a natural area with forested/herbaceous wetlands. A number of the northern parcels that were acquired for new 
parks are forested and herbaceous wetlands. These are really important resources for protecting water quality, preventing 
flooding, and for wildlife habitat. I would hope that the new parks that are developed on these sites preserve these wetlands, 



and include education about the value of wetlands. I would also hope that the development of the new parks at these 
locations does not involve wetland fill or deforestation. 
 
3. The proposed collaboration with other regional entities is great. 
 
4. Development of Asphalt Pathways in All Parks: I would disagree that completing this task is completely consistent with the 
community's request for more trails. There is a great value in providing more natural trails, such as woodchip trails. There is 
definitely a value in having some paved trails for rollerblading and ADA accessibility, but extensive asphalt trails are not 
needed in every park. 
 
5. It would also be really cool if Sylvan Glen could be made more accessible for walking and wildlife watching during the non-
golf season. 
 
Thanks! 

33) I know I'm writing list a little late but due to the holidays, a vacation, and life in general I wasn't able to submit my comments 
by January 5th.  I'm writing this email due to my concern about some of the blanket statements and proposed plans for Troy's 
park development.  As the technology manager at a growing market research firm I am acutely aware of the mistakes that 
companies, or in this case the City of Troy, make when receiving feedback from consumers or constituents and not clarifying 
the feedback.  My biggest concern is the blanket statement "Complete Asphalt Pathways in All Parks".  Which leads to the 
question, is the intention of residents that responded to have "more pathways for walking and biking" to have ALL parks 
paved?  What is their intended use of the pathways?  As avid outdoor enthusiasts, my wife and I would love to see Troy add 
bike paths that link into the Rochester paths and Clinton River trail.  We love to bike and would use these paths frequently but 
I question whether we would use the paths in smaller parks.  Would the paths be one way?  Would they integrate into the 
park without disturbing nearby residents, create greater pollution if installed near waterways, and how often will the paths be 
maintained?  I spend a lot of time outdoors and have seen parks with paved paths that fall into disrepair and end up looking 
like gravel paths that are not enjoyable to use or ride on.  These paths lead to the deterioration of the surrounding areas 
because people then walk on the grass near the paths which leads to erosion and muddy paths next to an old decrepit paved 
path.  I'd like to see that Troy is spending its money wisely and make plans accordingly to make sure that the upkeep of the 
paths can be put on the budget.  As an example, take Sylvan Glen Park, a beautiful and natural park in Troy.  In past surveys, 
Troy residents said they would like to preserve the natural areas in Troy and the park is designated to be a natural park.  Who 
are the people that mainly use this park?  From my experience it's people out for a quiet walk, walking their dogs, or fishing.  
Does a paved path seem like it fits a park like this?  Why not combine solutions, a dog park and a natural park with a chipped 
path that can be easily maintained, won't effect the drainage of residents, and wouldn't require the land between residents 



property and the lake to be properly graded for appropriate drainage and to install a paved path.  All of which sounds costly 
and would negatively impact the character of the park.  In short, I'm asking the planning commission and city council to be 
aware of the character and use of each park.  Are the planned "improvements' impacting the current visitors or users in a 
positive or negative way for what they want to get out of visiting the park.  I don't see how many people would want to bike a 
1/4 mile one way in Sylvan Glen Park.  I'm also concerned about the addition of fishing piers in Sylvan Glen Park.  I hope the 
piers would be located on either the west or east end of the park as to not impact residents nearby or their backyards.  I often 
pick up trash left from fisherman on the shore and wouldn't want to have the trash greatly increase, especially behind people's 
backyards.  Lastly, I would rather see the money that would be spent on grading, installing, and maintaining a paved path at 
Sylvan Glen be used for signage for an interpretive trail where families could visit and see all the interesting wildlife, birds, 
mammals, and fish in this wonderful park.  I think each park should be looked at individually to create a unique park 
experience for everyone but one that can be maintained once any additions are made. 

Thank you for your time.  

 
 





 
 

Proposed Resolution 
 
CITY OF TROY PARKS AND RECREATION PLAN  
 
Resolution #2007  
 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Department and Parks and Recreation Department jointly 
developed the City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Plan identifies recreational need in the City and includes an Action 
Plan for recreation improvements over the next five years; and   
 
WHEREAS, Public input was achieved using a wide range of methods, including a 
Parks and Recreation Survey, Park Master Plan meetings, Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board public meetings and public notification of opportunities for public input 
published in local newspapers. 
 
WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee recommended approval of 
the Plan at their November 16, 2006 Public Hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management recommends approval of the Five Year Parks and 
Recreation Plan. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council concurs in the 
recommendations of City Management and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, 
and APPROVES the City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council TRANSMITS the Five Year Parks 
and Recreation Plan to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources for approval. 
  
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 

brattopp
Text Box
INSERT COPY OF RESOLUTION AS ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL 2-26-07



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 5, 2007, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
Pastor Simion Timbuc of Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
Mayor Schilling presented service commendations to Lynn Lee and Mike Trainer for their many 
years of dedicated service as employees of the City of Troy. 
 
Mayor Schilling recognized Assistant City Manager, Brian P. Murphy, as the honored recipient 
of The Michigan Local Government Management Association - Excellence in Local Government 
award for his commitment to the profession by assisting in the development of the University of 
Michigan Dearborn’s local management government initiative; an online graduate program for 
public administrators. 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 City Council Appointment: Troy Daze  
 
Resolution #2007-02-030 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Daniel O’Brien Unexpired Term 11/30/07 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-02-031 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-4e, E-8, E-9 and E-10, which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of January 22, 
2007 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 

Meeting Specifications – Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Courses             

 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish all materials, equipment, and labor for one-year 
requirements of Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses with an 
option to renew for one additional year is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Turfgrass, Inc. of South Lyon, MI at the unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
with a contract expiration of December 31, 2007.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – One (1) Breathing Air Compressor             

 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish one (1) new Breathing Air Compressor for the Troy Fire 
Department at Fire Station 2 is hereby AWARDED to Douglass Safety Systems of Sanford, MI, 
at an estimated total cost of $17,780.00.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles             
 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) 2007 Ford 500 Sedan, two (2) 2007 Ford 
Expedition 4X4’s and one (1) 2008 Ford Crew Cab and Chassis from Signature Ford of 
Owosso, MI, is hereby APPROVED through a Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement for an estimated total cost of $97,279.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles             
 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to purchase fleet vehicles from Buff Whelan of Sterling Heights, MI, 
Red Holman Pontiac of Westland, MI, and Golling Chrysler Jeep, Inc. of Bloomfield Hills, MI, 
are hereby APPROVED through Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreements at an 
estimated total cost of $282,770.35, $16,641.00 and $43,011.00 respectively.   
 
E-5 Acceptance of Water Main Easement, SP Industrial Properties, LLC – Sidwell #88-

20-32-152-001 
 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the water main easement from property owner SP Industrial Properties, LLC, 
having Sidwell #88-20-32-152-001 is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Load Restrictions 
 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That axle load limits of 6,000 pounds per axle and 8,500 pounds per tandem 
assembly are hereby ESTABLISHED and IMPOSED upon vehicles traveling upon streets and 
roads of the City of Troy, during periods prescribed in Chapter 94, Axle Load Ordinance, of the 
Code of the City of Troy for “Frost Law” limitations, which streets are listed in Attachment “A” of 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

a report from the Public Works Director dated February 5, 2007 and a copy of said report and 
attachments shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Private Agreement for CIOT Marble Granite & Tile (Formally Stonewood Trading 

Company) – Project No. 06.923.3 
 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mr. Benny Spielmann, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, concrete approach, aggregate base, concrete curb and gutter and 
concrete walkway on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-11 Standard Purchasing Resolution 10 – Travel Authorization and approval to Expend 
Funds for City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – 2007 Michigan Municipal 
League (MML) Legislative Conference 

 
Resolution #2007-02-031-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council Members are hereby AUTHORIZED to attend the 2007 
MML Legislative Conference in Lansing, Michigan on Wednesday, March 21, 2007 in 
accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – Food Service Provider – 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course             
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course for two 
years with an option to renew for two additional years is hereby AWARDED to Kosch Catering 
& Corporate Dining, and the City Council of the City of Troy has deemed that Kosch Catering & 
Corporate Dining is the best available bidder based on the bid awards as a result of a Best 
Value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest at a 
guaranteed annual rent of $6,000.00 plus an additional 5% of gross revenue over $125,000.00 
and 7.5% of gross revenue over $150,000.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
agreements when in acceptable form.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2007-02-032 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the resolution for Standard 
Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – Food Service Provider – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
until the Regular City Council scheduled for Monday, February 26, 2007. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-8 Application for Stock Transfer of Class C-SDM License for Brio Tuscan Grille 
 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-02-033a 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Cucina Development, Inc., AKA Bravo Development, Inc. 
(An Ohio Corporation) to transfer stock through merger in 2006 Class C-SDM licensed business 
with official permit (food), outdoor service (1 area), direct connection-1, and 2 bars, located at 
Somerset Collection South, 2801 West Big Beaver, Suite E150, Troy, MI, 48084, Oakland 
County, be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2007-02-033b 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with Cucina Development, Inc., AKA Bravo Development, Inc. (An Ohio 
Corporation) request to transfer stock through merger in 2006 Class C-SDM licensed business 
with official permit (food), outdoor service (1 area), direct connection-1, and 2 bars, located at 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

Somerset Collection South, 2801 West Big Beaver, Suite E150, Troy, MI, 48084, Oakland 
County. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-9 Leroy S. Nardi v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2007-02-034 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Leroy S. Nardi v. City of Troy, et 
al., and to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City. 
 
Yes: All-7   
 
Council Member Broomfield departed at 8:51 PM. 
 
E-10 Approval for Temporary Office Trailer – 121 E. Maple Road 
 
Resolution #2007-02-035 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Marcella Galka for the placement of a temporary office 
trailer on the site of 107 E. Maple, to be used by the business located at 121 E. Maple is hereby 
APPROVED for up to a twelve month period in accordance with Chapter 47, House Trailers 
and Trailer Courts, Section 6.41(2), of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Council Member Broomfield returned at 8:53 PM. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:59 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:07 PM. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Troy Daze Committee    

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2007-02-036 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Jim Hattan Unexpired Term 11/30/08 
  
Alison Miller Unexpired Term 11/30/08 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-2 Scheduling a Workshop to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 
 Removed by City Management to provide City Council with the opportunity to submit possible 
dates. 
 
F-3  Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 17, 2007 
  
Resolution #2007-02-037 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by  Stine  
 
(a) Installation of Signs – No Parking on the South and West Side of the Curve on 

Miracle Drive and 60 feet to the south  
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-01-P  be ISSUED for installation of signs 
indicating NO PARKING on the SOUTH AND WEST SIDE of the curve ON Miracle Drive and 
60 feet to the south. 
 
(b) Installation of Signs – No Left Turn between 4pm and 7pm at the Exit of the 

Emerald Square Shopping Center 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-01-MR be ISSUED for installation of signs 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

at the exit of the Emerald Square Shopping Center onto Rochester Road indicating NO LEFT 
TURNS between 4 PM and 7 PM. 
 
(c) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 650 Stephenson   
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-02-MR  be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 650 Stephenson. 
 
(d) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 1515 Equity   
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-03-MR  be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 1515 Equity. 
 
(e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 925 South Boulevard   
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-04-MR  be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 925 South Boulevard. 
 
Yes: All-7  
  
F-4  Approval of City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan 
  
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by  Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Department and Parks and Recreation Department jointly developed 
the City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan;   
 
WHEREAS, The Plan identifies recreational need in the City and includes an Action Plan for 
recreation improvements over the next five years;    
 
WHEREAS, Public input was achieved using a wide range of methods, including a Parks and 
Recreation Survey, Park Master Plan meetings, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board public 
meetings and public notification of opportunities for public input published in local newspapers; 
 
WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee recommended approval of the Plan 
at their November 16, 2006 Public Hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management recommends approval of the Five Year Parks and Recreation 
Plan; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council concurs in the recommendations of 
City Management and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and APPROVES the City of 
Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan; and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council TRANSMITS the Five Year Parks and 
Recreation Plan to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources for approval. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2007-02-038 
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the resolution for Approval of 
City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan until the Regular City Council scheduled for 
Monday, February 26, 2007. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-5 Final Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-005 Caswell Town Center – East 

Side of Rochester Road, South of South Boulevard, R-1D, B-3 and P-1, Section 2 
  
Resolution #2007-02-039 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan and Development Agreement for a Planned Unit 
Development, pursuant to Section 35.60.01 and 35.80.00, as requested by Michigan Home 
Builders, for Caswell Town Center Planned Unit Development, located on the east side of 
Rochester Road, south of South Boulevard, located in Section 2, within the R-1D, B-3 and P-1 
zoning districts, being 18.62 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED and shall be known as PUD-
005; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Final Plan is DESCRIBED in the Caswell Town Center 
Planned Unit Development Application, dated January 16, 2007; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the subject property is DESCRIBED in the following Legal 
Description and illustrated on the ATTACHED Certificate of Survey drawing;  
 

T2N, R11E, Part of the NW ¼ of Section 2 
 
Beginning at a point being the intersection of the south line of South Blvd. 
(120 ft. wide) and the east line of Rochester Rd. (180 ft. wide) and being 
south 60.00 ft. and N 89°42’00” E, 90.00 ft. from the northwest corner of said 
Section 2 and proceeding thence along the south line of said South Blvd., N 
89°42’00” E, 557.43 ft. to the west line of Maple Forest of Troy Subdivision 
(Liber 272, Pages 25-27, of Oakland County Records);  thence along said 
west line S 00°00’59” W, 645.28 ft. to the south line of said Maple Forest 
Sub.;  thence along said south line N 89°42’00” E, 692.19 ft. the west line of 
Eyster’s Suburban Home Subdivision (Liber 44, Page 27, of Oakland County 
Records);  thence along said west line S 00°43’28: E, 361.48 ft. to the north 
line of said Eyster’s Suburban Home Subdivision;  thence along said north 
line of said subdivision, S 89°47’00” W, 1254.00 ft. to the east line of said 
Rochester Rd.;  thence along said east line north 1004.93 ft to the Point of 
Beginning.  Containing 18.62 acres more or less, subject to all easements 
and restrictions of record; and   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Zoning District Map of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance be AMENDED to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-005; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That for the purpose of determining signage requirements of 
Chapter 85 of the Code of Ordinances, the commercial portion of the site SHALL MEET sign 
requirements for B districts, the multi-family portion SHALL MEET sign R-M requirements and 
the single family detached portion SHALL MEET R-1 sign requirements, and the ground 
mounted sign detailed on Sheet CE2A SHALL BE PERMITTED to exceed this requirement as 
per Sheet CE2A; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Development Agreement for Caswell Town Center Planned Unit Development; a 
copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Caswell Town Center Planned Unit Development 
Agreement be RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That easements for all properties be EXECUTED as per the 
approved Engineering plans once control/ownership of all parties is established; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the applicant SHALL SEEK and RECEIVE all required 
permits, licenses or approvals, including but not limited to, Federal, State of Michigan, Oakland 
County and City of Troy agencies or departments, in accordance with all applicable laws. 
 
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 14 I. 
 
Resolution #2007-02-040 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 14-H. Council Referrals and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to discuss and take action on an item that does not appear on the agenda.  
 
Yes: All-7   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

H-1 Proposed Resolution Recognizing Troy Citizens Serving in the Armed Forces of 
the United States – Referred by Council Member Beltramini  

 
Resolution #2007-02-041 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy finds great value in the American ideals of freedom and liberty and 
recognizes that those ideals must be constantly defended; and 
 
WHEREAS, Many Troy citizens are serving in the armed forces of the United States defending 
freedom and liberty for all citizens; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy will RECOGNIZE the service and particular sacrifice of 
those citizens who have undergone the hardships of overseas military deployment; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That such recognition SHALL BE in the form of a public 
proclamation and a yard sign that shall gratefully acknowledge the individual service of these 
Troy citizens. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – November 13, 2006 
b) Traffic Committee/Final – November 15, 2006 
c) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 16, 2006  
d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – November 16, 2006  
e) Planning Commission/Final Amended – December 12, 2006  
f) Troy Youth Council/Final – December 20, 2006 
g) Planning Commission/Draft – January 9, 2007  
h) Planning Commission/Final – January 9, 2007 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – January 16, 2007  
j) Troy Youth Council/Draft – January 24, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 

Auctioneering, LLC – December, 2006   
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Deborah Shaeffer Regarding the 

Professionalism and Compassion of Officer Dungjen  
b) Letter of Thanks to Detective Mork from David Rodgers in Appreciation of the Internet 

Safety Presentation  
c) Letter of Appreciation to Mayor Schilling from Linda Walter, Michigan Recreation and 

Park Association, Recognizing the Troy Golden Choraliers as Recipients of a Community 
Service Award and Impressive Performance   

d) Letter of Appreciation to Mayor Schilling, City Council and City Manager Phil Nelson from 
St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church Regarding the Continuous and Outstanding Support 
and Understanding provided by the Engineering, Planning, Building and Fire 
Departments  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-
15160 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-7  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Concession Stand Operations Report 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-8  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Karagiannakis and 
Garrett Family Ltd. v. City of Troy, et. al. 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-9  Communication from Troy Daze Advisory Committee Regarding 
Recommendations to fill Troy Daze Committee Vacancies 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-10  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Hooters v. Troy Motion 
Hearing – Proposed Consent Judgment 

Noted and Filed 
 
Reconsideration of Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment  
 
Vote on Resolution to Reconsider Resolution #2007-01-008 

 
Resolution #2007-02-042 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That Resolution #2007-01-008, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Fleming, 
as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Hooters v. 
Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment until the Regular City Council 
Meeting scheduled for Monday, February 26, 2007. 
 
Yes: All-7 

 
Yes: All-7   
 
Vote on Recommended Amendment to Resolution #2007-01-008: 
 
Resolution #2007-02-043 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2007-01-008 by 
STRIKING “for Monday, February 26, 2007” and INSERTING “immediately after the receipt 
of the Ruling from the Federal District Court Judge regarding the City’s Motion to Dismiss”. 

 
Yes: Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Reconsidered Resolution as Amended 

 
Resolution #2007-02-044 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent 
Judgment until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled immediately after the receipt of the 
Ruling from the Federal District Court Judge regarding the City’s Motion to Dismiss. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No: Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-11  Communication from Deputy City/Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regarding 

Traffic Concerns at Coolidge and Golfview 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 5, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested  
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:38 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Wednesday, February 7, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 
Council Member Beltramini gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Members Broomfield and Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2007-02-045 
Moved by Stine    
Seconded by Fleming   
 
RESOLVED, That Council Members Broomfield and Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City 
Council meeting of February 7, 2007 is EXCUSED due to Council Member Broomfield’s 
employment commitments and Council Member Howrylak’s absence from the county.  
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak     

OUTLINE OF PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

Under the Laws of the State of Michigan, Council is vested with the authority to take adverse 
action against a liquor licensee that has committed a violation of the Liquor Code or the local or 
state laws. However, prior to any adverse action, the licensee is entitled to a due process 
hearing to challenge the charged violation. For those licensees that choose to challenge the 
charged violation, the following procedure is recommended for the hearing. 
 

1. The Mayor calls the licensee whose case is to be heard. 
2. The licensee and/or his attorney should be asked to the front of the Chamber to 

acknowledge their presence for the record and can be seated. 
3. The Assistant City Attorney makes a very short opening statement regarding the 

violation(s), and presents proofs. 
4. When witnesses are called, they should be sworn by the City Clerk to tell the truth. 
5. Once the witness is sworn, the Assistant City Attorney will question the witness. 
6. The police report and other documents may be offered into evidence as part of the 

case and should be kept by the City Clerk as part of the records. 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

7. At the conclusion of the City’s case, the licensee or his attorney should be asked to 
offer an explanation for the violations if they choose, make a statement, offer 
evidence, or otherwise make their presentation. 

8. If the licensee offers evidence from witnesses who have not been previously sworn, 
the City Clerk should swear those witnesses. 

9. Once the licensee has concluded his presentation, the Assistant City Attorney should 
be given an opportunity for rebuttal, if any is desired. 

10. City Council members may ask questions at any time, but it is suggested that this 
questioning by Council members be conducted after the parties conclude their 
presentations. 

11. When the presentation of evidence is concluded, the matter returns to the City 
Council for discussion, deliberation, and resolution. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  

A. Items on the Current Agenda 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public 
Hearings regarding alleged violations: 
 
1.0  Liquor Violations (SDD):  
 

a) Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan (dba: Rite Aid of Michigan Inc. #4268) 
  Address: 3986 John R, 48083 

  License No.: SDD (111763-2006 SS)  
 

 b) Name:  MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market & Delicatessen) 
  Address: 4835 John R, 48085 

  License No.: SDD (134567-2006 SS)  
 

c) Name: Nino Salvaggio International Marketplace (dba: Nino Salvaggio’s) 
  Address: 6835 Rochester, 48085 
  License No.: SDD (106341-2006 SS)  

 
2.0  Liquor Violations (Resort B-Hotel):  
 

 a) Name:  Courtyard Management Corporation (dba: The Courtyard by Marriott) 
  Address: 1525 E. Maple, 48083  

  License No.: Resort B-Hotel (39238-2005) 

1.0 Liquor Violations (SDD): (a) Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid of Michigan 
Inc. #4268); (b) MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market & Delicatessen); and (c) Nino 
Salvaggio International Marketplace (dba: Nino Salvaggio’s)  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

(a) Rite Aid of Michigan (dba: Rite Aid of Michigan Inc #4268)
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the licensee’s attorney and 
the licensee. There was no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2007-02-046 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy:   
 

Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan (dba: Rite Aid of Michigan Inc. #4268) 
Address: 3986 John R, 48083 
License No.: SDD (111763-2006 SS); 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:   
 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) (Pending) on June 22, 2006;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 7, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has had prior violations dated: December 9, 1996 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Insp.); October 28, 1998 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Insp.); October 27, 
1999 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); April 24, 2001 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance 
Test) DISMISSED-Student Aid FTA; February 28, 2002 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
July 11, 2003 - SALE TO MINOR (MLCC Compliance Test); and June 30, 2004 - SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); and  
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 7, 2007;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, 
HAS DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD 
License Number 111763-2006 SS in the name of Rite Aid of Michigan in the City of Troy), to 
have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

AND/OR TAM trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 60 days; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby REQUIRES that the 
Manager-on-Duty must assist with all alcohol sales; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER REVSOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 
PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
(b) MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market & Delicatessen)
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the licensee’s attorney and 
the licensee. There was no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2007-02-047 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

Name:  MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market & Delicatessen) 
  Address: 4835 John R, 48085 

  License No.: SDD (134567-2006 SS);  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:   
 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on June 22, 2006;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 7, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has had no prior violations; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 7, 2007;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, 
has DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD 
License Number 134567-2006 SS in the name of MK2, LLC in the City of Troy), to have all its 
management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS AND/OR TAM 
trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 90 days; 
and   
 
BE IT FURTHER REVSOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 
PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
(c) Nino Salvaggio International Marketplace (dba: Nino Salvaggio’s)
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the licensee’s attorney and 
the licensee. There was no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2007-02-048 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name: Nino Salvaggio International Marketplace (dba: Nino Salvaggio’s) 
  Address: 6835 Rochester, 48085 
  License No.: SDD (106341-2006 SS);  

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:   
 
MLCC SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) (Pending) on December 21, 2006;   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 7, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: December 11, 1997 – SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); May 10, 2001 – MLCC SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 7, 2007;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, 
has DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD 
License Number S106341-2006 SS in the name of Nino Salvaggio International Marketplace in 
the City of Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic 
liquor receive Nino Salvaggio International Marketplaces’ in-house training [Responsible 
Alcohol Sales (RAS)], and  PROVIDE an outline of the RAS program and PROOF of this 
training to the Troy Police Department within 90 days; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER REVSOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 
PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 

2.0 Liquor Violations (Resort B-Hotel): (a) Courtyard Management Corporation (dba: 
The Courtyard by Marriott) 

 
(a) Courtyard Management Corporation (dba: The Courtyard by Marriott)
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the licensee’s attorney and 
the licensee. There was no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2007-02-049 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy:   
 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Name:  Courtyard Management Corporation (dba: The Courtyard by Marriott) 
Address:   1525 E. Maple, 48083 
License No.: Resort B-Hotel (39238-2005); 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law, which could include an objection to the 
annual renewal of the liquor license;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:   
 
 FAILURE TO DISPLAY LICENSE-BRAGG on February 3, 2006;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 7, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated November 2, 1990 – Sale to Minor 
(Compliance Test); June 17, 1992 – Sale to Minor (Compliance Test); August 25, 1994 – Sale 
to Minor (Compliance Test) (2 Counts); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 7, 2007;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, 
has DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DOES NOT OBJECT TO THE 
ANNUAL RENEWAL OF THE LIQUOR LICENSE, (B-Hotel License Number 39238-2005 in the 
name of Courtyard Management Corporation in the City of Troy, Michigan), as long as the 
licensee insures that all its management and employees that may sell alcoholic liquor be 
TIPS and TAM trained and that the licensee provide proof of training to the Troy Police 
Department within 90 days; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER REVSOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 
PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Cancellation of Regular City Council Meeting/Liquor Violation Hearing Scheduled for 
Wednesday, February 28, 2007 
 
Resolution #2007-02-050 
Moved by 
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the CANCELLATION of the Regular 
City Council Meeting/Liquor Violation Hearing scheduled for Wednesday, February 28, 2007 as 
there are no cases to be placed before the City Council and that notice be POSTED AND 
PUBLISHED. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 

F-1 Approval of Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request 
 
Resolution #2007-02-051 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE City ordinances 
Chapter 98, 98.05.16 Fireworks and Chapter 93, 3301.1.3 Fireworks for the purpose of 
celebrating Chinese New Year at the Mon Jin Lau restaurant, located at 1515 East Maple 
Road, on Wednesday, February 21, 2006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fire Prevention Division personnel will inspect the 
fireworks to be used and the site to assure compliance with applicable standards for fireworks 
display. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak  
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:38 PM. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

 
 
February 12, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Charles Craft, Police Chief 
   William Nelson, Fire Chief 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise Renewal Option –                         
   Vehicle Graphics 
 
Background 
 On March 7, 2005 a two-year contract to provide Police and Fire Departments with vehicle graphic 

material and/or installation was approved with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to 
the low total bidder, Majik Graphics Inc. of Clinton Township, MI at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened November 5, 2004. (Council Resolution #2005-03-110-E-9).   

   
 A market survey conducted by the Purchasing Department indicates that the materials market for 

vinyl and plastic products will continue to increase in the coming year due to fluctuating petroleum 
prices and concurs with the recommendation to exercise the option to renew for two additional 
years.   

 
Financial Considerations 
Funds are available from the various Police, Fire and DPW vehicle operating accounts.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 04-47 for the purchase and installation of vehicle graphic material for the City of Troy 

Police, Fire and Motor Pool departments was competitively bid in accordance with Chapter 7 of 
the City Code.   

 
Policy Considerations 
 Placement of vehicle graphics and decals allows for consistency, conformity and accurate vehicle 

identification.  (Goal I). 
 
Options 
 City management recommends the City exercise the option to renew for two additional years with 

Majik Graphics Inc. for an estimated annual cost of $14,726.00, under the same unit prices, terms 
and conditions, to expire February 28, 2009. 

 
Sal  G:\Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Vehicle Graphic Material 02.07.doc  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



 
 February 1, 2007 
 

TO:      Susan Leirstein 
      Purchasing Systems Administrator 
 
FROM:     Julie Hamilton 
      Buyer 
 
 
RE: MARKET SURVEY – Vehicle Graphic Material  
 
JL Geisler Corp – Tammy                                                                         (586) 574-1800 
Tammy indicated that they experienced a 3% increase in the cost of vinyl and plastic 
products last year and anticipates another 3% to 10% increase this year.  She stated 
that the fluctuating petroleum market is the overriding reason for the increase.   
 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the 
offer to renew the contract for Vehicle Graphic Material with the current vendor based on 
the expected rise in the cost of materials.    
 
CC: Jeanette Bennett 
      File 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 06 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – VehicleGraphicMaterial - MarketSurvey 







  February 21, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles Craft, Police Chief 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder –  

 Vehicle Graphics  
  
RECOMMENDATION 
On Friday, November 5, 2004, bids were received to provide two-year requirements to 
install and/or purchase vehicle graphic material for the Police, Fire and Motor Pool 
departments with an option to renew for two additional years.  City management 
recommends awarding the contract for Police and Fire to the low total bidder, Majik 
Graphics Inc., of Clinton Township, MI for an estimated annual cost of $14,726.00, at 
unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.   
 
In addition, staff recommends rejecting Item 1b., as well as the Graphics Only portion of 
the bid for Motor Pool, Item #3.  Alyko Enterprises LLC was the only bidder to provide a 
price for Item 1b. (1) Police undercover vehicle to be installed with letters and numbers 
only at $360.00 each, which is high; when Majik Graphics will do a complete vehicle for 
$275.00 each.  If an undercover vehicle is purchased during the term of the contract, a 
price quote can be obtained for this one item. 
    
An attempt was made to award the graphics portion of the bid for the Motor Pool 
department (Item 3.), but the low bidder for those items, Sava Graphics never provided 
samples of their work as requested.  Therefore, informal price quotes will be taken for 
vehicle decals following standard purchasing procedures.    
 
SUMMARY 
The contract was awarded on a low total bid basis for consistency, conformity, and 
accurate vehicle identification.  Majik Graphics Inc. has held this contract since 1995.      
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the various Police, Fire and DPW Vehicle Operating Accounts.   
 
56 Vendors Notified via MITN System 

3 Vendor Walk-Ins 
5 Bid Responses Rec’d 
2 No Bids: (1) Company requires a 50% deposit on all jobs over $1,000 to pay for materials. 

(1) Company declined to bid, but requested to remain on the vendor list for future 
bids invitations. 

 
Prepared by: Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Systems Administrator 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-47
Opening Date -- 11-5-04 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME: *

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Police Vehicle Graphics
1.a. 20 ea Police Vehicles 275.00$   5,500.00$  465.00$      9,300.00$    412.00$    8,240.00$   
1.b. 1 ea Police Undercover Vehicle (letter..
1.c. 1 ea Motorcycle -(Gold reflective) 110.00$   110.00$     195.00$      195.00$       270.00$    270.00$      
1.d. 5 ea Screen Change per unit N/A -$           -$             -$          

Sub-Total 5,610.00$  9,495.00$    8,510.00$   

COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS
Material Labor Material Labor Material Labor

1.d. 14 ea Front & Back Quarter Panel -either side 22.50$     25.00$       38.00$        210.00$       30.00$      25.00$        
1.e. 14 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 35.00$     25.00$       15.00$        180.00$       30.00$      25.00$        
1.f. 24 ea Doors - Front or Rear 38.00$     25.00$       90.00$        180.00$       45.00$      30.00$        
1.g. 12 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 18.00$     18.00$       15.00$        90.00$         16.00$      15.00$        
1.h. 12 ea Vehicle Truck - Letters/Numbers 18.00$     18.00$       15.00$        90.00$         16.00$      15.00$        
1.I. 10 ea Vehicle Roof - Letters/Numbers 24.00$     18.00$       15.00$        185.00$       20.00$      20.00$        
1.J. 12 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals 95.00$       250.00$       120.00$      

Sub-Total 5,441.00$  20,202.00$  5,924.00$   

ADDITONAL ITEMS Material Labor Material Labor Material Labor
1.K. 4 ea K-9 Markings 20.00$     10.00$       15.00$        60.00$         18.00$      10.00$        
1.L. 2 ea Motorcycle Tanks 30.00$     15.00$       45.00$        75.00$         68.00$      30.00$        
1.M. 8 sets 12" Roof Numbers (set of 3) 24.00$     18.00$       15.00$        185.00$       20.00$      20.00$        
1.N. 16 ea American Flags 3.25$       -$           5.00$          30.00$         5.00$        2.00$          

Sub-Total 598.00$     2,700.00$    740.00$      

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Fire Vehicle Graphics
2.a. 3 ea Staff/Utility Vehicles 375.00$   1,125.00$  285.00$      855.00$       458.00$    1,374.00$   
2.b. 1 ea Fire Apparatus 820.00$   820.00$     625.00$      625.00$       400.00$    400.00$      
2.c. 1 ea Screen Charge -$         -$           -$           -$             -$          -$            

Sub-Total 1,945.00$  1,480.00$    1,774.00$   

COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS
Material Labor Material Labor Material Labor

2.d. 2 ea Front & Back Quarter Panel -either side 35.00$     25.00$       15.00$        120.00$       30.00$      25.00$        
2.e. 2 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 44.00$     25.00$       15.00$        120.00$       30.00$      25.00$        
2.f. 2 ea Doors - Front or Rear 44.00$     25.00$       75.00$        120.00$       45.00$      30.00$        
2.g. 2 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 24.00$     15.00$       15.00$        120.00$       16.00$      15.00$        
2.h. 2 ea Vehicle Rear Hatch-Letters/Numbers 24.00$     15.00$       15.00$        120.00$       45.00$      30.00$        
2.I. 4 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals 145.00$     7.00$          220.00$       120.00$      

Sub-Total 1,132.00$  2,378.00$    1,062.00$   

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Motor Pool - Graphics Only
3.a. 24 ea Decals 8" - Dept Design 28.00$      672.00$      10.00$        240.00$       23.00$      552.00$      
3.b. 12 ea Decals 8" - Plain 26.00$      312.00$      10.00$        120.00$       16.00$      192.00$      
3.c. 24 ea Decals 16" - Dept Design 46.00$      1,104.00$   16.00$        384.00$       48.00$      1,152.00$   
3.d. 12 ea Decals 16" - Plain 42.00$      504.00$      16.00$        192.00$       41.00$      492.00$      
3.e. 1 ea Screen Charge - Dept Design N/A -$            -$          -$             -$          -$            
3.f. 1 ea Screen Charge - Plain N/A -$            -$          -$             -$          -$            

Sub-Total 2,592.00$   936.00$       2,388.00$   

RECOMMEND REJECTION - ITEM 1b.

RECOMMEND REJECTION - Graphics Only

SAVA GRAPHICS JL GEISLER CORPMAJIK GRAPHICS INC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-47
Opening Date -- 11-5-04 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME: *

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item           Description Material Material Material
General Decal Costs/Each
4.a. Letters/Numbers 0.45$       0.10$          0.35$        
4.b. Stripes 0.45$       0.10$          0.15$        
4.c. Shield Markings 0.45$       0.15$          0.16$        

5. Computerized "New" Vehicle Design

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: * 14,726.00$ 36,255.00$ 18,010.00$

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N NO YES YES
DATE October 13th Oct 12/ 13

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper
Phone # (586)354-8392 (248)376-7352 (586)574-1800

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30
LIFETIME OF VEHICLE OR

WARRANTY: 10 YEARS

DELIVERY OF DECALS: UPS

EXCEPTIONS: NONE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES YES

Amendment/Addendum 1 Y or N YES NO YES
Amendment/Addendum 2 Y or N YES NO YES

* DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

ATTEST:
  Robert Rossman
  MaryAnn Hays Jeanette Bennett
  Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 04-47Vehicle Graphics

BLANK

30-60 DAYS

FIVE YEARS

NET 30

90 DP&L

2-3 WEEKS

BLANK

JL GEISLER CORP

NO Charge NO Charge

8-5pm 8-4:30pm

5 DAYS

MAJIK GRAPHICS INC

Current Contractor

8-5pm Mon-Fri

NO Charge

SAVA GRAPHICS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-47
Opening Date -- 11-5-04 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Police Vehicle Graphics
1.a. 20 ea Police Vehicles 552.00$    11,040.00$ 725.00$        14,500.00$  
1.b. 1 ea Police Undercover Vehicle (letter.. 360.00$    Blank

1.c. 1 ea Motorcycle -(Gold reflective) 552.00$    552.00$      325.00$        325.00$       
1.d. 5 ea Screen Change per unit -$          N/A -$             

Sub-Total 11,592.00$ 14,825.00$  

COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS Material Labor Material Labor
1.d. 14 ea Front & Back Quarter Panel -either side 40.00$      80.00$        45.00$          50.00$         
1.e. 14 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 30.00$      80.00$        45.00$          50.00$         
1.f. 24 ea Doors - Front or Rear (Front) 45.00$      90.00$        75.00$          97.50$         

(Rear) 55.00$          50.00$         
1.g. 12 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 25.00$      55.00$        25.00$          25.00$         
1.h. 12 ea Vehicle Truck - Letters/Numbers 25.00$      55.00$        25.00$          25.00$         
1.I. 10 ea Vehicle Roof - Letters/Numbers 20.00$      50.00$        50.00$          35.00$         
1.J. 12 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals 175.00$      Blank

Sub-Total 11,180.00$ 8,040.00$    

ADDITONAL ITEMS Material Labor Material Labor
1.K. 4 ea K-9 Markings 30.00$      80.00$        15.00$          25.00$         
1.L. 2 ea Motorcycle Tanks 75.00$      100.00$      65.00$          90.00$         
1.M. 8 sets 12" Roof Numbers (set of 3) 25.00$      55.00$        95.00$          45.00$         
1.N. 16 ea American Flags 20.00$      15.00$        25.00$          25.00$         

Sub-Total 1,990.00$   2,390.00$    

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Fire Vehicle Graphics
2.a. 3 ea Staff/Utility Vehicles 672.00$    2,016.00$   890.00$        2,670.00$    
2.b. 1 ea Fire Apparatus 375.00$    375.00$      1,780.00$     1,780.00$    
2.c. 1 ea Screen Charge -$          -$            N/A -$             

Sub-Total 2,391.00$   4,450.00$    

COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS Material Labor Material Labor
2.d. 2 ea Front & Back Quarter Panel -either side 70.00$      80.00$        55.00$          50.00$         
2.e. 2 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 70.00$      80.00$        55.00$          50.00$         
2.f. 2 ea Doors - Front or Rear (Front) 85.00$      90.00$        93.50$          97.50$         

(Rear) 68.75$          50.00$         
2.g. 2 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 50.00$      100.00$      18.00$          25.00$         
2.h. 2 ea Vehicle Rear Hatch-Letters/Numbers 50.00$      100.00$      45.00$          25.00$         
2.I. 4 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals 175.00$      Blank

Sub-Total 2,250.00$   955.75$       
Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Motor Pool - Graphics Only
3.a. 24 ea Decals 8" - Dept Design 22.00$      528.00$      45.00$          1,080.00$    
3.b. 12 ea Decals 8" - Plain 22.00$      264.00$      35.00$          420.00$       
3.c. 24 ea Decals 16" - Dept Design 52.00$      1,248.00$   65.00$          1,560.00$    
3.d. 12 ea Decals 16" - Plain 52.00$      624.00$      75.00$          900.00$       
3.e. 1 ea Screen Charge - Dept Design -$          -$            N/A -$             
3.f. 1 ea Screen Charge - Plain -$          -$            N/A 0

Sub-Total 2,664.00$   3,960.00$    

ALYKO ENTERPRISES LLC

RECOMMEND REJECTION - Graphics Only - 

RECOMMEND REJECTION - ITEM 1b.

SIGNS & MORE



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-47
Opening Date -- 11-5-04 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item           Description Material Material
General Decal Costs/Each (Non-Reflective) (Reflective)
4.a. Letters/Numbers 1.50$        0.70$            1.75$           
4.b. Stripes 1.50$        1.25$            2.75$           
4.c. Shield Markings 4.00$        1.25$            2.75$           

5. Computerized "New" Vehicle Design

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: 29,403.00$ 30,660.75$ 

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 10/8 &10/13/04

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper
Phone # (248)515-3552 (248)250-2100

+$4,500
INSURANCE: Can Meet DO NOT CARRY BUT CAN OBTAIN BLANK

Cannot Meet XX

TERMS: NET 30

WARRANTY: 5 YEARS

DELIVERY OF DECALS: 5 BUSINESS DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES

Amendment/Addendum 1 Y or N YES NO
Amendment/Addendum 2 Y or N YES NO

NO BIDS:
  Images Unlimited
  Michigan State Industries

G:ITB-COT 04-47Vehicle Graphics

5 BUSINESS DAYS

BLANK

ALYKO ENTERPRISES LLC

NO Charge

8-5pm

NET 30 DAYS

5YR PARTS & 1YR LABOR

11/3/04

9-5:30pm

SIGNS & MORE

NO Charge









Page 1 of 4 

 

 
February 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director    
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award - Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications - Turfgrass Chemical Products for Sylvan Glen and 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses  

 
Background 
 On January 9, 2007, bids were received and opened for IBT-COT 06-56 to provide turfgrass 

chemicals and fertilizers for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses. 
 Eighty (80) vendors were notified via the MITN system with seven (7) bidders responding and one 

statement of no bid received. 
 Serious consideration was given to all vendors on all items due to the fact that some of the 

chemicals are now coming off patent.  
 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item #6 Insignia, which did not meet specifications. Insignia is a 

different chemistry class and mode of action. The City has tried this product in the past with poor 
results. 

 Tri-Turf, Lesco Inc., Turfgrass and UAP Professional Products bid prices were all the same for 
Item #9 Emerald 70WG. Tri-Turf was awarded the bid item based upon their payment terms of 2% 
discount, net 30 days.   

 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Items #8 and #10 that does not contain the micronutrient package 
and patented plant extracts essential for quality plant growth. 

 Turfgrass and UAP Professional Products bid prices were all the same for Item #21 Primo.  
Turfgrass was awarded the bid item based upon their payment terms of net 60 days opposed to 
UAP’s terms of net 30 days.   

 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item #23 that does not have the patented green pigmentation that 
aids in plant photosynthesis. 

 Tri-Turf Inc. and Lesco Inc. bid alternatives for item #28 that does not contain the proprietary 
blend of surfactants specified.   

 Tri-Turf Inc. bid an alternate on Item #32 which does not contain the Contec Technology. This 
allows the fertilizer to dissolve quickly into the turf canopy after application and irrigation, reducing 
the potential of turf damage to the golf course greens. 

 Turfgrass Inc. and Lesco Inc. bid alternates on Item #34, these products contain less phosphites 
and do not have the proprietary organic acids that improve nutrient uptake and translocation.  

 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item # 37 that did not meet packaging requirements.  
February 12, 2007 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



Page 2 of 4 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
 The department has funds budgeted in the Sylvan Glen Seed/Planting Supplies account 

#785.7740.100 and the Sanctuary Lake Seed/Planting Supplies account #885.7740.100.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 06-56 to furnish seasonal requirements of chemicals for the Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Courses was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with 
their level of interest in supplying turf chemicals and fertilizers to the City’s Golf Facilities. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Vendors were required to submit product information on all alternates in order to assist in the 

recommendation process.  Based on this the City was able to accept nine generic products at a 
cost savings. (Goal II) 

 Communicate with educators and vendors on newer cost effective chemistries and products for 
the future. (Goals II and IV) 

 
Options 
 
 City management recommends awarding the seasonal requirements of chemicals for the Sylvan 

Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses to the following low bidders meeting specifications for an 
estimated total cost of $178,277.95 at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation. 

 
Tri-Turf Inc., Farmington Hills, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

1. Chipco 26GT or Iprodione Pro 
SE            

60 Gallons- 12 
Cases 

$360.00 $4,320.00

6. Disarm (Alternate) 48lbs – 2 Cases $6,216.00 $12,432.00
7.  Imidacloprid(Alternate) 153.6 oz- 6 Cases $299.00 $1,794.00
9. Emerald 70WG 98Lbs-20 Cases $1,323.00 

 
$26,460.00

22. Propiconazole (Alternate) 125 Gallons-50 
Cases 

$387.50 $19,375.00

29.  Ethephon (Alternate) 20 Gallons-4 Cases $160.00 $640.00
37. T-Methyl 50 (Alternate) 144Lbs-12 Cases $189.00 $2,268.00
    $67,289.00
 
 
 
February 12, 2007 



Page 3 of 4 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 
 
IKEX LLC., Tecumseh, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

2. Echo 720 150 Gallons-30 
Cases 

$144.70 $4,341.00

20. Mefanoxam 2 (Alternate ) 34 Gallons-17 
Cases 

$618.88 $10,520.96

    $14,861.96
 
Turfgrass Inc., South Lyon, Michigan  
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

3. Banol 12 Gallons- 6 Cases $639.00 $3,834.00
4. Aqua-Aid 60 Gallons-2 Drums $585.00 $1,170.00
10. Gary’s Green  18-3-4+Iron 75 Gallons-15 

Cases 
$150.00 $2,250.00

11. Sili-Kal B 75 Gallons-15 
Cases 

$203.85 $3,057.75

12. Ultraplex 75 Gallons- 15 
Cases 

$200.00 $3,000.00

16.  Bayleton  50 WSP 171.85 Lbs-5 Drums $2,558.00 $12,790.00

17. PK Plus 100 Gallons-20 
Cases             

$223.08 $4,461.60

19. Kelly’s High Calcium Lime 
Greens Grade 

34,000 Lbs - 17 
Bags 

$237.60 $4,039.20

21. Primo Maxx 10 Gallons – 1 pk $3,860.00 $3,860.00
23.  Alliette/Signature 110 Lbs-5 Cases $403.90 $2,019.50
24. Glacier 4F (Alternate) 300 Gallons-60 

Cases 
$103.50 $6,210.00

28.  Cascade Plus 20 Gallons-1 Drum $1,377.00 $1,377.00
32. Anderson’s 18-9-18 Contec 

DG Pro 
6800 Lbs-170 Bags $34.67 $5,893.90

    $53,962.95
 
 
 
 
 
 
February 12, 2007 
 



Page 4 of 4 

To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 
 
Lesco Inc., Cleveland, Ohio  
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

5. Gallery Herbicide 24Lbs-6 Cases $465.52 $2,793.12
25. Tartan 10 Gallons-2 Cases $2,000.00 $4,000.00
    $6,793.12
 
Great Lakes Turf LLC, Grand Rapids, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

8. Astron 45 Gallons-9 Cases $410.00 $3,690.00
13. Carbon N 20-0-4 155 Gallons- 31 

Cases 
$104.00 $3,224.00

14.  CalpHlex  100 Gallons- 20 
Cases 

$190.00 $3,800.00

15. ProteSyn 50 Gallons-10 
Cases 

$215.00 $2,150.00

18. White Gold Regular 0-0-24 
Grade 

2,000 Lbs – 40 Bags $34.00 $1,360.00

31. Carbon K 3-0-15 75 Gallons- 15 
Cases 

$116.00 $1,740.00

34. PK Fight 0-0-28 30 Gallons- 6 Cases $212.00 $1,272.00
35. White Gold Greens Grade  

0-0-24 
5,000 Lbs – 100 
Bags 

$38.00 $3,800.00

    $21,036.00
 
UAP Professional Products, Linden, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

26. Allectus 25 Gallons-5 Cases $1,030.00 $5,150.00
27. Prostar 100 Lbs-10 Cases $420.00 $4,200.00
30. Allectus Granular 500 Lbs-10 Bags $67.50 $675.00
33. Trimmit 8 Gallons-2 Cases $1,450.00 $2,900.00
36. Velocity 16 ounces- 2 Pak $704.96 $1,409.92
    $14,334.92

 
ESTIMATED TOTAL COST:   $178,277.95 

 
dtm  G:\Bid Award 06-07 NewFormat/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Chemicals 01.07.doc  

 



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 1-09-07 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 12
Date Prepared - 2/12/2007 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: IKEX

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 60 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or Alt:Chipco 2 X 2.5 GALS 76.90$             384.50$             
(12 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 109.00$     545.00$      94.91$        474.55

Alt: Mainsail
2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS 45.00$             225.00$             

(30 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 72.00$       360.00$      28.94$        144.70$    

3. 12 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(6 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 319.50$    639.00$     414.54$      829.08$     

4.  60 GALS AQUA-AID 30 GALS

(2 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM 19.50$      585.00$     No Bid No Bid

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 139.50$     558.00$      122.58$      490.32

6. 48 LBS HERITAGE W.G. 4 X 6 LBS

(2 CASES) BULK PACK 24 LBS/CASE 330.00$     7,920.00$   No Bid No Bid
Alt: Zenith75  48 x 1.6 oz

7. 153.6 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ. 13.32$             1,002.73$          Alternate: Imidicloprid
(6 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 20.06$       513.57$      13.62$        348.67$     

8. 45 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(9 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

9. 98 lbs. EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs

(20 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 270.00$     1,323.00$   No Bid No Bid

10. 75 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 30.00$      150.00$     No Bid No Bid

11. 75 GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 40.77$      203.85$     No Bid No Bid

12. 75 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE 40.00$      200.00$     No Bid No Bid

13. 155 GALS 20-0-4 CARBON N 2 X 2.5 GALS

(31 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

14. 100 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

15. 50 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

16. 171.85 lbs BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(5 Drums) Drum 74.42$      2,558.00$  No Bid No Bid

Turfgrass Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 1/09/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 12
Date Prepared -- 2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: IKEX

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 100 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 44.62$      223.08$     No Bid No Bid

18. 2,000 lbs WHITE GOLD 0-0-24
(40 BAGS) REG-GRADE 50 LBS/BAG No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

19. 34,000 lbs KELLY'S HIGH
(17 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 1 Ton/Bag 0.1188$    237.60$     No Bid No Bid

Alt:Subdue 2 x 16 x 5oz
20. 34 GALS SUBDUE MAXX 2 X 1 GALS 501.33$           1,106.38$          Alternate:  Mefanoxam 2

(17 Cases) LINK PAK 2 GALS/CASE 604.50$     1,209.00$   309.44$      618.88$    

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 386.00$    3,860.00$  No Bid No Bid
Alt: Fathom 2x2.5gal 

179.50$           897.50$             
Alt: Linkpak

22. 124 Gals BANNER MAXX 2 X 1 GALS 300.00$           3,000.00$          Alternate: Propiconizole Pro

(62 Cases) LINK PAK 2 GALS/CASE 300.00$     600.00$      247.09$      494.18$     

23. 110 lbs Alliette/Signature 2 x 11 lbs 18.359$    403.90$     No Bid No Bid
(5 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE

Alt: Glacier 4F
24. 300 Gals PAR-FLOW 4F 2 X 2.5 GALS 20.70$      103.50$     No Bid No Bid

(60 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

25. 10 Gals TARTAN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(2 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 416.00$     2,080.00$   No Bid No Bid

26. 25 Gals ALLECTUS 2 X 2.5 GALS 4x1 gal; 4 gal/case
(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 235.78$     943.12$      No Bid No Bid

27. 100 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(10 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 42.55$       425.50$      No Bid No Bid

28. 20 Gals CASCADE PLUS 20 gal. DRUM 68.85$      1,377.00$  No Bid No Bid
(1 Drum)

29. 20 Gals PROXY 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternate: Ethephon 2 SL
(4 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 37.30$       186.50$      32.33$        161.65$     

30. 500 lbs ALLECTUS GRANULAR 50 lbs/ BAG

(10 Bags) 1.47$         73.50$        No Bid No Bid

31. 75 Gals CARBON K 3-0-15 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

32. 6800 lbs ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 40 LBS/BAG

(170 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO 0.866$      34.67$       No Bid No Bid
33. 8 Gals TRIMMIT 4 X 1 GAL

(2 Cases) 4 GALS/CASE 408.00$     1,632.00$   No Bid No Bid

Turfgrass Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 01/09/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 12
Date Prepared -- 2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: IKEX

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 30 Gals PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternate:  FairPhyt

(6 Cases) 5 Gal/Case DMS No Bid No Bid

35. 5000 lbs WHITE GOLD GREENS 50 LBS/BAG

(100 Bags) GRADE  0-0-24 No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

36. 16 oz VELOCITY 4 x 2 oz

(2 Packs) 8oz/PACK 110.51$     884.08$      No Bid No Bid

37. 144 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case

(12 CASES) 12 lbs/Case 21.85$       262.20$      20.59$        247.08$     

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT:        One Bag or Case                 N/A

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper:   8:00 AM to 5:00 PM   8:00 AM to 5:00 PM
    Phone #         248-866-6081        517-403-3778

TERMS          Net 60 Days            Net 30 Days

WARRANTY         Manufacturers             Blank

EXCEPTIONS Alternates offered may provide              Blank
more cost effective
Alternates provided #1,#2,#7,
#20,#22,#24 & #34

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N               YES              YES

NO BIDS: 
ADAPCO Inc. BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS

ATTEST:
Jake Pilat
Debra Painter Susan Leirstein
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 06-56 Chemicals-Golf Courses

53,962.95$                      14,861.96$                      

Turfgrass, Inc.



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 1-09-07 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 12
Date Prepared - 2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: UAP

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 60 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternate: 18Plus
(12 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 79.00$       395.00$      72.00$       360.00$       

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternate:  Manicure 6 FL
(30 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 36.48$       182.40$      72.00$       360.00$       

3. 12 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(6 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 334.03$     668.06$      338.55$     677.10$       

4.  60 GALS AQUA-AID 30 GALS

(2 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 116.395$  465.52$     117.53$     470.12$       

6. 48 LBS HERITAGE W.G. 4 X 6 LBS Alternate: Insignia 7.2 x 3/case
(2 CASES) BULK PACK 24 LBS/CASE DMS 330.00$     7,920.00$    

7. 153.6 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ.

(6 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 18.55$       475.00$      16.25$       416.00$       

8. 45 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternate:  Bolster
(9 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS No Bid No Bid

9. 98 lbs. EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs

(20 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 270.00$     1,323.00$   270.00$     1,323.00$    

10. 75 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternate:  Green Flo 052448
(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS No Bid No Bid

11. 75 GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

12. 75 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

13. 155 GALS 20-0-4 CARBON N 2 X 2.5 GALS

(31 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

14. 100 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

15. 50 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

16. 2000 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(5 Drums) DRUM 77.04$       2,648.00$   77.04393 2,648.00$    

Lesco, Inc.



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 1/09/07 BID TABULATION               ITB-COT 06-56
Date Prepared -- 2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES Pg 5 of 12

VENDOR NAME: UAP

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 100 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

18. 2,000 lbs WHITE GOLD 0-0-24
(40 BAGS) REG-GRADE 50 LBS/BAG No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

19. 34,000 lbs KELLY'S HIGH
(17 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 1 Ton/Bag No Bid No Bid 0.1395$     279.00$       

20. 34 GALS SUBDUE MAXX 2 X 1 GALS Alternate: Mefenoxam
(17 Cases) LINK PAK 2 GALS/CASE 406.41$     812.82$      518.40$     1,036.80$    

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK No Bid No Bid 386.00$     3,860.00$    

22. 124 Gals BANNER MAXX 2 X 1 GALS Alternate: Spectator Ultra
(62 Cases) LINK PAK 2 GALS/CASE 196.23$     392.46$      285.00$     570.00$       

Alt: Prodigy Signature 5.5x4/cs
23. 110 lbs Alliette/Signature 2 x 11 lbs DMS 22.50$       495.00$      

(5 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE

Alternate:  Revere
24. 300 Gals PAR-FLOW 4F 2 X 2.5 GALS 25.01$       125.05$      22.00$       110.00$       

(60 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

25. 10 Gals TARTAN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(2 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 400.00$    2,000.00$  416.00$     832.00$       

26. 25 Gals ALLECTUS 2 X 2.5 GALS 4 x 1 gal 4x1 gal -  bid as 5 gal cs
(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 220.24$     880.96$      206.00$     1,030.00$   

27. 100 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(10 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 47.77$       477.70$      42.00$       420.00$      
Alternate: Lesco Flo 2.5gal x 2

28. 20 Gals CASCADE PLUS 20 gal. DRUM DMS No Bid No Bid
(1 Drum)

29. 20 Gals PROXY 2 X 2.5 GALS

(4 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid 32.90$       164.50$       

30. 500 lbs ALLECTUS GRANULAR 50 lbs/ BAG

(10 Bags) 1.51$         75.50$        1.35$         67.50$        

31. 75 Gals CARBON K 3-0-15 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

32. 6800 lbs ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 40 LBS/BAG

(170 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

(2 Cases) 4 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid 362.50$     1,450.00$   

Lesco, Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 01/09/07 BID TABULATION Pg 6 of 12
Date Prepared --  2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: UAP

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 30 Gals PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternate:  Green Flo Phyte

(6 Cases) 5 Gal/Case DMS No Bid No Bid

35. 5000 lbs WHITE GOLD GREENS 50 LBS/BAG

(100 Bags) GRADE  0-0-24 No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

36. 16 oz VELOCITY 4 x 2 oz

(2 Packs) 8oz/PACK No Bid No Bid 88.12$       704.96$      
8 oz x 4 x 10

37. 144 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case Alternate: T-Storm 
(12 CASES) 12 lbs/Case DMS 16.98$       203.76$       

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS -- 6,793.12$ 

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: No limit               NONE

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper:   8:00 AM to 5:00 PM   8:00 AM to 5:00 PM
    Phone #          586-839-8930

TERMS Net 30

WARRANTY                 None           Manufacturer

EXCEPTIONS Substitutions to bid specs have                 O
been noted along with original
specifications

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N               YES              YES

G:ITB-COT 06-56 Chemicals-Golf Courses

800-321-5325

N30

14,334.92$                       

Lesco, Inc.



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 1-09-07 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 12
Date Prepared -  2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Great Lakes Turf

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 60 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS

(12 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 72.00$      360.00$     No Bid No Bid

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 41.00$       205.00$      40.00$       200.00$         

3. 12 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(6 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 385.00$     770.00$      No Bid No Bid

4.  60 GALS AQUA-AID 30 GALS Alternate:Aquadult
(2 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM 37.30$       1,119.00$   No Bid No Bid

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 132.00$     528.00$      No Bid No Bid
16oz

6. 48 LBS HERITAGE W.G. 4 X 6 LBS Alternate:Sub Disarm (24 lbs)
(2 CASES) BULK PACK 24 LBS/CASE 259.00$    6,216.00$  No Bid No Bid

7. 153.6 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ. Alternate: Imidacloprid
(6 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 11.68$      299.00$     No Bid No Bid

8. 45 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(9 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid 82.00$       410.00$        

9. 98 lbs. EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs (10 Units x $132.30)
(20 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 270.00$    1,323.00$  No Bid No Bid

10. 75 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

11. 75 GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

12. 75 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

13. 155 GALS 20-0-4 CARBON N 2 X 2.5 GALS

(31 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid 20.80$       104.00$        

14. 100 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid 38.00$       190.00$        

15. 50 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid 43.00$       215.00$        

16. 2000 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(5 Drums) DRUMS No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Tri-Turf



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 1/09/07 BID TABULATION               ITB-COT 06-56
Date Prepared -- 2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES Pg 8 of 12

VENDOR NAME: Great Lakes Turf

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 100 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

18. 2,000 lbs WHITE GOLD 0-0-24
(40 BAGS) REG-GRADE 50 LBS/BAG No Bid No Bid 0.68$         34.00$          

19. 34,000 lbs KELLY'S HIGH
(17 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 1 Ton/Bag No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

20. 34 GALS SUBDUE MAXX 2 X 1 GALS Alternate: Mefenoxam
(17 Cases) LINK PAK 2 GALS/CASE 445.00$     890.00$      No Bid No Bid

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
2.5 Gal

22. 124 Gals BANNER MAXX 2 X 1 GALS Alternate: Propiconazole Alternate:  Propensity 1.3ME

(62 Cases) LINK PAK 2 GALS/CASE 155.00$    387.50$     190.00$     950.00$         
Alternate: Magellan   2.5 Gal

23. 110 lbs Alliette/Signature 2 x 11 lbs 98.00$       245.00$      No Bid No Bid
(5 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE

24. 300 Gals PAR-FLOW 4F 2 X 2.5 GALS 24.50$       122.50$      No Bid No Bid
(60 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

25. 10 Gals TARTAN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(2 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

26. 25 Gals ALLECTUS 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternate: Arena  40 oz
(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 599.00$     599.00$      No Bid No Bid

27. 100 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(10 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 48.50$       485.00$      No Bid No Bid
Alternate: 16-90    5 Gal

28. 20 Gals CASCADE PLUS 20 gal. DRUM DMS No Bid No Bid
(1 Drum)

29. 20 Gals PROXY 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternate: Ethephon
(4 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 32.00$      160.00$     No Bid No Bid

30. 500 lbs ALLECTUS GRANULAR 50 lbs/ BAG Alternate:  Arena (25lb)
(10 Bags) 1.50$         37.50$        No Bid No Bid

31. 75 Gals CARBON K 3-0-15 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid 23.20$       116.00$        
Alternate: LEB 18-3-18

32. 6800 lbs ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 40 LBS/BAG (50 Lbs)
(170 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO DMS No Bid No Bid

33. 8 Gals TRIMMIT 4 X 1 GAL

(2 Cases) 4 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Tri-Turf, Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 01/09/07 BID TABULATION Pg 9 of 12
Date Prepared -- 2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Great Lakes Turf

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 30 Gals PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 Gals

(6 Cases) 5 Gal/Case No Bid No Bid 42.40$       212.00$        

35. 5000 lbs WHITE GOLD GREENS 50 LBS/BAG

(100 Bags) GRADE  0-0-24 No Bid No Bid 0.76$         38.00$          

36. 16 oz VELOCITY 4 x 2 oz

(2 Packs) 8oz/PACK No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

37. 144 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case Alternate: T-Methyl 50
(12 CASES) 12 lbs/Case 15.75$      189.00$     No Bid No Bid

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT:                  No             One Case

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper:   8:00 AM to 5:00 PM   8:00 AM to 5:00 PM
    Phone #          248-640-4439          586-915-9281

TERMS  2% 10 -   Net 30            Net 30 Days

WARRANTY           Manufacturer           Manufacturer

EXCEPTIONS Attached to Bid Item #22: Substitue Propensity
1.3ME(Generic) for Banner Maxx

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N               YES              YES

G:ITB-COT 06-56 Chemicals-Golf Courses

67,289.00$                      21,036.00$                        

Tri-Turf, Inc.



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 1-09-07 BID TABULATION Pg 10 of 12
Date Prepared - 2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:

 EST PKG UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE

1. 60 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS

(12 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 32.00$            160.00$         

3. 12 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(6 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

4.  60 GALS AQUA-AID 30 GALS

(2 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM No Bid No Bid

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case No Bid No Bid

6. 48 LBS HERITAGE W.G. 4 X 6 LBS

(2 CASES) BULK PACK 24 LBS/CASE No Bid No Bid

7. 153.6 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ.

(6 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE No Bid No Bid

8. 45 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(9 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

9. 98 lbs. EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs

(20 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE No Bid No Bid

10. 75 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

11. 75 GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

12. 75 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE No Bid No Bid

13. 155 GALS 20-0-4 CARBON N 2 X 2.5 GALS

(31 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

14. 100 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

15. 50 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

16. 2000 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(5 Drums) DRUMS No Bid No Bid

Carso, Inc.



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 1/09/07 BID TABULATION               ITB-COT 06-56
Date Prepared --  2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES Pg 11 of 12

VENDOR NAME:

 EST PKG UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE
17. 100 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

18. 2,000 lbs WHITE GOLD 0-0-24
(40 BAGS) REG-GRADE 50 LBS/BAG No Bid No Bid

19. 34,000 lbs KELLY'S HIGH
(17 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 1 Ton/Bag No Bid No Bid

20. 34 GALS SUBDUE MAXX 2 X 1 GALS

(17 Cases) LINK PAK 2 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK No Bid No Bid

22. 124 Gals BANNER MAXX 2 X 1 GALS Alternate:  Heritage Pro
(62 Cases) LINK PAK 2 GALS/CASE 178.00$          356.00$         

23. 110 lbs Alliette/Signature 2 x 11 lbs No Bid No Bid
(5 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE

24. 300 Gals PAR-FLOW 4F 2 X 2.5 GALS No Bid No Bid
(60 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE

25. 10 Gals TARTAN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(2 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

26. 25 Gals ALLECTUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

27. 100 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(10 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE No Bid No Bid

28. 20 Gals CASCADE PLUS 20 gal. DRUM No Bid No Bid
(1 Drum)

29. 20 Gals PROXY 2 X 2.5 GALS

(4 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

30. 500 lbs ALLECTUS GRANULAR 50 lbs/ BAG

(10 Bags) No Bid No Bid

31. 75 Gals CARBON K 3-0-15 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE No Bid No Bid

32. 6800 lbs ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 40 LBS/BAG

(170 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO No Bid No Bid

33. 8 Gals TRIMMIT 4 X 1 GAL

Carso, Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 06-56
Opening Date -- 01/09/07 BID TABULATION Pg 12 of 12
Date Prepared -- 2/12/07 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:

 EST UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE
34. 30 Gals PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 Gals

(6 Cases) 5 Gal/Case No Bid No Bid

35. 5000 lbs WHITE GOLD GREENS 50 LBS/BAG

(100 Bags) GRADE  0-0-24 No Bid No Bid

36. 16 oz VELOCITY 4 x 2 oz

(2 Packs) 8oz/PACK No Bid No Bid

37. 144 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case

(12 CASES) 12 lbs/Case No Bid No Bid

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS -- -$               

MINIMUM SHIPMENT:              Blank

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper:              Blank
    Phone #              Blank

TERMS          Net 30 Days

WARRANTY              Blank

EXCEPTIONS              Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N               YES

G:ITB-COT 06-56 Chemicals-Golf Courses

Carso, Inc.



 
 
Date  February 14, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – Aquatic Center Umbrellas   
  
Background 

• On January 29, 2007, bids were received for nine Funbrella Palm twenty-foot straight-arm, non-
retractable umbrellas 

• Forty-Six (46) vendors were notified via the MITN system with one statement of no bid received.  
• This purchase is to replace existing structures and to add shade areas at the Troy Family Aquatic 

Center. 
• Recreonics, Inc of Louisville, KY was the low bidder. 

 
Financial Considerations 

• Funds are available in the Aquatic Center capital account # 789.7978.010. 
  

Legal Considerations  
• ITB-COT 06-58 to furnish nine (9) Shade Umbrellas for the Troy Family Aquatic Center was 

competitively bid and opened with six (6) bids received.  
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying the umbrellas 

for the City of Troy.  
 

Policy Considerations 
• The purchase of the shade umbrellas for the concession and deck areas is to replace aged equipment. 

(Goal V) 
• The installation of the new shaded area will provide shelter for patrons that desire protection from the 

sun (Goal I) 
 

Options 
• City management and the Parks and Recreation Department recommend awarding a contract to 

purchase nine (9) Funbrella Palm twenty-foot straight-arm, non-retractable umbrellas to the low bidder, 
Recreonics, Inc of Louisville, KY for an estimated total cost of $23,345.00.  

 
 
G:\Bid Award 06-07 new format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – funbrellasletter01.07.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-58
Opening Date -- 1/29/07 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 1/31/2007 UMBRELLAS

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Furnish Nine (9) Shade Umbrellas for the Troy Family Aquatic Center

QTY   DESCRIPTION Unit Price Total Unit Price Total 

5 ea Furnish five (5) Shade Umbrellas S-152-20' Palm
in accordance with the Specifications
Color:  Aquatic Blue 2,593.64$        12,968.20$      2,629.00$         13,145.00$       

4 ea Furnish four (4) Shade Umbrellas
in accordance with the Specifications
Color:  Cherry Red 2,593.64$        10,374.56$      2,629.00$         10,516.00$       

Est. Freight  + 750.00$           
GRAND TOTAL: ** 23,342.76$      24,411.00$      

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30

WARRANTY: Attached to Bid 1 Yr from Ship Date

DELIVERY DATE: Est. 4- 6 weeks 4 - 6 Wks ARO

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Freight est good for
30 days - Payment
in Full 30 days after
shipment

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N Yes Yes

NO BIDS: 
Saf' Play Services ** DENOTES LOWEST BIDDER

ATTEST:
Brian Goul ____________________________
Charlene Bryner Susan Leirstein
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 06-58 Umbrellas

** Recreonics, Inc. Anchor Industries, Inc.



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-58
Opening Date -- 1/29/07 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 1/31/2007 UMBRELLAS

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Furnish Nine (9) Shade Umbrellas for the Troy Family Aquatic Center

QTY   DESCRIPTION Unit Price Total Unit Price Total 

5 ea Furnish five (5) Shade Umbrellas
in accordance with the Specifications
Color:  Aquatic Blue 2,743.00$      13,715.00$     2,750.00$        13,750.00$         

4 ea Furnish four (4) Shade Umbrellas
in accordance with the Specifications
Color:  Cherry Red 2,743.00$      10,972.00$     2,750.00$        11,000.00$         

GRAND TOTAL: 24,687.00$    24,750.00$        

TERMS: Upon Acceptance Net 30 days

WARRANTY:  Manufacturers Per Manufacturers

DELIVERY DATE: Common Carrier 40 - 45 Days ARO

EXCEPTIONS: Ground Sleve is No Exceptions
not included - Bidding as Specified
they are already
installed

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 06-58 Umbrellas

B & B Pools & Spas Play Environments, Inc.



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-58
Opening Date -- 1/29/07 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 1/31/2007 UMBRELLAS

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Furnish Nine (9) Shade Umbrellas for the Troy Family Aquatic Center

QTY   DESCRIPTION Unit Price Total Unit Price Total 

5 ea Furnish five (5) Shade Umbrellas
in accordance with the Specifications
Color:  Aquatic Blue 2,872.00$          14,360.00$        4,132.00$          20,660.00$        

4 ea Furnish four (4) Shade Umbrellas
in accordance with the Specifications
Color:  Cherry Red 2,872.00$          11,488.00$        4,179.00$          16,716.00$        

GRAND TOTAL: 25,848.00$       37,376.00$       

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30

WARRANTY: 10 Yr - UV Warranty Attached to Bid

DELIVERY DATE: 3 - 4 weeks Approx 6 wks ARO

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Product proposed is
20' dia Single Post 
Umbrella (10' high)
See Attachment to bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 06-58 Umbrellas

Jennings of MichiganHighland Products Group LLC



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
February 19, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award –  

Community Center Catering 
 
Background 
 On January 16, 2007, requests for proposals (RFP) were received to provide catering services at 

the Troy Community Center.   
 75 vendors were notified via the MITN e-procurement website.  Five (5) companies responded 

with one statement of no bid received.   
 The RFP stated that the caterer with the highest rating would set the rate of return for all 

responsive caterers meeting minimum requirements.   
 No other vendors were willing to accept the rate of return (18%) proposed by Sankofa Housing, 

the highest rated proposal.   
 Groups using the Community Center will be allowed to use other caterers, but the user group will 

pay a service and cleaning fee and be required to adhere to the attached policy. (Exhibit 1)   
 
Financial Considerations 
 Based upon the return schedule of 18% of gross receipts, the Sankofa Housing proposal is the 

most beneficial to the City of Troy Community Center. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 RFP-COT-06-59 was competitively bid and all vendors were given the opportunity to respond with 

their level of interest in providing catering at the Community Center.   
 The award recommendation is based on best return to the City, ability to provide service and 

menu selection.   
 The contract award is contingent on the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and 

proposal documents, insurance certificates, and all other specified requirements.   
 
Policy Considerations 
 By establishing catering services, the City will benefit from the highest rate of return while offering 

menu variety at competitive prices. (Goal II) 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



Page 2 of 2 

February 19, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Best Value Award – Community Center Catering 
 
 
 
Options 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommends awarding a two-year 

contract for Community Center Catering with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to 
Sankofa Housing of Detroit, Michigan, the highest rated as well as offering the highest return, as a 
result of best value process with an 18% return on gross revenue.  

 



Exhibit 1 
 

Troy Community Center Food/Beverage Policy 
 

Groups that would like to serve food or beverages at their events in the Troy Community 
Center have the following options: 
 

1. Order from the Community Center “preferred” caterer(s).  If a qualifying meal is 
ordered, the group will receive a 35% discount on the room rental charges 
(excluding labor) provided the following minimum conditions are met: 
 Qualifying food order must be $5 or more per person  
 Group size of 20 
 Two hour room rental 

 
2. Order from a caterer that is not “preferred”.  Groups may hire another caterer to 

provide food and beverages but are subject to the following charges and 
conditions: 
 Cleaning Fee - $30 
 Service Fee (per person) - $.75 for breakfast, $1 for lunch, $2 for dinner 

(There is no service fee if beverage or snacks are served) 
 Breakfast items include bagels, muffins and pastries.  Snack foods include 

pre-packaged non-perishable items and desserts. 
 Caterer must have valid kitchen license. 
 Caterer or group will not have access to the kitchen area. 

 
3. Carry in food prepared from home, store or restaurant.  Groups, with the 

exception of non-profit groups (see below) may bring in their own food and 
beverages but are subject to the following charges and conditions: 
 Cleaning Fee - $30 
 Service Fee (per person) - $.75 for breakfast, $1 for lunch, $2 for dinner 

(There is no service fee if beverage or snacks are served) 
 Breakfast items include bagels, muffins and pastries.  Snack foods include 

pre-packaged non-perishable items and desserts. 
 Group will not have access to the kitchen area. 
 The food being served is only available to members of the group.  It 

cannot be served to the public. 
 
Other Information 

1. Any non-profit tax exempt (501c) corporations, community/civic organizations, 
churches, fraternal bodies, educational units or government organizations that 
consist of at least 75% Troy residents in attendance are permitted to carry in food 
prepared from home without incurring the service fee and will be subject to the 
cleaning fee if the room does not pass a post event inspection. 

2. Individuals visiting the Community Center may consume food brought from 
home or purchased at a restaurant without incurring a cleaning fee or service fee 
as long as the food is not being served for a group function.  For example, a 
patron may eat their individual lunch anywhere in the facility. 



Exhibit 1 
 

3. The kitchen is not available for use by any group except by a “preferred” caterer 
who may use it in the process of staging their meal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Troy Community Center Caterers 
 

STATISTICS: 
 
 Seventy-Five (75) Firms notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Five (5) proposals were received 

 
 All five (5) proposals qualified by passing the minimum requirements 

 
 Sankofa Housing was the most qualified firm by receiving the highest weighted score 

 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
 
Firm SCORE 
Sankofa Housing 68 
Cranks Catering & Food 55 
Kosch Catering 45 
Golden Spice 44 
Emerald Food Services 38 

 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring 
 Evaluation Process 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 

Troy Community Center Caterers 
Final Score Calculation: 

 
40% x Return Score (100 pt Base) 
35% x Menu Score (100 pt Base) 
15% x Sample Food Score (100 pt Base) 
10% x Other (100 pt Base) 
  75%              = Final Weighted Score 

 
In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.   

 
Return Score: 40% 
Vendors: Weighted Criteria – Difference in Return 

1-(High Return – Proposal Return) / high return] x available points 
Kosch Catering [1 – (18% - 6%)/18%] x 100                              =    33 
Cranks Catering & Food [1 – (18% - 10%)/18%] x 100                            =    56 
Emerald Food Services [1 – (18% - 3.50%)/18% x 100                          =    19 
Golden Spice [1 – (18% - 8%)/18% x 100                               =    44 
Sankofa [1 – (18% - 18%)/18% x 100                      =  100 
 
Menu Score:  35%  

Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
Kosch Catering 86 96 93 92 
Cranks Catering & Food 93 99 91 94 
Emerald Food Services 78 88 91 86 
Golden Spice 59 87 79 75 
Sankofa 63 88 89 80 
 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS: Kosch 

Catering 
Cranks 
Catering & 
Food 

Emerald 
Food 
Services 

Golden Spice Sankofa ** 

Score      
Price Score: (x .40) = 33 x .40 = 

13 
56 x .40 = 
22 

19 x .40 = 
8 

44 x .40 = 
18 

100 x .40 = 
40 

      
Menu Score:  (x .35) = 92 x .35 = 

32 
94 x .35 = 
33 

86 x .35 = 
30 

75 x .35 = 
26 

80 x .35 = 
28 

      

Final Score:  45 55 38 44 68 ** 
** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/ Award 06 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – Caterers 06-59– WeightedRatingSummary 01.07.doc 



 
  

SELECTION PROCESS 
 

CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified City Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to award this 
proposal to the company considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors including but 
not limited to the following: 

 
A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength  
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Qualifications Evaluation. 

 
Bidders will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second 
phase of the process.  (Evaluation Sheet Proposal) 

 
Phase 2:  Menu Evaluation Process. 

 
o The City Committee will use a weighted scoring sheet to evaluate the required submitted 

menus. 
o Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.   
o The scores of the three Committee Members will be averaged into one score for each 

bidder for this phase of the process. 
 

Phase 3:  Food Evaluation Process (optional) 
 

o The City Committee will use a weighted scoring sheet to evaluate the submitted food 
samples. 

o Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.   
o The scores of the three Committee Members will be averaged into one score for each 

bidder for this phase of the process. 
 

Phase 4:  Return 
  

 Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
 FORMULA – 
 
 [1-(High Return – Proposal Return) / high return] x available points  
 
 The caterer with the highest rating will set the rate of return for all caterers. 
 
 

   Page 1 of 2 



 
Criteria for Selection 
Community Center Caterers 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Phase 5:  Other (Optional)    
  
 Proposals may be assessed “Other” points for items not specified, but for which the 

Evaluation Committee deems as outstanding. 
 

 
Phase 6:  Final Scoring and Selection 

 
The highest final weighted scored will be the caterer(s) recommended to the Troy City Council 
for Award. 
 

  40% x Return Score (100 pt. Base)    = 
  35% x Menu Score (100 pt. Base)     =  
  15% x Sample Food Score (100 pt. Base)    =  
  10% x Other (100 pt. Base)      = 
            100%                 Final Weighted Score  

 
 

Note:   The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
   Page 2 of 2 

 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 06-59
Opening Date -- 01/16/07 RFP TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 2/16/07 COMMUNITY CENTER CATERING

FIRM NAME: **

CHECK #
CHECK AMT

PROPOSAL:   PROVIDE TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF CATERING SERVICE AT THE TROY COMMUNITY CENTER
WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL YEARS.

PROPOSAL: CATERING SERVICES
Return Schedule:  FULL SERVICE CATERING

Percentage of Gross Receipts 18% 10% 8%

INSURANCE:   Can Meet XX XX XX
      Cannot Meet

INSURANCE VERIFICATION:    Y or N Not Signed Yes Yes

PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Y or N Yes Blank Yes
Marked as: A-1 Function Sheet - 10 days

SITE REVIEW:    Reviewed the Sites August 2006 1/11/2007 1/11/2007
         Did not Review Sites

EXCEPTIONS: None None Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSED MENUS Y or N Yes Yes Yes

NO BIDS: 
AVI Foodsystems ** BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSAL

ATTEST:
Debra Painter
John Hug Susan Leirstein
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:RFP-COT 06-59 Catering - Community Center

Golden Spice
Catering LLC

Management

$500.00 $500.00

Sankofa Housing
Foodservice

Crank's Catering &

55902098956
$500.00

31418746710890663



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 06-59
Opening Date -- 01/16/07 RFP TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 2/16/07 COMMUNITY CENTER CATERING

FIRM NAME:

CHECK #
CHECK AMT

PROPOSAL:   PROVIDE TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF CATERING SERVICE AT THE TROY COMMUNITY CENTER
WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL YEARS.

PROPOSAL: CATERING SERVICES
Return Schedule:  FULL SERVICE CATERING

Percentage of Gross Receipts 6% 3.50%

INSURANCE:   Can Meet XX XX
      Cannot Meet

INSURANCE VERIFICATION:    Y or N Yes Yes

PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Y or N Yes Yes
Marked as: Plan 1.2 Payment Schedule

(10th of each month)
SITE REVIEW:    Reviewed the Sites 1/3/2007 XX

         Did not Review Sites

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes

PROPOSED MENUS Y or N Yes Yes

G:RFP-COT 06-59 Catering - Community Center

Kosch Catering Corp Emerald Food Services

45482886
$500.00 $500.00

314159488



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 5, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Molnar v.  Janice Pokley, City of Troy, et al. 
 

 
 
Enclosed please find a copy of a complaint that was recently filed 

by Gerald Molnar against Troy Police Detective Janice Pokley, the City of 
Troy, Renee Molnar, Care House, and Amy Allen.  Portions of the 
complaint have been redacted to protect the privacy of those persons.   In 
this lawsuit, filed under 42 U.S.C.  Section 1983, Plaintiff alleges that the 
Defendants conspired to violate his constitutionally protected parenting 
rights, right against unlawful seizure, due process rights, and right to equal 
protection under the law. Plaintiff has also alleged the state law claim of 
intentional infliction of emotional distress.      

 
According to the allegations in the complaint, in October 2003, 

Plaintiff’s ex- wife Renee Molnar came to the Troy Police Department and 
claimed that Plaintiff was sexually abusing one of the minor children at his 
home in the City of Troy.   Detective Pokley investigated Ms. Molnar’s 
complaint, and presented the results of her investigation to the Oakland 
County Prosecutor’s office for review.  The Oakland County Prosecutor’s 
Office believed that the requisite probable cause was established, and 
issued a warrant, alleging that the Plaintiff committed criminal sexual 
conduct (“CSC”).   The Oakland County Prosecutor then presented the 
case to District Court Judge Dennis Drury, who found that there was 
probable cause to believe that the Plaintiff committed the crime.  The case 
was then submitted to an Oakland County Circuit Court jury, who 
acquitted the Plaintiff after trial, (ie. the prosecution did not meet the 
beyond a reasonable doubt standard required in criminal prosecution).   
This acquittal occurred in October 2005.    
 

Plaintiff now alleges that Detective Pokley lacked probable cause to 
seek a warrant for Plaintiff’s arrest on the charge of CSC.  Plaintiff also 
alleges that Detective Pokley, Renee Molnar, Care House, (which 
conducts interviews in connection with CSC investigations), and Care 
House employee Amy Allen also conspired to violate Plaintiff’s 
constitutional rights. Finally, Plaintiff alleges that the City of Troy is liable 
because it failed to properly train its officers in investigating claims of child 
sexual abuse.               

 
Absent objections, the City Attorney’s Office will assume 

representation of the City in this case.  If you have any questions 
concerning the above, please let us know.   

campbellld
Text Box
E-05























































































 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
February 14, 2007 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Peggy E. Sears, Director of Human Resources 
  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police    
 
SUBJECT: Bid Waiver – Professional Services  – Police Department Promotional Testing Services 
 
Background: 
 
• Currently, two vacancies exist in the police sergeant ranks and it is anticipated that additional 

vacancies will exist in the sergeant, lieutenant, and captain ranks during the next year. 
• Act 78 Civil Service requires that a competitive examination be given and that an eligibility list, 

based on cumulative test score, be established.  Upon Act 78 certification, the list is valid for two 
years.  

• The testing procedure consists of an extensive assessment center for lieutenant and captain 
candidates, while sergeant candidates participate in a written examination and assessment 
center. 

• The most recent eligibility list expired on December 1, 2006. 
• Since 1990 EMPCO Inc. has provided promotional testing services for the police department.  
• The department has been part of EMPCO’s Metro Police Testing Consortium since 1996. 
• EMPCO has provided excellent service and the department is very satisfied with the manner they 

conduct promotional testing.  They customize the test to meet the needs of the organization, 
comply fully with Act 78 Commission requirements, and due to their 16-year track record have the 
confidence of the officers.  They have proven to be fair and impartial.   

• EMPCO purchased the Michigan Municipal League’s (MML) police testing service.  The MML now 
refers those desiring testing to EMPCO.   

• EMPCO provides promotional and entry level testing for numerous police departments and 
agencies around the state.  Included with this request is a list of EMPCO clients.       

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• This professional service has been budgeted for in the Contractual Service account 

#305.7802.070.  
• The total cost for the promotional testing depends upon the number of candidates taking the 

examination.  
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 
February 14, 2007 
 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Waiver - Police Department Promotional Testing Services 
 
 
 Financial Considerations: continued 
 
• The fee will not exceed $2,100.00 for preparing, administering, and scoring the sergeants written 

examination up to 30 candidates.  The assessment center fee is $4,800 per assessment center 
plus $400 per candidate, based on five (5) applicants; add $3,000 for each multiple of five (5) or 
fraction thereof; and mileage reimbursement for three (3) assessors and one (1) facilitator at a 
rate of $.445 per mile. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 If City Council approves the bid waiver, the Act 78 Civil Service Commission must approve the 

testing procedures, and an agreement with EMPCO must be executed.   
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community. (Goal I) 

 
Options: 
 
 City management is requesting a waiver of the formal bid process and authorization for a contract 

to provide police lieutenant, police sergeant, and police captain promotional testing be awarded to 
EMPCO Inc., for the preparation, administration and scoring of the sergeants written examination 
up to 30 candidates at a cost not to exceed $2,100; $4,800 per assessment center, plus $400.00 
per candidate based on five (5) applicants; add $3,000 for each multiple of five (5) or fraction 
thereof; and mileage reimbursement for three (3) assessors and one (1) facilitator at a rate of 
$.445 per mile. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business – Waiver EMPCO 01.07.doc 

Page 2 of 2 

























Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
February 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director     
 
SUBJECT: Amendment #1 - Tennis Court Reconstruction 
 
 
Background 
 On March 6, 2006, City Council awarded a contract for the reconstruction of eight tennis courts at 

Boulan Park to ABC Paving Company, of Trenton, MI for an estimated total cost of $116,452.00. 
(Res. #2006-03-126-E-4c) 

 During reconstruction of the first set of four courts, conditions were encountered for which 
additional costs were incurred. The existing asphalt surface, thought to be only 3” thick, was 
actually 9” thick resulting in additional removal and trucking costs. It was also discovered that the 
base rock found beneath the asphalt was unsuitable for re-use, requiring its removal and 
subsequent replacement with new base material. Finally, a significant portion of the site was found 
to be soft clay, necessitating removal of that material and replacement with additional crushed 
limestone. Unforeseen circumstances during the reconstruction of the first four courts resulted in 
an additional cost of $36,268.00 above the contract estimate for those four courts.              

 Assuming similar conditions with the remaining set of four courts scheduled for reconstruction, 
ABC Paving has supplied the City with a revised project cost to complete the west set of tennis 
courts at Boulan Park in the amount of $104,112.00. 

  
Financial Consideration 
 The total cost of the reconstruction of the east set of four tennis courts at Boulan Park was 

$95,780.00. Contractor’s estimate for the reconstruction of the west set of four tennis courts is 
$104,112.00, for a revised estimated total project cost of $199,892.00. 

 Staff requests approval to amend the original contract in an amount not to exceed $83,440.00 to 
complete the project. 

 Funds are available in the Parks and Recreation Capital Budget for Park Development, Account 
#401770.7974.020 and the Schools Joint Project Fund, #401752.7974.100.  

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07



Page 2 of 2 

February 12, 2007 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Amendment #1 – Tennis Court Reconstruction 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Reconstruction of the tennis courts at Boulan Park will reduce potential liability by providing a 

smooth and level playing surface, free of large cracking and separating asphalt. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Completion of the reconstruction of the remaining four tennis courts at Boulan will provide the 

public with a safe recreation and leisure opportunity while improving park infrastructure. (Goals I 
and V) 

 
Options 
 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation Department recommend approval of an 

amendment to the original contract with ABC Paving for the reconstruction of the tennis courts at 
Boulan Park in an amount not to exceed $83,440.00. 

 
 
 
 
JB  G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business Amendment #1 Tennis Court Reconstruct01-07.doc 
 
 



ABC PAVING COMPANY   Date:  January 18, 2007 
2650 Van Horn 
Trenton, MI 48183 
 
To: CITY OF TROY     Re: Boulan Park Tennis Courts 
 3179 Livernois      West Tennis Court Revision 
 Troy, MI 48083-5029 
  
Attn: Jeffery Biegler 
   
Per our phone conversation, ABC Paving is supplying you with a scope of work comparable to the scope of 
work performed on the east tennis courts.  We have included in the below price the additional depth of 
asphalt, additional stone required and have provided for a virgin tennis court mix.  We are not able to 
determine the amount, if any, for additional undercuts beyond the 6” in the bid.  Undercuts are defined as 
removal of any failed areas beyond 9” depth and backfill with 21AA limestone.  We have also not included 
for any underdrain.  If it is required, City of Troy supplied labor and material to install on east courts.  We 
have supplied unit prices for the additional work if required. 
 
WORKSCOPE: (West Tennis Courts) 

- Sawcut for clean removals 
- Remove asphalt up to 9” depth  
- Remove existing net post 
- Fine grade and compact existing subgrade 
- Place 6” 21AA limestone  
- Place 1.5” 1100L leveling course  
- Clean and sweep existing asphalt 
- Apply SS-1H bond coat 
- Place 1.5” 36A virgin wearing course 
- Reinstall net post 
- Color Coat 
- Restore areas disturbed by our work 

 
  TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT  $104,112.00 
 
ADDITIONAL UNIT PRICES: 
  Undercut  $28.00/TN 
  Additional Stone  $15.00/TN 
  Geogrid   $  3.50/SY 
 
Please sign and date so we may proceed with the project in a timely manner. 
  
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me @ (734) 676-2020. 
 
Sincerely,     Accepted By:___________________________ 
ABC Paving Company      (Owners Representative) 

 
 
Phil Nichols      Date:___________________________ 
Asphalt Division Manager 



campbellld
Text Box
E-08











 

 

 
Date February 19,

 
TO: Phillip L. Nels

 
FROM: John M. Lam

Tonni L. Bart
 

SUBJECT: Request for R
Director – Ed

  
Background: 
 
 Attached is a request fro

recognition as a nonprofit 
license to conduct fundrais
annual RTL-Lifepspan’s M
Management’s practice to 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial cons

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal conside

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy consid

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Tro

from Phyllis Sullivan, Direc
as a nonprofit organization
gaming license. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT 
 2007 

on, City Manager 

erato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
holomew, City Clerk 

ecognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Phyllis Sullivan, 
ucational Center for Life 

m Phyllis Sullivan, Director of Educational Center for Life, seeking 
organization status for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming 
ing events and/or raffles to raise the funds necessary to support their 
other’s Day Dinner at the San Marino Club. It has been City 

support the approval of such requests. 

iderations associated with this item. 

rations associated with this item. 

erations associated with this item. 

y City Council approve the proposed resolution to approve the request 
tor of the Educational Center for Life asking that they be recognized 
 operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09







































































campbellld
Text Box
E-10





























campbellld
Text Box
E-11























TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February  8, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy 
 

 

 

 

Enclosed please find a copy of a lawsuit, filed by Mary Ann Henning against the City 
of Troy.  Ms. Hennig was allegedly injured when Troy Police Officer Joseph Mairorano 
accidentally hit her vehicle on February 17, 2006.  Ms. Henning was driving her vehicle 
northbound on I-75.   

At the time of the accident, Officer Mairorano was participating in the pursuit of a 
vehicle on northbound I-75.  Just prior to the accident, the driver of this vehicle (Demario 
Williamson) engaged in activities that were consistent with drug trafficking at the Red Roof 
Inn on Rochester Court in Troy.  In an effort to evade the police, Mr. Williamson started to go 
north on I-75.  As he was traveling, he threw out a handgun and other unidentified items from 
the car.  One of these items was later discovered to be a large bag of crack cocaine.   

In an effort to stop the fleeing vehicle and to minimize potential damage, the Troy 
Police Officers attempted to box in the Williamson vehicle, which is an accepted police 
practice.  Mr. Williamson then attempted to escape, which caused Officer Mairorano to break 
to the right- where he made a minor contact with another police vehicle, and then spun into 
Ms. Hennig’s vehicle.   

The extent of Ms. Hennig’s alleged injuries will be revealed during discovery.  In her 
complaint, she alleges that she received serious impairment to a bodily function, as well as 
serious neurological injury. She alleges that her damages exceed $25,000, which is the 
jurisdictional amount required for personal injury lawsuits to be filed in the Circuit Court.  It 
should be noted that after the accident, Ms. Hennig was able to get out of her vehicle and 
walk around the scene.  She did not request medical assistance at the time.  

Our office will assume defense of this lawsuit absent objection from City Council.  
Please let us know if we can provide additional information.   

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-12











campbellld
Text Box
F-02



















campbellld
Text Box
F-03









TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council    
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 21, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Revised Chapter 90 – Animals  
 

 

 

 
At the January 8, 2007 City Council meeting, a Troy resident, Irene MacColeman, 

requested an amendment to the Animal Ordinance (Chapter 90).  This requested 
amendment would prohibit the prolonged tethering of dogs.  At that time, Council 
informally referred this requested amendment to the Animal Control Appeals Board for 
input and/or recommendation.     
 
 After researching the law, and reviewing ordinances from other jurisdictions, our 
office prepared proposed language that would prohibit the tethering or chaining of dogs 
unless certain conditions are satisfied.  For example, tethering would only be allowed 
when the tether is at least ten feet in length, and when the dog is provided with shelter.    
 
 At a meeting on February 14, 2007, the Animal Control Appeals Board reviewed 
the proposed ordinance revision, and recommended approval with one modification 
relating to the allowable time for tethering.     

 
In addition to the anti-tethering amendment, the Animal Control Appeals Board 

has also previously considered several other revisions to Chapter 90.  These revisions 
have been incorporated into one comprehensive package for Council’s consideration.   
Some of the other proposed changes to Chapter 90 include: reorganizing the overall 
structure of the chapter, reorganizing and clarifying definitions, clarifying the 
responsibilities and duties of the Animal Control Appeal Board, expanding the definition, 
grounds, and protocol for impounding animals, creating an exception for hunting and 
trapping Canada Geese as part of DNR nuisance animal programs, and consolidating 
and clarifying the permit requirements for domestic, dangerous, and wild animals. The 
Animal Control Appeals Board recommends adoption of all of these changes.  

 
The proposed revisions to Chapter 90 are attached for your review.  Due to the 

extensive changing and reformatting, it was difficult to use redline formatting to highlight 
all of the changes.  However, the anti-tethering provisions are highlighted for your 
convenience, as well as the current version of Chapter 90.  

 
This item is for informational purposes, and is planned to be an action item on the 

next City Council agenda.  If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us 
know.   

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a













































 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

February 15, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police  
    Captain Gary Mayer, Support Service Division 
    Sergeant Chris Stout 
 
SUBJECT:   Liquor Licenses/Licensing Process 
 
Background: 
 

• At the February 5, 2007, City Council meeting, Councilman Howrylak requested a 
comprehensive report on liquor licenses. 

• Quota System:  Allows municipalities a specific number of licenses based on the 
municipalities population. The quota system applies only to Class-C and SDD licenses. The 
MLCC uses the following formula, based on the most recent census, to establish the 
municipalities quota: 
1. Class C: 1 for every 1,500 persons; therefore, the City of Troy is allotted 54 
2. SDD: 1 for every 3,000 persons; therefore, Troy is allotted 27 

• License Types – There are various types of liquor licenses issued by the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission. In Troy, the following types of licenses are present: 
1. Class- C: License allows a restaurant/bar to sell beer, wine, and spirits to be consumed at 

the establishment. 
2. B-Hotel:   Same as a Class C, except it applies to hotels/motels, and allows alcohol to be 

consumed at the hotel and in patrons’ rooms 
3. Club: A special license issued to licensed clubs such as Elks and VFW; allows beer, wine 

and spirits to be sold and consumed on premises by registered members of the club, but 
not by the general public. 

4. Specially Designated Distributor (SDD): This license allows the licensee to sell beer, 
wine, and spirits to patrons to be consumed off the licensed premises. This is the license 
most party/liquor stores acquire. 

5. Specially Designated Merchant (SDM): Allows the licensee to sell beer and wine only to 
patrons to be consumed off the licensed premises.  

6. Wholesale License:  Allows for the import or export items of alcoholic beverages to stores 
in Michigan or out of state, but does not allow for the sale to the general public.   

7. Resort Licenses:  A resort license, which can be a Class C or B-Hotel, is only available 
after all the licenses under the quota have been issued and if the businesses to be licensed 
will directly benefit tourism or visitors. Applicants for a particular type of Resort liquor 
license must meet the qualifications for both the type of license applied for and as a Resort. 

campbellld
Text Box
H-02



8. Special Liquor License (24 Hour): A Special License is a contract between the 
Commission and the special licensee (only a nonprofit organization) granting authority to 
sell beer, wine, mixed spirit drink, or spirits at retail for consumption, on a specified 
premises only for a limited period of time. A Special License is good for one day. An 
organization can obtain up to five (5) Special Licenses per year. All profits derived from the 
sale of alcoholic liquor must go to the organization itself and not to any individual.  The 
special license has to be approved by the Chief of Police or Sheriff in the municipality 
where the function will take place. Once the applicant gets approval from the Chief or 
Sheriff, they must forward the request to the MLCC for final approval. 

• Some businesses have a Class-C or a B-Hotel License and a SDM license. These 
establishments obtain the SDM so they can sell a patron a bottle of wine that has been opened 
and not finished on the premise, or sell beer and wine to customers to be consumed after they 
leave the premises.  

• Several license types exist, but are not present in Troy. Some examples include:  
1. Tavern License: Similar to a Class – C; however, can only sell only beer and wine for on 

premise consumption.  
2. Brewpub: Allows a licensee to manufacture and sell beer for consumption on premises as 

well as sell it for take out. 
3. A-Hotel:  Allows a hotel to sell beer and wine in the hotel and in patrons’ rooms.  
4. There are also several other less common licenses. 

• On Premise License Permits - The MLCC also requires licensees who have on premise 
consumption licenses acquire permits for different activities that take place at the 
establishment. These permits require local approval.  Those most common in Troy include: 
1. Entertainment: This permit is needed to allow dancing or entertainment. Including the 

showing of movies or closed circuit television (boxing matches, concerts) or contests.   
2. Dancing:  Allows dancing by patrons.  
3. After Hours Food:  Allows for food service when alcohol sales are prohibited. 
4. Outdoor Service:  This allows the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages in 

a well-defined area adjacent to the licensed business. 
• There are other permits such as Golf, Bowling and Skiing, which are self-explanatory. 
• In addition to the number of quota licenses, the MLCC also issues:  

1. Transferable Resort Licenses (MCL 436.1531(2)): Allows for the transfer of a license to 
sell the same type of alcoholic beverages as the regular quota license, from anywhere in 
the state with Commission approval.  550 licenses were authorized under legislation 
enacted in 1947.  

2. Non-Transferable Resort Licenses (MCL 436.1531(3)): A specific number of these 
licenses may be issued each year, depending on current legislation. The licenses may 
transfer ownership, with Commission approval, but not location. The license must be 
returned to Commission if the business ceases to operate. There must be an investment of 
at least $75,000.00 in real property, improvements, and fixtures. 

3. The license must be returned to Commission if the business ceases to operate. There must 
be an investment of at least $75,000.00 in real property, improvements, and fixtures.   

4. Economic Development Resort Licenses (MCL 436.1531(4)): Authorizes the licensee to 
sell the same type of alcoholic beverages as the regular quota license. A specific number of 
licenses may be issued each year, depending on current legislation. These licenses may 
transfer ownership with Commission approval, but cannot transfer location. The license 
must be returned to Commission if the business ceases to operate. There must be at least 
a $1,500,000 investment in the premises to be licensed including real estate, building, 
leasehold improvements, fixtures, and inventory.   



5. Intra-County Transfer:  A Class C and B-Hotel license may be transferred within the 
county with the approval of the MLCC and approval of the local government the license is 
being transferred into. The issuance of intra-county transfers can put the number of 
licenses within a municipality above the MLCC quota amount.   

• Currently, Troy has the following number and types of liquor licenses: 
1. Class C: 54 active, 4 in escrow. 
2. Class C Resort: 8 active, one in escrow.  
3. B Hotel: 8, includes 1 B-Hotel Resort License 
4. SDD: 23 Active, 4 in escrow 
5. SDM: 15 
6. Wholesale: 5 
7. Club: 3 

• 7 Class-C licenses and 1 B-Hotel have been transferred in from other Oakland County cities.   
• Licenses in escrow are liquor licenses owned by the business, but the establishments are no 

longer open. The businesses still have to pay the licensing fee to the MLCC and the license 
can be kept in escrow for 5 years.  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• Liquor License Issuance Process: 
1.  The MLCC requires the local government to adopt a resolution to approve a new quota or 

resort license, or transfer a Class-C, Tavern, B-Hotel, A-Hotel license. The MLCC cannot 
grant any of those licenses without local approval.   

2. Application Process: 
A. New Quota License - The applicant must go before the municipality and request a 

quota license. The local government body must pass a resolution to approve the 
licensee “ above all others.” If there is more than one applicant, the municipality 
must decide which applicant to approve “ above all others” and then pass the 
resolution. This is one of the functions of the Liquor Advisory Committee. The LAC 
makes a recommendation to the City Council on which applicant to approve “ above 
all others.” Once passed, the resolution is sent to the MLCC and they begin the 
application process. The licensee must then follow the MLCC process and be 
approved by the MLCC. The MLCC does a thorough financial background to ensure 
the applicant is financially secure enough to run the business. The investigator also 
checks the location to make sure it is within the MLCC guidelines. The police 
department in the municipality where the license will be located does the criminal 
background of the applicant. If the police department locates any disqualifying 
factors, they can forward the information to the MLCC as well as giving reasons for 
the City Council to deny the request.  

B. Purchase of an Existing License or Transfer From another Location - The application 
process starts at the MLCC. The applicant applies to the MLCC, who then assigns 
an investigator. The MLCC investigator conducts a financial background 
investigation as well as looking at the location to make sure it complies with the 
MLCC guidelines.  A packet is then sent to the municipality where the transfer will 
take place. In Troy, the Police Department handles the transfer request.  Upon 
receipt of a transfer request an acknowledgement letter explaining the process, a 
background packet, a Liquor Agreement, and Troy City Ordinances regarding 
alcohol, are sent to the applicant.  After the applicant returns the completed 
background packet and pays the $1000 fee (which covers all inspections and 



processing), an inspection form is sent to the Building and Fire Departments, as well 
as the Treasurer. The applicant must pass all inspections and meet all local 
ordinances before the final approval is sent to the MLCC.  The applicant is then 
scheduled to appear before the City of Troy Liquor Advisory Committee (LAC). The 
applicant presents their case to the LAC, who then makes a recommendation to the 
City Council.  The transfer request is then put before City Council to make a 
resolution to approve the transfer. The MLCC cannot approve the transfer without a 
resolution from the City Council.  Once the applicant has passed the police 
background, the City Council has passed a resolution for approval of the transfer, 
and the business has passed all the Building and Fire Departments inspections, the 
final packet is forwarded to the MLCC for final approval.  

• SDD and SDM licenses do not require local approval. However, past practice in Troy has 
always had the licensee go before City Council to request approval. 

• The entire licensing process takes approximately 3-4 months.  
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• City Goal I: “Enhance the livability and safety of the community”, Goal III “Retain and attract 
investment while encouraging redevelopment” 

 
 
 



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL             October 14, 2004  

 
A regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board was held on Wednesday, 
October 14, 2004 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairperson Jayne Saeger called the meeting to order at 7:31 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Al Petrulis, Vice-Chairperson 
    V. James Viola, Secretary 
    Sergeant Michael Szuminski 
    ACO Greg Latka 
    Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Kathleen Melchert 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Melchert 
 
Resolution #AC2004-10-009  
Moved by Viola 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Melchert at the Animal 
Control Appeal Board meeting of October 14, 2004 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  3 
No:  0 
Absent: Melchert 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of September 21, 2004 Meeting 
 
Resolution #AC2004-10-010  
Moved by Viola 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the September 21, 2004 meeting of the Animal 
Control Appeal Board be approved. 
 
Yes:  3 
No:  0 
Absent: Melchert 
 

 Page 1 of 2

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL             October 14, 2004  

 
    
 
  
ITEMS FOR REVIEW: 
 
A discussion was held regarding the revision of Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) and 
Chapter 90 (Animals).  City Attorney Lori Grigg-Bluhm explained the highlights of 
the proposed amendments. 
 
 
 

 
 

The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, March 2, 2005 in 
Conference Room C. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:44 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

 Page 2 of 2



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL             March 2, 2005  

 
A regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board was held on Wednesday, 
March 2, 2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairperson Jayne Saeger called the meeting to order at 7:43 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Al Petrulis, Vice-Chairperson 
    V. James Viola, Secretary 
    Patrick Carolan 
    Kathleen Melchert 
    Sergeant Michael Szuminski 
    ACO Greg Latka 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
   
 
 
Resolution to Elect Chairperson 
 
Resolution #AC2005-03-001  
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Viola 
 
RESOLVED, that Saeger will serve as Chairperson of the Animal Control Appeal 
Board for one year. 
 
Yes:  All-5 
No:  None 
 
 
 
Resolution to Elect Vice-Chairperson 
 
Resolution #AC2005-03-002  
Moved by Viola 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that Melchert will serve as Vice-Chairperson of the Animal Control 
Appeal Board for one year. 
 
Yes:  All-5 
No:  None 
 

 Page 1 of 3

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL             March 2, 2005  

 
Resolution to Elect Secretary 
 
Resolution #AC2005-03-003 
Moved by Viola 
Seconded by Carolan 
 
RESOLVED, that Petrulis will serve as Secretary of the Animal Control Appeal 
Board for one year. 
 
Yes:  All-5 
No:  None 
 
 
 
ITEMS FOR REVIEW 
 
 
Resolution to Amend Chapter 75 
 
The Board reviewed the proposed amendments to Chapter 75 (Pet Shops) in the 
red-lined draft provided by Lori Grigg Bluhm.  A brief discussion of the proposed 
changes was held. 
 
Resolution #AC2005-03-004 
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Viola 
 
RESOLVED, that the Animal Control Appeal Board recommends to City Council to 
approve the amendments made to Chapter 75. 
 
Yes:  All-5 
No:  None 
 
 
 
Resolution to Amend Chapter 90 
 
The Board reviewed the proposed amendments to Chapter 90 (Animals) in the 
red-lined draft provided by Lori Grigg Bluhm.  A brief discussion of the proposed 
changes was held. 
 
Resolution #AC2005-03-005 
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Viola 
 

 Page 2 of 3



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL             March 2, 2005  

RESOLVED, that the Animal Control Appeal Board recommends to City Council to 
approve the amendments made to Chapter 90. 
 
Yes:  All-5 
No:  None 
 
 
 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 7, 2005 at 7:30 
p.m. in Conference Room C. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

 Page 3 of 3



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL          September 7, 2005  

 
A regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board was held on Wednesday, 
September 7, 2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairperson Jayne Saeger called the meeting to order at 7:33 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Kathleen Melchert, Vice-Chairperson 
    Al Petrulis, Secretary 
    Patrick Carolan 
    V. James Viola 
    ACO Greg Latka 
    Pat Gladysz 
  
 
 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 
The Minutes from the October 14, 2004 and March 2, 2005 meetings are not 
available for review. 
 
The unknown status of the revisions to Chapters 75 and 90 was briefly discussed. 
 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, March 1, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

 Page 1 of 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL            March 8, 2006  

 
A regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board was held on Wednesday, 
March 8, 2006 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West 
Big Beaver Road.  Chairperson Jayne Saeger called the meeting to order at 7:35 
p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Al Petrulis, Vice-Chairperson 
    Patrick Carolan 
    Lieutenant Chuck Pappas 
    ACO Greg Latka 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: V. James Viola 

Kathleen Melchert 
     
 
   
Resolution to Excuse Melchert and Viola 
 
Resolution #AC2006-03-001 
Moved by Petrulis 
Seconded by Carolan 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Melchert and Viola at the 
Animal Control Appeal Board meeting of March 8, 2006 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  3  
No:  0 
Absent: Melchert, Viola 
 
 
Resolution to Elect Chairperson 
 
Resolution #AC2006-03-002  
Moved by Petrulis 
Seconded by Carolan 
 
RESOLVED, that Saeger will serve as Chairperson of the Animal Control Appeal 
Board for one year. 
 
Yes:  3  
No:  0 
Absent: Melchert, Viola 

 Page 1 of 3

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL            March 8, 2006  

 
 
 
Resolution to Elect Vice-Chairperson 
 
Resolution #AC2006-03-003 
Moved by Carolan 
Seconded by Saeger 
 
RESOLVED, that Petrulis will serve as Vice-Chairperson of the Animal Control 
Appeal Board for one year. 
 
Yes:  3  
No:  0 
Absent: Melchert, Viola 
 
 
Resolution to Elect Secretary 
 
Resolution #AC2006-03-004 
Moved by Petrulis 
Seconded by Saeger 
 
RESOLVED, that Carolan will serve as Secretary of the Animal Control Appeal 
Board for one year. 
 
Yes:  3  
No:  0 
Absent: Melchert, Viola 
 
 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 
The Minutes from the October 14, 2004, March 2, 2005, and September 7, 2005 
meetings are not available for review. 
 
The unknown status of the revisions to Chapters 75 and 90 was briefly discussed. 
 
The Board expressed their thanks to Animal Control Officer Greg Latka for his 
years of service, and wished him well in his retirement. 
 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 6, 2006 at 7:30 
p.m. 
 
 

 Page 2 of 3



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL            March 8, 2006  

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 3 of 3



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL           September 6, 2006  

 
A regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board was held on Wednesday, 
September 6, 2006 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairperson Jayne Saeger called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Al Petrulis, Vice-Chairperson 
    Kathleen Melchert 
    V. James Viola 
    ACO Donald Cochran 
    PSA Stephen Vaillancourt 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Patrick Carolan, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 
The absence of Committee member Carolan was discussed.  There was no 
resolution to excuse his absence. 
 
There are no appeals on the agenda. 
 
The Minutes from the October 14, 2004, March 2, 2005, September 7, 2005, and 
March 8, 2006 meetings are not available for review. 
 
City Ordinance Chapters 75, 90, and 98 with proposed changes were mailed to 
the Committee members for their review prior to this meeting.  There was a brief 
discussion regarding the changes.  Animal Control Officer Donald Cochran, Police 
Service Aide Stephen Vaillancourt, and Assistant City Attorney Christopher 
Forsyth answered questions from the Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 1 of 3

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL           September 6, 2006  

Resolution Regarding Chapter 75 – Pet Shops 
 
Resolution #AC2006-09-005 
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Viola 
 
RESOLVED, that the Animal Control Appeal Board is recommending to City 
Council to accept Chapter 75 as written with the proposed changes. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Carolan 
 
 
 
Resolution Regarding Chapter 90 – Animals  
 
Resolution #AC2006-09-006 
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Viola 
 
RESOLVED, that the Animal Control Appeal Board is recommending to City 
Council to accept Chapter 90 as written with the proposed changes. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Carolan 
 
 
 
Resolution Regarding Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 
 
Resolution #AC2006-09-007 
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Viola 
 
RESOLVED, that the Animal Control Appeal Board is recommending to City 
Council to accept Chapter 98 as written with the proposed changes. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Carolan 
 
 
 
 

 Page 2 of 3



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL           September 6, 2006  

 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for March 7, 2007. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 3 of 3



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final October 23, 2006 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, October 23, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
5:01 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 2, 2006  
 
Resolution #EC-2006-10-12 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, October 2, 2006, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 

Approval of Election Receiving Board Assignments for the November 7, 2006 
General Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2006-10-13 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Receiving Board be appointed for the Tuesday, November 7, 
2006 Election, as presented by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:04 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             NOVEMBER 13, 2006  

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
November 13, 2006 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Allemon 
 
Resolution #LC2006-11-020  
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Allemon at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of November 13, 2006 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Allemon 
 
 

 Page 1 of 6

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             NOVEMBER 13, 2006  

Resolution to Approve Minutes of October 9, 2006 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2006-11-021 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the October 9, 2006 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Allemon 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. KONA MACADAMIA, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C 

licensed business located in escrow at 819 E. Auburn, Rochester Hills, MI 
48307, from Whirly-Ball-Rochester L.L.C.; transfer location to 30 E. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; request new SDM license to be 
held in conjunction; and request a new official permit (food) and new 
outdoor service area. (Kona Grill) 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were John Carlin, attorney, and 
Greg Snodgrass, Vice President of Training for Kona Grill. 
 
This is an Arizona-based, publicly held company that was started in 1998.  Their 
14th location will open in Florida this week.  Their establishment is basically an 
American grill with a Sushi bar that has an “upscale casual” atmosphere.  The 
restaurant will hold approximately 280 seats, including the patio.  The hours of 
operation are 11:00 a.m. to either 11:00 p.m. or 12:00 a.m., seven days a week.  
They hope to open for business in February 2007.   
 
Management will be transferred from other locations and also new managers will 
be hired.  New management and wait staff will be thoroughly trained.   
 
Typically, sales are 30-35% liquor to 70-65% food.  Their happy hour promotes 
food sales rather than liquor sales.   
 
Lieutenant Lyczkowski stated that the list of corporate officers, financial statement, 
and annual report were not in the Police Department’s investigative file.  He 
received those items from Mr. Carlin just before the start of this meeting.  
Lieutenant Lyczkowski needs to review these items with Sergeant Stout and 
conduct criminal background checks on the corporate officials. 
 

 Page 2 of 6



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             NOVEMBER 13, 2006  

The Police Department has no other issues with this license transfer. 
 
Since the results of the Police Department’s criminal background check will not 
require that this item be placed on a future meeting’s agenda, it was determined 
that the Resolution be worded to indicate that the Committee has voted to 
recommend approval of the license transfer subject to the positive outcome of the 
Police Department’s investigation. 
 
 
Resolution #LC2006-11-022 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that KONA MACADAMIA, INC., be allowed to transfer ownership and 
location of a 2006 Class C licensed business located in escrow at 819 E. Auburn, 
Rochester Hills, MI 48307, from Whirly-Ball-Rochester L.L.C. to 30 E. Big Beaver, 
Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and obtain a new SDM license to be held in 
conjunction and a new official permit (food) with new outdoor service area, subject 
to a background check of the corporate officers showing no negative criminal 
contacts in Michigan and favorable recommendation of the Troy Police 
Department. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Allemon 
 
 
 

 Page 3 of 6



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             NOVEMBER 13, 2006  

Assistant City Attorney Allan Motzny provided the following information: 
 

• With regard to the question from a previous meeting as to whether 
Hooters could operate under another license through a management 
agreement or participating agreement, the MLCC Administrative 
Rules allow a participating agreement to be approved by the State 
where a non-licensee could operate under someone else’s license.   
There is no requirement for approval by the local legislative body. 

 
• With regard to the question of Hooters transferring the location of 

their present license, under State law there is no requirement for 
approval by the local legislative body.  The Police Department and 
Building Department still conduct their investigations, but City 
Council does not have to approve. 

 
• Hooters has filed a new law suit under the Federal Civil Rights 

Statute (known as a Section 1983 Action) against the City in Federal 
Court asking for money damages alleging violation of constitutional 
rights, specifically the denial of their First Amendment right to 
freedom of expression, their right to equal protection of law, and their 
right to due process.   Mr. Motzny stated that the issues that are 
being raised in the new federal suit are very similar to some of the 
issues raised in the earlier suit.  There are doctrines that would 
require a Federal Court to decline jurisdiction when similar issues 
involving the same parties are being litigated in a pending State 
case, and since the State litigation is in the Court of Appeals, it is 
deemed a pending case.  

 
 
 
 

 Page 4 of 6



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             NOVEMBER 13, 2006  

Lieutenant Lyczkowski gave the following update on the Informational Items: 
 

• ESTATE WINE COMPANY, LLC, requests to transfer ownership of 
2006 Outstate Seller of Wine and Wholesale license from Boss 
Imports and Wholesale, LLC, located at 1501 Temple City, Troy, MI 
48084. [MLCC REQ#359485]  Does not require any action from 
Committee or Council 

 
 Waiting for Building inspections 

 
 
• JILL-NICK CORP, requests to transfer location of 2005 SDD & SDM 

licenses from 3296 Rochester, Troy Michigan, 48083, Oakland 
County to 1031 Hartland, Troy, MI, 48083,Oakland County. [MLCC 
REQ ID # 309295] Does not require any action from Committee or 
Council (Buscemi’s) 

 
 Construction not complete 

 
 
• MON JIN LAU, INC., requests to add additional bar permit to Class C 

licensed business           located at 1515 E. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ#366894] Does not require any action 
from Committee or Council 

 
 Application not returned to Police Department 

 
 

 Page 5 of 6



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             NOVEMBER 13, 2006  

The meeting adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 6 of 6



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JANUARY 3, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, January 3, 2007, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:07 p.m. 
 
Present:  C Buchanan, member K. Clark, alternate 
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, member  
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  J. Stewart, member  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
Absent: M. Freliga, member UA 
   P. Hammond, member UA 
   S. Murphy, alternate EA 
   C. Weidman, student EA 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF DECEMBER 6, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of December 6, 2006 be approved.  
Supported by Done; all voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
Eve Parsons, Vice President of the Friends of the Troy Public Library, explained the 
special needs collection program.  Because this program deals with toys used for 
learning tools, the environment can be somewhat noisy, which contradicts the quiet 
zone environment associated with a library. 
 
Eve researched the need for a special needs collection and found there are 1,050 
children enrolled in Troy Schools’ special education programs, 25,000 in Oakland 
County.  There is not a single library with special needs materials.  The Friends of the 
Troy Public Library allocated $5,000 to start up the Special Needs Program.  Early 
response to this program is above expectations.  Learning toys can soon be checked 
out of the library.  Also, these toys can be very useful rehabilitation tools for adults 
recovering from certain illnesses.  Eve will keep this Committee informed on the 
progress of this program along with the Friends of the Troy Library future programs. 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Werpetinski reported: 
1. She submitted to Community Affairs the City service resource list for 

persons with disabilities to be included in Troy Today. 
2. FEMA agreed to send the City 500 copies of emergency preparedness for 

persons with disabilities and NOD, National Organization on Disabilities, is 
sending 200 copies each of three different publications on preparedness. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JANUARY 3, 2007 

 2

3. It has been reported that there were some problems with the Automark 
voting machine used in the November election.  This equipment may be 
recalled. 

A. Buchanan reported that herself, Clark, Werpetinski and Hyun met and formed a  
rough draft of an emergency preparedness plan for persons with disabilities.  
They will have a final draft prior to next month’s meeting and will be asking for 
the Committee’s approval.  If approved, it will go to Fire and Police Dept. for 
approval.  The goal is to meet the March 3 deadline for the next Troy Today 
publication. 

B. Grusnick distributed copies of the new ACPD brochures.  After Committee’s 
review it was decided that a couple of items are incorrect and will need to be 
changed prior to future printing.   

1. An abbreviated version of the Committee mission statement was 
inadvertently printed in the brochure.  This version was not approved by 
the Committee and the original mission statement will be used in all future 
documents and publications. 

2. Some members suggested the background shading does not contrast 
enough with the print; others felt that the contrast was acceptable.  This 
will be discussed further prior to the next brochure printing. 

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 

A. Werpetinski presented commendation letters prepared for four individuals     
recognizing the outstanding services they have provided for persons with 
disabilities and the community.  Buchanan motioned to approve these four 
commendation letters.  Supported by Pietron; all voted in favor.  These letters will 
be delivered to Community Affairs for finalizing and mailing. 

B. A representative of the Oakland County Adaptive Technology  Computer Lab 
project will be demonstrating to library staff new adaptive technology equipment 
on January 19, at 9:30 a.m.   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director, has invited one 
or two ACPD members to attend.  Buchanan and Done volunteered to attend and 
will brief the Committee at next month’s meeting. 

 
Buchanan and Clark will attempt to meet with Brian Stoutenburg for the purpose of 
reviewing the Library web page for information and services for persons with disabilities. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 

A. Werpetinski reported that accessibility for group child care homes is still in 
discussion at City Council and that the survey questionnaire for closed captioning 
was not sent to residents with the 2007 calendars. 

     
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None to report. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 

A. Buchanan reminded members that the Senior Expo will be held on March 20.  If 
this Committee wants to participate, volunteers will be needed. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JANUARY 3, 2007 

 3

B. Werpetinski will request Community Affairs enclose an ACPD brochure when 
sending commendation letters. 

 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 8:50 p.m.  Supported by Geier.  All voted in favor. 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JANUARY 3, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, January 3, 2007, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:07 p.m. 
 
Present:  C Buchanan, member K. Clark, alternate 
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, member  
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  J. Stewart, member  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
Absent: M. Freliga, member UA 
   P. Hammond, member UA 
   S. Murphy, alternate EA 
   C. Weidman, student EA 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF DECEMBER 6, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of December 6, 2006 be approved.  
Supported by Done; all voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
Eve Parsons, Vice President of the Friends of the Troy Public Library, explained the 
special needs collection program.  Because this program deals with toys used for 
learning tools, the environment can be somewhat noisy, which contradicts the quiet 
zone environment associated with a library. 
 
Eve researched the need for a special needs collection and found there are 1,050 
children enrolled in Troy Schools’ special education programs, 25,000 in Oakland 
County.  There is not a single library with special needs materials.  The Friends of the 
Troy Public Library allocated $5,000 to start up the Special Needs Program.  Early 
response to this program is above expectations.  Learning toys can soon be checked 
out of the library.  Also, these toys can be very useful rehabilitation tools for adults 
recovering from certain illnesses.  Eve will keep this Committee informed on the 
progress of this program along with the Friends of the Troy Library future programs. 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Werpetinski reported: 
1. She submitted to Community Affairs the City service resource list for 

persons with disabilities to be included in Troy Today. 
2. FEMA agreed to send the City 500 copies of emergency preparedness for 

persons with disabilities and NOD, National Organization on Disabilities, is 
sending 200 copies each of three different publications on preparedness. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JANUARY 3, 2007 

 2

3. It has been reported that there were some problems with the Automark 
voting machine used in the November election.  This equipment may be 
recalled. 

A. Buchanan reported that herself, Clark, Werpetinski and Hyun met and formed a  
rough draft of an emergency preparedness plan for persons with disabilities.  
They will have a final draft prior to next month’s meeting and will be asking for 
the Committee’s approval.  If approved, it will go to Fire and Police Dept. for 
approval.  The goal is to meet the March 3 deadline for the next Troy Today 
publication. 

B. Grusnick distributed copies of the new ACPD brochures.  After Committee’s 
review it was decided that a couple of items are incorrect and will need to be 
changed prior to future printing.   

1. An abbreviated version of the Committee mission statement was 
inadvertently printed in the brochure.  This version was not approved by 
the Committee and the original mission statement will be used in all future 
documents and publications. 

2. Some members suggested the background shading does not contrast 
enough with the print; others felt that the contrast was acceptable.  This 
will be discussed further prior to the next brochure printing. 

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 

A. Werpetinski presented commendation letters prepared for four individuals     
recognizing the outstanding services they have provided for persons with 
disabilities and the community.  Buchanan motioned to approve these four 
commendation letters.  Supported by Pietron; all voted in favor.  These letters will 
be delivered to Community Affairs for finalizing and mailing. 

B. A representative of the Oakland County Adaptive Technology  Computer Lab 
project will be demonstrating to library staff new adaptive technology equipment 
on January 19, at 9:30 a.m.   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director, has invited one 
or two ACPD members to attend.  Buchanan and Done volunteered to attend and 
will brief the Committee at next month’s meeting. 

 
Buchanan and Clark will attempt to meet with Brian Stoutenburg for the purpose of 
reviewing the Library web page for information and services for persons with disabilities. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 

A. Werpetinski reported that accessibility for group child care homes is still in 
discussion at City Council and that the survey questionnaire for closed captioning 
was not sent to residents with the 2007 calendars. 

     
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None to report. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 

A. Buchanan reminded members that the Senior Expo will be held on March 20.  If 
this Committee wants to participate, volunteers will be needed. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JANUARY 3, 2007 

 3

B. Werpetinski will request Community Affairs enclose an ACPD brochure when 
sending commendation letters. 

 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 8:50 p.m.  Supported by Geier.  All voted in favor. 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                              JANUARY 3, 2007 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, January 3, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Tim Richnak 
   Dave Roberts 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 6, 2006 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 6, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BASEMENT EXPERTS, 3648 EDGEMONT 
DRIVE, for relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to finish a 
basement that will include the installation of a suspended ceiling with dropped ceiling 
areas for beams and ductwork.  The drop area enclosing the ductwork is shown with a 
6’-3” proposed finish height.  The 2003 Michigan Residential Code, Section R-305 
requires a 6’-6” minimum ceiling height for ductwork drops in finished basements. 
 
Mr. Steve Attar of Basement Experts was present and said that this request was the 
same as others he had presented in the past.  Mr. Attar passed out pictures to the 
Board members showing the layout of the basement.  The only area that a variance 
would be required is under the ductwork.  Mr. Attar also indicated that although a 90 
degree corner is shown on the plans, they would be more than willing to modify this 
corner by turning it and changing it to a diagonal rather than a sharp corner. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the ceiling height of the basement was and Mr. Attar said that 
in the other areas it is 7’ and 6’-6” under the I-beams.   
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                              JANUARY 3, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked what would happen to the round supply duct and Mr. Attar said that 
they plan to re-route the duct in between the floor joists. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Basement Experts, 3648 Edgemont Drive, relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to finish the basement that will result in a 6’-3” finish height for the 
ceiling above the drop area where Section R-305 requires a 6’-6” minimum ceiling 
height for ductwork drops in finished basements. 
 

• The corner will be constructed diagonally, so there will not be any sharp 
corners. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was some way to change the Code so that these variance 
requests would not be necessary. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he was not aware of any petitions submitted to the State asking 
that this requirement be changed, but thought that it would be in the best interests of the 
petitioner to explore that possibility. 
 
ITEM #3 – MEETING OF JULY 4, 2007 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to change the date of the July 4th meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to Wednesday, July 11, 2007. 
 

• July 4th is a Legal Holiday. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO CHANGE DATE OF JULY MEETING CARRIED 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                              JANUARY 3, 2007 

MOVED, to elect Ted Dziurman, Chairman and Bill Nelson, Vice-Chairman of the 
Building Code Board of Appeals for the 2007 year. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO ELECT TED DZIURMAN, CHAIRMAN AND BILL NELSO, VICE-
CHAIRMAN CARRIED. 
 
Board members wished Marlene Struckman well as this is her last meeting due to her 
retirement. 
 
The meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 8:42 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 

 3



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Jan. 4, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Jan. 4, 
2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Frank Shier, Member  Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: Merrill Dixon, excused    
   
Visitors:  Tom Rosewarne, John Abraham, Margaret Julian, Linda Macka 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-1-001 
Moved by Pauline Noce  
Seconded by JoAnn Thompson  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Dec. 7, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Linda Macka provided details about the upcoming spelling bee 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that a ribbon cutting ceremony will be held in 
the spring.  The committee would like to have it in March.  Sixteen people have expressed an 
interest in a bocce league and four have expressed interest in a shuffleboard league.  It will be 
announced that the courts are available for open play and that leagues will be formed if 
interest is sufficient.  Several “learn to play” sessions will be offered as soon as weather 
permits, probably beginning in April. 
 
Street Signs:  Superintendent of Streets Tom Rosewarne and Traffic Engineer John Abraham 
presented information about street signs:  size, color, placement, trends around the country, 
and changes being considered for Troy.  Committee members questioned visibility of signs, 
lack of signs on some corners and timing of lights.  
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Jan. 4, 2007 

2 

 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that the contract with Emerald 
Food Service will end February 12.  The City is accepting proposals from caterers and will 
develop a list of "preferred" caterers for the Community Center.  Proposals are due January 
16.   Changes in the food policy regarding non-profit groups that meet the residency 
requirement has yet to be determined.   JoAnn read a quote by Steve Haveraneck that 
appeared in the Troy Times stating that he would “have allowed people to bring in cookies had 
I known it would create so much discontent. “  JoAnn pointed out that this statement was 
contrary to the position Emerald had maintained throughout discussions about the issue.   
 
Lunch Visits:  The committee discussed visiting Clawson, Sterling Heights, Warren and 
Harrison Twp, among others, for the senior lunch. 
 
Medicare Part D:  The committee continued their discussion about the importance of being 
informed about the various plans and the need to keep up with the changes.   
 
Kaleidoscope:  Carla reported that if committee members wish to volunteer at the 
Kaleidoscope, they should contact Nickie Kaptur at 248-680-7223.  Senior program information 
will be available at the Parks and Recreation table.  The committee would like Carla to print 
some of the Senior Advisory Committee brochures for this table, and they will decide if they 
want to get more involved next year. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that staff and board members enjoyed a holiday party in 
December. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the new senior home repair program, SHARP, will hold 
it’s kick-off on January 25.  They have formed a 14-member steering committee and most of 
the positions have been filled.  Those interested in a supper club held their first meeting today.  
Eight people attended.  Troy’s spelling duel will be held January 18.  There are 13 competitors 
this year.  
 
OLHSA:  Pauline reported that they had a speaker from Senior Services, Inc. a non-profit 
agency in Kalamazoo that offers home repairs for seniors.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they discussed projects 
for the upcoming year.   
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were no suggestions this month. 
 
Comments 
 
David Ogg announced that there are openings for the next Citizens Academy. 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Jan. 4, 2007 

3 

Frank Shier suggested that the Committee take advantage of the opportunity for exposure at 
the Kaleidoscope and that they spend less time discussing the Medicare issue. 
 
Jo Rhoads suggested that some of the street sign information presented at today’s meeting be 
passed on to other seniors via the newsletter.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JANUARY 8, 2007  

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, January 
8, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Committee member Henry Allemon called the meeting to order at 
6:58 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 

Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Christopher Stout 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2007-01-001  
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of January 8, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 13, 2006 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-01-002 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 

 Page 1 of 3

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JANUARY 8, 2007  

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the November 13, 2006 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. Cucina Development, Inc., AKA Bravo Development, Inc. (an Ohio 

Corporation) requests to transfer stock thru merger in 2006 Class C 
Licensed business located at Somerset Collection South, 2801 W. Big 
Beaver, Suite E150, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  (This is a stock 
merger and not a new owner for Brio Tuscan Grill) 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Scott Edwards, attorney for 
Bravo Development.  Mr. Edwards stated this transaction was merely a stock 
transfer by merger with no change in ownership or operations.  A chart was 
provided to each of the Committee members which outlined the percentage of 
ownership of the various parties.  This merger will affect all five of the restaurant 
locations.   
 
Sergeant Stout advised the Committee that there have been no recent liquor 
violations. 
 
Resolution #LC2007-01-003 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Cucina Development, Inc., AKA Bravo Development, Inc. (an 
Ohio Corporation) be allowed to transfer stock thru merger in 2006 Class C 
Licensed business located at Somerset Collection South, 2801 W. Big Beaver, 
Suite E150, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County 
 
 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 

 Page 2 of 3



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JANUARY 8, 2007  

Sergeant Stout advised the Committee that the Directed Patrol Unit of the Police 
Department had recently conducted 71 decoy liquor operations.  The only violation 
issued was to Nino Salvaggio International Marketplace for sale to an underaged 
patron.   
 
Sergeant Stout also advised the Committee that there was now one quota Class C 
liquor license available in Troy.  He stated that he has received numerous 
telephone inquiries about the license but the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
has sent no paperwork. 
 
The Hooters liquor license issue was raised.  Assistant City Attorney Allan Motzny 
advised the Committee that the matter was on tonight’s City Council agenda.  He 
stated that Hooters offered some concessions including removal of signs, closure 
of the John R location, and dismissal of the current litigation.   
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Henry W. Allemon, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 3 of 3



campbellld
Text Box
J-01m







PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on January 23, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-021 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes: All Present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES – January 9, 2007 Regular Meeting 

 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-022 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting minutes as 
submitted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT) 
 
Mr. Wright presented a brief BZA report. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief DDA report. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief Planning and Zoning report. 
 
 

8. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – Work session with representatives of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates presented a summary of the 
Master Plan project including: 
 

1. Approach to the project. 
2. Work Plan elements. 
3. Plan content. 
4. Next steps in process. 

 
General discussion followed.  A glossary of planning and zoning terms was 
distributed to the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission agreed to 
complete the individual surveys and return them to the Planning Department within 
two weeks.  
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00  
Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Miller updated the Planning Commission on the status of ZOTA 225. 
 
Ms. Lancaster summarized the text modification that was made to the draft ZOTA 
since the last meeting.  The text change related to the expiration of the Conceptual 
Development Plan (CDP), Section 35.50.01.F.  General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Richard Rattner, 300 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, shared his opinion of the 
proposed text modification and ZOTA 225 in general. 
 
It was generally agreed to keep Section 35.50.01.F as is.  Additionally, it was 
agreed to add a provision to 35.50.01.C related to building height, massing and 
design. 
 
 

10. 2007 APA CONFERENCE 
 
It was determined that members Schultz, Littman and Strat would attend the 2007 
American Planning Association (APA) National Conference in Philadelphia, 
Philadelphia, from April 14-18, 2007.  Furthermore, it was determined that each 
attendee would be reimbursed for his expenses; however, reimbursement should 
not exceed $2,500 per member.  Each attendee would be responsible for any costs 
above $2,500.  The three Planning Commissioners agreed to this arrangement. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-023 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, That members Schultz, Littman and Strat attend the 2007 APA 
National Conference, and that reimbursement for each attendee shall not exceed 
$2,500. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Article 28.00.00  Rental 
Car Agencies in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented the item.  An interested rental car company approached the 
owner of a vacant industrial property in Troy.  Car rental agencies are not permitted 
as a principal use in the M-1 district.  The Planning Commission discussed the item.   
 
It was determined that a draft ZOTA inclusive of the following points would be 
prepared and reviewed by the Planning Commission at a future meeting. 

• Permit by Special Use Approval. 
• Minimum distance from residential property. 
• Maintenance activities shall be inside the building.  

 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

13. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Vleck suggested that providing digital agendas and agenda items would make it 
easier for him to prepare for Planning Commission meetings.  It was generally 
agreed to discuss the matter at a future meeting. 
 
Ms. Kerwin stated that adding a screen in front of the podium in Council Chambers 
for video presentations would make it easier for Planning Commissioners to watch 
presentations.  Presently Planning Commissioners must turn to look behind them 
during meetings.  She also suggested individual laptops would be an improvement. 

 
Mr. Schultz asked the Planning Commission to reconsider Resolution # PC-2007-
01-002 that approved the minutes of the December 12, 2006 Regular meeting.  

 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-024 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider Resolution # PC-2007-01-002, approval of the minutes 
from the December 5, 2006 Special/Study meeting and December 12, 2006 Regular 
meeting. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-01-025 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes from the December 12, 2006 Regular meeting be 
amended to include the verbatim farewell comments made by Planning Commissioner 
Waller. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\01-23-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on January 23, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-021 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes: All Present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES – January 9, 2007 Regular Meeting 

 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-022 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the January 9, 2007 Regular meeting minutes as 
submitted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT) 
 
Mr. Wright presented a brief BZA report. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief DDA report. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief Planning and Zoning report. 
 
 

8. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – Work session with representatives of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates presented a summary of the 
Master Plan project including: 
 

1. Approach to the project. 
2. Work Plan elements. 
3. Plan content. 
4. Next steps in process. 

 
General discussion followed.  A glossary of planning and zoning terms was 
distributed to the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission agreed to 
complete the individual surveys and return them to the Planning Department within 
two weeks.  
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00  
Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Miller updated the Planning Commission on the status of ZOTA 225. 
 
Ms. Lancaster summarized the text modification that was made to the draft ZOTA 
since the last meeting.  The text change related to the expiration of the Conceptual 
Development Plan (CDP), Section 35.50.01.F.  General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Richard Rattner, 300 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, shared his opinion of the 
proposed text modification and ZOTA 225 in general. 
 
It was generally agreed to keep Section 35.50.01.F as is.  Additionally, it was 
agreed to add a provision to 35.50.01.C related to building height, massing and 
design. 
 
 

10. 2007 APA CONFERENCE 
 
It was determined that members Schultz, Littman and Strat would attend the 2007 
American Planning Association (APA) National Conference in Philadelphia, 
Philadelphia, from April 14-18, 2007.  Furthermore, it was determined that each 
attendee would be reimbursed for his expenses; however, reimbursement should 
not exceed $2,500 per member.  Each attendee would be responsible for any costs 
above $2,500.  The three Planning Commissioners agreed to this arrangement. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-023 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, That members Schultz, Littman and Strat attend the 2007 APA 
National Conference, and that reimbursement for each attendee shall not exceed 
$2,500. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Article 28.00.00  Rental 
Car Agencies in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented the item.  An interested rental car company approached the 
owner of a vacant industrial property in Troy.  Car rental agencies are not permitted 
as a principal use in the M-1 district.  The Planning Commission discussed the item.   
 
It was determined that a draft ZOTA inclusive of the following points would be 
prepared and reviewed by the Planning Commission at a future meeting. 

• Permit by Special Use Approval. 
• Minimum distance from residential property. 
• Maintenance activities shall be inside the building.  

 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

13. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Vleck suggested that providing digital agendas and agenda items would make it 
easier for him to prepare for Planning Commission meetings.  It was generally 
agreed to discuss the matter at a future meeting. 
 
Ms. Kerwin stated that adding a screen in front of the podium in Council Chambers 
for video presentations would make it easier for Planning Commissioners to watch 
presentations.  Presently Planning Commissioners must turn to look behind them 
during meetings.  She also suggested individual laptops would be an improvement. 

 
Mr. Schultz asked the Planning Commission to reconsider Resolution # PC-2007-
01-002 that approved the minutes of the December 12, 2006 Regular meeting.  

 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-024 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider Resolution # PC-2007-01-002, approval of the minutes 
from the December 5, 2006 Special/Study meeting and December 12, 2006 Regular 
meeting. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-01-025 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes from the December 12, 2006 Regular meeting be 
amended to include the verbatim farewell comments made by Planning Commissioner 
Waller. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JANUARY 23, 2007
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\01-23-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Feb. 1, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Feb. 1, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: Frank Shier, Member    
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-2-001 
Moved by JoAnn Thompson  
Seconded by Jo Rhoads  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Jan 4, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed awards, accomplishments, and upcoming events within the Troy 
School District including the art show at Somerset Mall.  
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that “learn to play” sessions will be offered in 
April and May and sign-ups for leagues will begin in April.  Merrill asked how the equipment 
would be stored, and Carla reported that it the details have not been finalized, but will probably 
be kept in a locked container at the site. 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that the contract with Emerald 
Food Service to provide exclusive catering ends February 12.   A Request For Proposals has 
been sent to vendors and is in the process of evaluation.  Changes in the food policy regarding 
non-profit groups that meet the residency requirement will also be finalized in the near future.  
Vending machines will replace the café effective the week of February 12 that will include soft 
drinks, snacks, coffee, and sandwiches/soups, etc. 
 
Lunch Visits:  JoAnn Thompson reported that she had lunch at the Clawson center and it was 
very good.  She also got information on the programs they offer there. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Feb. 1, 2007 

2 

 
Medicare Part D:  JoAnn Thompson commented that there will not be much to discuss until 
the end of the year and this item could be taken off the agenda until then. 
 
Kaleidoscope:  Bud Black reported that it was a nice event and lots of up-to-date information 
was given out.  He spoke to the SHARP representative there about attending an advisory 
committee meeting. 
 
New Business 
 
AED:  JoAnn Thompson reported that she had received a call with a complaint that the front 
desk staff at the Community Center did not know where the automatic external defibrillator was 
stored and that the device should be accessible to the public.  Carla will follow up with the 
building supervisor and report back next month. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that they discussed park plans. 
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they are very busy.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the new senior home repair program, SHARP, held it’s 
kick-off on January 25.  Six requests for service were received in the first week.  These 
included fixing a leaky faucet, replacing a broken window, securing a loose railing and 
removing some broken tree limbs.  More volunteers are needed, so please spread the word.  
Volunteer applications are available at the Community Center or on the City’s website.  Troy’s 
spelling duel was held on January 18, and the county duel will be in Troy on February 28.  
Seven cities will compete.  
 
OLHSA:  No report. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report.  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion about supporting senior’s 
effort to remain healthy through nutrition education.  Carla reported that occasional nutrition 
programs are offered and a 12-week program was offered last year as part of the national “Eat 
Better, Move More” campaign.   These programs are not especially well attended, and seniors 
may well be getting some of their nutrition information elsewhere – magazines, Internet, their 
doctor, etc.  Staff will make an effort to offer additional nutrition program in the near future.  
 
Comments 
 
James Berar suggested that the Committee participate in the open comments section of the 
City Council meetings by letting them know what is going on with the senior program. 
 
David Ogg reported that he is on a committee at Beaumont Hospital that is seeking input on 
how to improve hospital services. 
 
James Berar reported that he is participating in an ethnic festival in Sterling Height s on Feb. 2. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Feb. 1, 2007 

3 

 
JoAnn Thompson reported that the Supper Club has their first dinner planned and it will have a 
Polish theme. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:32 A.M. on Wednesday, February 7, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak  
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Mitch Grusnick, Residential Plan Analyst 
   Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 2007 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of January 3, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TONY GEE, 533 E. WATTLES, for relief of Chapter 
83 to install a fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high non-obscuring fence and two (2) masonry columns 4’-11” in height located in the 
front yard parallel to and setback 4’ from the sidewalk along E. Wattles Road.  Chapter 
83 limits the height of fences located in front yard setbacks to not more than 30” in 
height. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Gee were present.  Mr. Gee stated that he is asking for this variance 
because he would like to put the columns up, as it would give the property the look they 
are trying to achieve and they would also like to add additional landscaping. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the fence would tie into anything and Mr. Gee said that it would 
not.  Mr. Gee said that they want to add berms and different levels of shrubbery.  The 
columns would be made of the same stone that is on the house and the fence would be 
a black ornamental fence.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the location of the posts was and Mr. Stimac said that they 
are proposed to be 4’ from the sidewalk along Wattles Road. 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

ITEM #2 –con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he did not see a landscaping plan and asked what type of 
landscaping Mr. Gee wished to add. 
 
Mr. Gee said that they plan to add a row of landscaping in front of the fence and a row 
behind the fence.  He said that they want to use burning bushes and arborvitae.  Mr. 
Gee said that this will soften the fence line.  Mr. Gee also said that he wants to add this 
fence to help screen lights from traffic on the street across Wattles Road.  Mr. Gee said 
that his bedroom is on the first level and at night there is a lot of traffic on this street and 
the lights shine into his bedroom. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written objections on file.  There is one (1) written approval on file. 
 
Mr. Gee stated that they have been moving dead trees off the property since they 
owned it and have tried to work with the neighbor behind them but have not had any 
success. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that this Board is only reviewing the request for the fence even though 
a letter objecting to the fence was presented.  Mr. Kessler said that it is not up to this 
Board to act on the matter of the dead trees. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the property line was about 1’ from the sidewalk.  Mr. Gee said he 
thought that was correct. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that would give them about 3’ to add additional landscaping.  Mr. Gee 
said that he thought it was about 4’ to 5’ and he is trying to leave enough room for the 
pine trees to develop.  Mr. Kessler said he would like to see the fence line moved back 
farther so the new landscaping was not damaged by the proximity to the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Gee said that he thought the fence could be moved back an additional 2’ or 3’ to 
give the pine trees room to grow. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the pillars were part of the fence and Mr. Stimac said that they 
were. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what the hardship was.  Mr. Gee said that basically it is the amount of 
traffic coming off of the street across Wattles Road and the lights shining into his 
bedroom. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if he was correct that Mr. Gee wanted to add extra landscaping 
because of the lights of oncoming traffic, but wanted to put up a fence so that it would 
look better. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Gee said that was correct and he would be willing to shorten the length of the fence 
but they were really hoping to be able to add the columns as it would be aesthetically 
pleasing. 
 
Mr. Zuazo said that basically they plan to put up a fence and then cover it.  Mr. Gee said 
that it would not be covered but the landscaping would soften the look of the fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak explained that one of the things that allows the Board to grant a variance is 
a hardship with the land and he did not see a hardship that would justify the fence.  Mr. 
Richnak felt that the berm and extra landscaping could adequately screen the lights. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said he thought this was an unusual house and asked if the fence could 
be moved back. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if the petitioner took the fence out of the front setback, he could put 
up a 6’ high privacy fence if it was 50’ from the front property line. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he could understand the need to screen the lights and believes 
that a decorative entrance does enhance the property.  Mr. Kessler also said that the 
additional landscaping would enhance the look of the property along Wattles Road.  Mr. 
Kessler stated that he would be opposed to any type of gate. 
 
Mr. Gee said that he wants to increase the value of the property as well as add privacy.  
He has no intention of adding gates and said that he would be willing to move the fence 
back 4’ or 5’. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that currently they are proposing a setback of 4 ½’ from the sidewalk.  
Mr. Gee said that he could move it back between 5’ and 10’ and still give the existing 
pine trees room to grow. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what type of trees these were and Mrs. Gee said that they are White 
Pines. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that in his opinion this was a very unique request even though they 
do not have a hardship.  He said that he did not have a problem with the fence and 
could understand the request for the pillars. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if the fence could be moved farther back from the sidewalk.  Mr. Gee 
said that he thought he could go to 8’ from the sidewalk.  He believes there is about 15’ 
or 20’ before he would hit the existing trees. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Tony Gee, 533 E. Wattles, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high 
non-obscuring fence and two (2) masonry columns 4’-11” in height located in the front 
yard along E. Wattles Road. 
 

• Fence is to be a minimum of 8’ from the right of way line. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DON STURR OF NATIONAL SIGNS, LTD, 30 E. 
BIG BEAVER, for relief to erect three (3) wall signs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to erect 
three (3) wall signs.  Section 85.02.05, 3 allows one (1) wall sign, up to 10% of the area 
of the front of the structure to a maximum of 200 square feet in area and an additional 
wall sign 20 square feet in area.  The plans submitted indicate three (3) wall signs, one 
39.79 square feet, one 32.5 square feet and one 29.79 square feet in area.  These 
signs exceed the number of wall signs that are permitted. 
 
Mr. Don Sturr representing Kona Grill and Mr. William Siewert of MLS Signs were 
present.   Mr. Sturr said that after reviewing the plans they would like to withdraw the 
request for a sign on the south side of the building.  Visibility would be poor for traffic 
traveling north or south.   
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that it was his understanding that the petitioner could have a sign 
on the front of the building, the north side, up to 200 square feet and one additional sign 
that would be up to 20 square feet.  Mr. Stimac said that was correct and the reason this 
request was before the Board was because the petitioner is asking for a second sign 
that would be 29.79 square feet. 
 
Mr. Sturr said that they would like a larger sign on the west side of the building as it 
would be very visible to people traveling along Livernois and Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he could understand the need for more signage as this 
restaurant is on a corner and it is possible that the mature vegetation in the area would 
obscure the Logo. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if they planned to add signage to the awnings on the building.  Mr. 
Sturr stated that there would not be any signage on the awnings. 
 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Don Sturr of National Signs, LTD, 30 E. Big Beaver relief of the 
Ordinance to erect a wall sign on the west side of the building that will be 29.79 square 
feet in area, where Section 85.02.05 allows an additional wall sign 20 square feet in 
area. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• The total area of signage proposed is considerably less that permitted by the 

Ordinance. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:03 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 5



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft February 12, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, February 12, 2007, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order 
at 5:00 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 26, 2006  
 
Resolution #EC-2007-02-001 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, October 23, 2006, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 

Approval of Consolidation of All Applicable Precincts in the City of Troy for the 
Election Scheduled for Tuesday, May 8, 2007 
 
Resolution #EC-2007-02-002 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED for 
the May 8, 2007 Election as deemed necessary and in accordance with MCL 168.659. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:05 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 12, 2007  

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
February 12, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Christopher Stout 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Timothy P. Payne 
    Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2007-02-004  
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Payne at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of February 12, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of January 8, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-02-005 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 

 Page 1 of 4

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 12, 2007  

 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the January 8, 2007 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. Target Corporation requests a new SDM license to be located at 1301 

Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ# 276146] 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Jason Hatkowski, assistant 
store manager of the Target store.  Mr. Hatkowski explained to the Committee that 
Target is interested in offering wine sales to guests in an effort to simplify the 
shopping experience by stocking most everything a shopper would need in one 
store.  Currently 600 stores sell wine.  The wine will be shelved in an area of 
approximately 55 square feet in the food area near the soft drinks.  There are no 
plans for television advertisement.   
 
In response to a question from the Committee, Mr. Hatkowski explained the 
checkout procedure for cashiers under the age of 18.  Target’s computer system 
links an employee’s log-in with his birth date.  If wine is presented for purchase at 
a register operated by an underage employee, a supervisor is required to log in 
and complete the sale.  In-store training will be scheduled for all employees.  
 
Sergeant Stout stated that the Police Department has no objection to this SDM 
license.  There have been no problems in the past at the Target store.  Mr. 
Hatkowski indicated that Target has had no liquor violations in the state of 
Michigan. 
 
Resolution #LC2007-02-006 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Target Corporation be granted a new SDM license to be located 
at 1301 Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.   
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 

 Page 2 of 4



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 12, 2007  

There was a brief discussion regarding the violation history of the Rite-Aid stores. 
 
In response to a question at a previous meeting, Sergeant Stout informed the 
Committee that the Farmer Jack store on John R does not have liquor offered for 
sale.  That store possesses only a SDM license and would not have the ability to 
order liquor. 
 
Sergeant Stout advised the Committee that Sergeant Cantlon would be replacing 
him in March as the Services Section Sergeant. 
 
Mr. Ukrainec asked how many violations a business is allowed to have before their 
license is reviewed or temporarily penalized.  Allan Motzny responded that a 
Liquor Violation Hearing is held annually and every violation is on the agenda.  
After that Hearing, a City Council Resolution is sent to the MLCC recommending 
revocation or renewal of the license.  The City’s authority is stronger with the on-
premise licenses.  Under the law, revocation of a SDD or SDM license cannot be 
recommended until they have received three violations in one calendar year.   
 
With regard to a leniency comparison between the City and the MLCC, Mr. Hall 
commented that the MLCC defers the decision to the City.  As such, if a 
municipality recommends revocation or renewal, generally the MLCC supports the 
decision.   
 
Mr. Ukrainec stated that he feels strongly about the Michigan Legislature 
becoming stricter on liquor violation enforcement.  He suggested the possible 
formation of a root committee to persuade the legislature become much more 
stringent in issuing violations or temporary restraints against the establishments 
that continuously and habitually violate the liquor laws.   For example, “three 
strikes and you’re out” for a period of six months or a year.  He feels that would 
wake up a lot of people.    
 
With regard to the “three strikes and you’re out” suggestion, Mr. Ogg stated that it 
was his understanding that the City does not have the authority to pull a license, 
that would have to come from the MLCC.  Mr. Motzny agreed.  Mr. Ogg further 
stated that with the regard to the suggestion of changing the law, there would be 
substantial political considerations. 
 
Sergeant Stout noted that there were only three sales to minor violations at the 
recent Liquor Violation Hearing.  Thus, It appears that the establishments in Troy 
are acting much more diligent in their training of employees.   
 
There was discussion about the penalty imposed upon Chammps after several 
violations.   
 
There was further discussion about the Hooters issue.  Mr. Motzny stated that the 
Federal Court Hearing on the Motion to Dismiss is scheduled for February 28 

 Page 3 of 4



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 12, 2007  

before Judge Julian Cook.  One of the main issues is collateral estoppel or claim 
preclusion.  There are Federal and Michigan legal doctrines that obligate a person 
filing a lawsuit to raise all possible issues.  If someone files a new lawsuit, they are 
precluded from raising those claims that could have been raised in a prior suit.  
Thus, one of the main arguments is that Hooters could have raised all the issues 
in the State court proceeding that they are now raising in Federal Court.  If the 
Judge denies the Motion, then the case goes to trial.  If the Judge grants the 
Motion, then the City wins the case, but Hooters may appeal to the U. S. Circuit 
Court of Appeals in Cincinnati.  Mr. Motzny further stated that the Judge might not 
issue a decision on February 28.  He may take the case under advisement and a 
written opinion could take several months.  There is still no date set for a hearing 
in the Michigan Court of Appeals case.   
 
Mr. Godlewski asked whether Buscemi’s would need to request a license transfer 
since they are moving.  Sergeant Stout stated since there is no change in 
ownership, they do not have to appear before the Committee and City Council. 
 
Mr. Motzny and Sergeant Stout clarified the issue of an available quota license.  
The MLCC stated that the Jumbo Buffet has pending litigation which puts the 
license back into escrow.  Thus, at this time, there is not an available quota 
license.  For clarification, when there is a cancellation of a quota license, the 
applicant has to appear before the City first as opposed to going to the State.  The 
City must pass a resolution agreeing to refill the quota and recommending one 
applicant “above all others.”  At that point, the application goes to the State.   
 
Sergeant Stout clarified that The Palm’s license was a resort license and cannot 
be transferred to a different location.  It is in escrow and has to stay at that 
location.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:33 p.m. 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 4 of 4



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT       FEBRUARY 14, 2007  

A regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board was held on Wednesday, 
February 14, 2007 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairperson Jayne Saeger called the meeting to order at 7:36 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Al Petrulis, Vice-Chairperson 
    Patrick Carolan, Secretary 
    Kathleen Melchert 
    ACO Donald Cochran 
    PSA Stephen Vaillancourt 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: V. James Viola 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Viola 
 
Resolution #AC2007-02 -001  
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Viola at the Animal Control 
Appeal Board meeting of February 14, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0  
Absent: Viola 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of 10/14/04, 03/02/05, 09/07/05, 03/08/06, and 
09/06/06 Meetings 
 
Resolution #AC2007-02-002  
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the 10/14/04, 03/02/05, 09/07/05, 03/08/06, and 
09/06/06 meetings of the Animal Control Appeal Board be approved. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Viola 

 Page 1 of 2

campbellld
Text Box
J-01t



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT       FEBRUARY 14, 2007  

 
 
 
ITEM FOR DISCUSSION 
 
Proposed revisions to City Ordinance Chapter 90 to include anti-tethering 
provisions were mailed to all Board members for discussion at this meeting.   
 
Irene and Jack MacColeman, the residents that brought the issue to the attention 
of City Council, were present at the meeting. 
 
After discussion, a consensus was reached that an anti-tethering provision in 
Chapter 90 was appropriate.  Further discussion regarding the length of time to 
allow tethering resulted in the following Motion. 
 
Resolution #AC2007-02-003 
Moved by Carolan 
Seconded by Melchert 
 
RESOLVED, that the Animal Control Appeal Board recommends adoption of the 
proposed revisions to Chapter 90.10.71, 90.10.72, and 90.20.31, with the 
exception that the language in 90.20.31(f) read as follows:  “Tethering shall occur 
during daylight hours provided that the period of tethering does not exceed eight 
continuous hours.” 
 
Yes:  3 (Carolan, Melchert, Saeger) 
No:  1 (Petrulis) 
Absent: Viola 
 
 
 
 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 5, 2007.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 
      
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 2 of 2



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - DRAFT                                            February 15, 2007 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A special meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
February 15, 2007 at the Troy Community Center, staff conference room.  The meeting was 
called to order at 6:38 p.m. 
 
Present:  Merrill Dixon, member  Kathleen Fejes, member 
   Orestes Kaltsounis, member Stuart Redpath, member 
   Meaghan Kovacs, member  Janice Zikakis, member 
   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Tod Gazetti (excused), Gary Hauff (excused), Jeff Stewart (excused), Tom Krent 
(excused).   
 
Visitors:   
 
New Business 
A.  Remnant Parcels 88-20-22-356-031 and 88-20-23-351-002:  Discussion followed whether 
the City should sell these two remnant parcels or retain them as park land. 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Fejes 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has reviewed the two parcels 
(88-20-22-356-031 and 88-20-23-351-002) and determined there is no practical use as park 
land and recommends to the City Council that these remnant parcels be sold.   
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution # PR - 2007 - 02 - 005 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board hereby AMENDS the resolution 
by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board recommends to City Council that the proceeds from the sale of the two parcels be 
returned to the Parks and Recreation Park Development budget.”   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution # PR – 2007 – 02 – 007 
Moved by Redpath 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01u



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - DRAFT                                            February 15, 2007 
 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has reviewed the two parcels 
(88-20-22-356-031 and 88-20-23-351-002) and determined there is no practical use as park 
land and recommends to the City Council that these remnant parcels be sold. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends 
to City Council that the proceeds from the sale of the two parcels be returned to the Parks 
and Recreation Park Development budget.   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Zikakis, Vice-Chairperson 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 



DATE:        February 1, 2007
TO:            Phillip M. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of January 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 9 $132,844.00 $1,861.00

Sub Total 9 $132,844.00 $1,861.00

COMMERCIAL
Shell New 1 $30,000.00 $355.00
Completion (New) 1 $645,000.00 $4,660.00
Tenant Completion 1 $30,000.00 $355.00
Add/Alter 25 $3,854,417.00 $29,257.00
Repair 1 $3,075.00 $95.00

Sub Total 29 $4,562,492.00 $34,722.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 6 $1,191,589.00 $9,228.00
Add/Alter 24 $308,083.00 $4,436.00
Fire Repair 1 $124,500.00 $1,020.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $120.00

Sub Total 33 $1,624,172.00 $14,804.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 6 $900,000.00 $7,170.00
Add/Alter 1 $6,000.00 $135.00
Repair 3 $19,500.00 $465.00

Sub Total 10 $925,500.00 $7,770.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $350,000.00 $2,595.00

Sub Total 1 $350,000.00 $2,595.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 34 $0.00 $3,600.00
Fences 3 $0.00 $45.00

Sub Total 37 $0.00 $3,645.00

TOTAL 119 $7,595,008.00 $65,397.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 321 $3,210.00
Cert. of Occupancy 45 $2,572.40
Plan Review 79 $3,761.00
Microfilm 38 $261.00
Building Permits 119 $65,397.00
Electrical Permits 160 $11,932.00
Heating Permits 106 $5,900.00
Air Cond. Permits 37 $2,055.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $55.00
Plumbing Permits 74 $5,763.00
Storm Sewer Permits 9 $183.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 10 $348.00
Sewer Taps 11 $1,924.00

TOTAL 1010 $103,361.40

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 45 $225.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 79 $1,185.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 8 $8.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 5 $75.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 10 $100.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 8 $120.00

TOTAL 17 $1,763.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2006 2006 2007 2007

JANUARY 116 $7,273,163.00 119 $7,595,008.00

FEBRUARY 94 $6,659,691.00 0 $0.00

MARCH 127 $5,629,425.00 0 $0.00

APRIL 174 $5,766,996.00 0 $0.00

MAY 216 $11,290,598.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 218 $10,681,352.00 0 $0.00

JULY 198 $11,269,902.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 150 $14,170,725.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 161 $12,827,192.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 134 $10,733,680.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 111 $6,690,950.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 94 $10,508,219.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 119 $7,595,008.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2007

6

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Feb 1, 2007 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2007Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter DAILEY COMPANY 500 W FOURTEEN MILE 3RD FL  388,000
Commercial, Add/Alter GALE CONSTRUCTION CO 5607 NEW KING 100  290,000
Commercial, Add/Alter C S W CONSTRUCTION CO, INC 230 W MAPLE  1,542,438
Commercial, Add/Alter LIFESTYLE LIFT  HOLDING 100 KIRTS C  325,000
Commercial, Add/Alter BARTON MALOW COMPANY 2600 W BIG BEAVER PBX RM  450,000
Commercial, Add/Alter RUTHER CONSTRUCTION INC 800 TOWER DATA CT  560,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  3,555,438

Commercial, Completion New TALON 5660 NEW KING  645,000

Commercial, Completion NewTotal  645,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter AIM CONSTRUCTION 44201 DEQUINDRE NUC MED  350,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  350,000

Total Valuation:  4,550,438Records  9



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



S M T W T F S
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28

February 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2007February 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
February 1

1:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

2 3

4

5
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

6
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7:30pm CANCELLED Historic 
District Study Comm

7
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Persons with 
Disabilities  (Confere

7:30pm City Council Liquor 
Hearing (Council C

8
7:30pm CANCELLED Library 

Advisory Board 
(Library Director's 
Office)

9 10

11

12
5:00pm Election Commission 

(Council Boardroom)
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

13
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

14
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

7:30pm Animal Control 
Appeal Board 
(Conference Room C)

15
6:30pm SPECIAL Parks & 

Recreation Advisory 
Board (Community 
Center - 3179 
Livernois)

16 17

18

19 20
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

21
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

22 23 24

25

26
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

27
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

28
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



S M T W T F S
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2007
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

April 2007March 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
March 1

1:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

2 3

4

5
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

6
7:30am Civil Service 

Commission Act 78 
1:00pm Board of Review
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study Meetin
7:30pm Historic District Study

7
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Persons with 
Disabilities  
(Conference Room L

8
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

9 10

11

12
9:00am Board of Review
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

13
1:00pm Board of Review
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

14
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board 
(Conference Room C)

15
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

16 17

18

19
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

20
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

21
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

22 23 24

25

26 27
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7:30pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource R

28
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

29 30 31



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

April 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

May 2007April 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

April 1

2
8:00am Election Commission 

(Council Boardroom)
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

3
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study Meetin
7:30pm Historic District Study

Committee (Museum 

4
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Persons with 
Disabilities  (Confere

5
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

6
City Hall Closed

7

8

9
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

12
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

13 14

15

16
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

17
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

18
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

20 21

22

23 24
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

25
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

26 27 28

29

30
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)



SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY 
 

Q U A R T E R L Y     R E P O R T 
 
 

JANUARY 2007 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

  
Representative Municipality 
J. Bais-DiSessa City of Berkley 
R. Spallasso Village of Beverly Hills 
T. M. Markus City of Birmingham 
R. Haberman City of Clawson 
B. A. Photiades City of Ferndale 
A. LeCureaux City of Hazel Park 
A. R. Allie City of Huntington Woods 
J. Mueller City of Lathrup Village 
M. L. McReynolds City of Oak Park 
S. W. Ball City of Pleasant Ridge 
G. Rassel City of Royal Oak 
B. P. Murphy City of Troy 

 
 
 
 

OFFICERS 
  
Chairman: A. LeCureaux 
Vice Chairman: M. L. McReynolds 
Secretary: B. P. Murphy 
Advisory Committee: A. LeCureaux 

A. R. Allie 
B. P. Murphy 
J. Bais-DiSessa 

 
 
 
 

J. A. McKeen General Manager 
M. A. Czuprenski Operations Director 
J. Schandevel Authority Engineer 

    

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 II

               January 2007 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority 
 
Subject:  Quarterly Report - January 2007 
 
Board Members: 
 
Attached is a copy of the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority's Quarterly Report 
covering the first six months operation of the 2006/07 fiscal year.  The report contains a financial 
statement of the Authority's operation and an outline of projects in progress or completed during the 
quarter.  The report also contains statistical information and other information of general interest to the 
members of the Board of Trustees, and the members of the governing body of each of the member 
municipalities of this Authority. 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT
 
The total net income for the first 6 months of 2006/07 was $648,994.12 before capital expenses and 
depreciation.  This is a substantial improvement over the net income of $182,000 recorded for the same 
period of 2005/06. 
 
 Actual Compared to Budget
Revenue $4,572,261.19 +    $270,461.71   
 
Expenses $3,923,267.07 -    $56,414.93 
 
Net Operating Income $   648,994.12 +    $ 326,876.64 
 
The increase in revenue was due to higher than budgeted miscellaneous revenue (+$159,000 of which 
$127,000 was the insurance settlement for our dump truck that was destroyed by fire), receiving higher 
than budgeted member yard waste (+$101,000) which is probably a result of the leaf season ending earlier 
than usual, receiving higher than budgeted prices for the sale of recycled materials (+$51,000) and higher 
than budgeted number of Household Hazardous Waste appointments (+$26,000).  These increases were 
partially offset by receiving lower than budgeted member MSW (-$83,000).  Revenue from the sale of 
recycled material totaled $787,000 and was 17% of total revenue.   
 
Expenses were below budget due primarily to decreased costs for non-labor administrative and general 
expenses (-$120,000 which is mostly due to the timing of expenses), refuse disposal costs (-$60,000), 
partially offset by increased costs for hauling yard waste (+$37,000), utilities (+$32,000), maintenance 
(+$24,000), supplies (+$14,000) and labor (+$14,000). 
  
Net operating income was greater than planned (+$326,877) for the first half of the year.  The basis of 
presentation of net operating income has been changed so that the Waste Management billings have been 
booked into the same time period as the revenue associated with those billings.  In previous quarterly 
reports, we reported six months of revenue, but only five months of Waste Management billings.  The 
revised presentation gives a more accurate picture of our net income.   
 
A total of $223,000 was spent on capital expense projects during the first six months of the fiscal year.  A 
new dump truck ($135,000) was purchased at the compost site.  This was paid for with insurance 
proceeds for the damage incurred to our old truck, which was severely damaged by fire.  The recycling 
drop off center ($38,000) at the MRF was totally rebuilt.  We also refurbished the baler ($9,000) and 
began the replacement of the main fiber conveyor ($35,000) at the MRF and began the project to install a 



 III

second refuse compactor ($6,000) at the Troy Transfer Station.  Significant capital expenses will continue 
to be incurred during the second half of the fiscal year as we prepare for the operations as of July 1, 2007 
under the new collection and disposal contracts.    
    
As of January 3, 2007, our working capital was -1.0% based on unrestricted assets.  This is well below the 
7.5% working capital goal approved by the Board, but it is an improvement over the -8.4% recorded as of 
June 30, 2006.  We will be addressing our level of working capital as we prepare our budget for 2007/08.  
If restricted assets are included, our working capital increases to 5.7%.   
 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT 
 
The following is a comparison of the first six months operation of the current fiscal year with the same 
period of the previous fiscal year: 
 
 Revenues From Disposal Services      + $166,867.01 
  
 Revenues From Other Sources               + 171,472.93 
  
 Total Revenues  +$ 338,339.94 
  
 Operating Expenditures  - $128,651.48 
 
 Net Income Before Depreciation          +$ 466,991.42 
 
The increase in revenue from disposal services was primarily the result of increased yard waste tonnage 
from the member communities (+$120,000).  The increase in revenue from other sources was primarily 
due to the insurance settlement for our fire damaged dump truck (+$127,000), other miscellaneous 
income (+$32,000) and higher prices paid to us for recycled materials (+$9,000).   The decrease in 
operating expenses was primarily due to lower refuse disposal costs (-$82,000) and lower administrative 
and general costs (-$70,000). 
 
The following tabulation provides a comparison on a tonnage basis for the period July 1 through 
December 31 for the years 2003/04-2006/07: 
 

July 1 Through December 31 
 
  

 
2003/04

 
 

2004/05

 
 

2005/06

 
 

2006/07 

Over or 
Under 

2005/06
Total Tons 113,478 110,099 105,949 105,557 - 392
      
Avg. Disposal Charge Per Ton $29.94 $30.36 $31.04 $32.74 + $1.70
Other Income 7.31 10.46 8.92 10.58 +   1.66
 $37.25 $40.82 $39.96 $43.32 + $3.36
  
Average Oper. Exp. Per Ton $33.91 $37.02 $38.24 $37.17 - $ 1.07
  
Available for Improvements – Per Ton $3.34 $3.80 $1.72 $6.15 + $ 4.43
 
MATERIAL HANDLED 
 
The Authority processed 105,557 tons of solid waste material (refuse, recyclables and yard waste) during 
the first six months of the current fiscal year.  This is a decrease of 392 tons (0.4%) compared to the same 
period last year.  Of the material processed, 7.8% was recycled and 26.9% was composted.  The average 



 IV

tons per working day delivered to the Authority during this period was 812.0 tons and represents an 
increase of 1.2% compared to the same period last year. 
 

JULY 1 THROUGH DECEMBER 31
 

Average Tons Per Working Day 
 

 2003 2004 2005 2006 
Tons 866.2 834.1 802.6 812.0 
Variance from prior year +4.0% -3.7% -3.8% +1.2% 
 
MAJOR PROJECTS 
 
TRANSITION TO 2007 CONTRACTS 
 
We are continuing to work on a wide variety of issues that need to be resolved before the new collection 
and disposal contracts go into effect on July 1, 2007.  During the quarter, we worked on the following 
items: 

1. A plan for communicating the changes to the residents of the member communities. 
2. Several changes to the Troy Transfer Station and MRF to prepare for our revised operations. 
3. Exploring branding of SOCRRA including new names, logos and taglines. 
4. Conducting meetings with the new collection contractors and the member communities to 

begin the preparations for operating under the new collection contracts. 
5. Beginning a Request for Proposals process to identify contractors to perform brush chipping 

services for the member communities. 
A significant amount of additional work will take place in the January through March, 2007 quarter, 
focusing on the development of a transition plan with each contractor and the communities that they will 
serve.            
 
NEW RECYCLING DROP OFF CENTER 
 
As part of our preparations for operations as of July 1, 2007 under the new collection and disposal 
contracts, we have completely remodeled our recycling drop-off center at a new location on the grounds 
of the Materials Recovery Facility in Troy.  This new center is much more attractive than our old center 
and is much easier for the residents to use.  We are also dedicating additional manpower to keeping the 
drop-off center clean, attractive and user friendly.  We will be measuring the amount of material 
generated by the drop-off center to determine if the remodeling has resulted in additional recycled 
material.  If you have not been to our drop-off center recently, you will be very surprised at the 
improvements that we have made.   
 
EXPANSION OF RECYCLING PROGRAMS 
 
We are continuing to work to expand our recycling programs in order to get more material processed by 
our MRF and to return more revenue to the member communities.  During the quarter, with the assistance 
of Anna Collinson of RRS, we implemented recycling programs at several schools and businesses and 
began discussions about recycling programs with several other schools and businesses.  We are using the 
existing curbside collection program for some locations and pilot testing the new recycling services that 
will be available under the new collection contracts that are effective on July 1, 2007 at other locations.  If 
you receive any inquiries about recycling in businesses, schools or churches, please forward them to the 
SOCRRA office.        
 



 V

HEALTH INSURANCE FOR MEDICARE ELIGIBLE RETIREES 
 
We have successfully applied for the employer subsidy from the Medicare Part D program for continuing 
the prescription drug coverage for our retirees.  However, we have yet to receive the subsidy for the 
January 1, 2006 to June 30, 2006 period.  We will be applying for the subsidy for the current fiscal year 
in July of 2007. 
 
As of January 1, 2007, we have implemented a new method of providing health care insurance to our 
Medicare eligible retirees.  We have requested that our retirees and eligible spouse enroll in an individual 
health care plan and the Authority is reimbursing the retiree and their spouse for the cost of their 
coverage, up to a monthly maximum amount.  This change, while it eliminates our ability to receive the 
Medicare Part D subsidy, significantly reduces the cost of providing health care insurance to our 
Medicare eligible retirees and should help to reduce the Authority’s long term actuarial liability for 
supplying health insurance to our retirees.     
 
AUDIT REPORT 
 
The audit report for the 2005/06 fiscal year was completed by our auditors, Rehmann Robson.  The audit 
found the Authority to be in complete conformity with generally accepted accounting practices.  Two 
recommendations for improvement were made by the Auditors and were accepted by the Authority staff.  
The Authority staff was complimented for the condition of our financial records and for their 
cooperativeness with the auditors.  The Auditor noted that our level of working capital (-8.4% as of June 
30, 2006), was significantly below the working capital goal of 7.5% approved by the Board.  As of 
January 3, 2007, our working capital level had improved to -1.0%.  We will be addressing our level of 
working capital as we prepare our budget for 2007/08. 
 
WASTE MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
We have had a series of discussions with Waste Management regarding two issues: landfill surcharges 
and the implications of Waste’s contract with the Grosse Pointe Clinton Refuse Disposal Authority on the 
favored nations clause in our contract with Waste.  Waste has been billing us for landfill surcharges for 
several years.  We believe that these billings have been improper for a number of reasons and we have not 
paid them.  Our contract with Waste calls for our price to be reduced if Waste offers a similar service in 
the general area at a lower price.  We believe that Waste’s contract with Grosse Pointe Clinton, which 
does offer a similar service at a significantly lower price, should result in a reduction of our rates.  We 
have been unable to resolve these issues through our discussions with Waste Management and through a 
meeting of a committee of representatives of Waste and SOCRRA and we have entered into the 
arbitration process identified in our contract.  Arbitration will be held in mid-March.  In the interim, we 
are withholding payment from Waste Management until the full potential amount of our claim has been 
reached. 
 
CARDBOARD RECYCLING PILOT 
 
A cardboard recycling pilot is being conducted in Berkley, Ferndale, Huntington Woods and Pleasant 
Ridge for six months beginning on November 6, 2006.  During this pilot, cardboard will be collected 
using a rear load packer truck, identical to a typical garbage truck.  Using a truck of this type allows us to 
collect and recycle whole cardboard boxes and eliminates the need for residents to flatten and cut 
cardboard boxes in order to meet our current recycling guidelines.  The purpose of this pilot is to evaluate 
the economics of this type of cardboard recycling.  We will be working with the four communities to 
obtain cardboard from commercial locations, which will be required for the pilot to be financially 
successful.  The amount of cardboard generated by this pilot has continued to grow, but we are not yet 
close to the economic break even point.  We are working with the collection contractor to address several 
collection problems and to determine how to increase the amount of cardboard being collected. 
 
 



 VI

TEAMSTERS LABOR AGREEMENTS 
 
We reached new four year agreements with both of the Teamsters bargaining units that became 
effective retroactive to July 1, 2006.  The primary changes in the agreement were in the area of 
health care insurance.  We made major changes in how we provide health care insurance to our 
retirees which resulted in significant savings for the Authority and should also reduce our 
liability for providing health care insurance to our retirees.  The agreements had to be revised to 
reflect changes that Blue Cross made to the health care insurance for our Medicare eligible 
retirees.  These changes were negotiated with the Teamsters and were included in the new 
contracts. 

 
          Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
           Jeffrey A. McKeen, P.E. 
           General Manager 



SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF INCOME  JULY 1,2006 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2006

REVENUES ESTIMATED ACTUAL VARIANCES

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE    
MEMBERS $2,486,250.00 $2,403,297.37 ($82,952.63)
OTHERS 341,280.00 337,843.20 (3,436.80)

$2,827,530.00 $2,741,140.57 ($86,389.43)
   

COMPOST
MEMBERS $775,752.48 $876,915.07 $101,162.59
OTHERS 46,023.00 47,967.08 1,944.08

$821,775.48 $924,882.15 $103,106.67
RECYCLABLES  

MEMBERS CREDIT ($218,973.00) ($210,451.40) $8,521.60
   

OTHER INCOME  
REVENUES - CARDBOARD $51,468.00 $27,849.40 ($23,618.60)
REVENUES - PLASTICS 161,757.00 149,595.99 (12,161.01)
REVENUES - SCRAP METAL 7,353.00 49,611.67 42,258.67
REVENUES - NEWSPAPERS 485,268.00 510,904.84 25,636.84
REVENUES - GLASS 7,353.00 10,650.78 3,297.78
REVENUES HOUSEHOLD WASTE 50,000.00 75,695.00 25,695.00
REVENUES - BATTERIES 0.00 1,120.00 1,120.00
REVENUES - TIN CANS 14,705.00 18,745.57 4,040.57
REVENUES - NON FERROUS METAL 7,353.00 18,754.01 11,401.01
REVENUES-COMPOST 16,200.00 20,037.50 3,837.50
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 11,280.00 17,760.03 6,480.03
GRANT FUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00
RENTAL INCOME 49,730.00 47,474.95 (2,255.05)
MISC. INCOME 9,000.00 168,490.13 159,490.13
 $871,467.00 $1,116,689.87 $245,222.87

TOTAL REVENUES $4,301,799.48 $4,572,261.19 $270,461.71

BUDGET ACTUAL  
EXPENSES APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES VARIANCES

MADISON HTS TRANS.OPERATION $865,232.00 $742,619.59 ($122,612.41)
BATTERY/HOUSEHOLD WASTE 71,240.00 87,411.63 16,171.63
TROY TS OPERATION 1,383,764.00 1,462,931.43 79,167.43
MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 358,836.00 370,374.53 11,538.53
LANDFILL/COMPOST OPERATION 175,356.00 279,530.68 104,174.68
WASTE DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 347,264.00 319,809.47 (27,454.53)
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 777,990.00 660,589.74 (117,400.26)
FIXED CHARGES 0.00 0.00 0.00

$3,979,682.00 $3,923,267.07 ($56,414.93)

REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $322,117.48 $648,994.12 $326,876.64

 
NET INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION $322,117.48 $648,994.12 $326,876.64

 
-1-



SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF INCOME  JULY 1,2006 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2006

REVENUES 2006/07
 TOTAL AVERAGE

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE TONS AMOUNT PER TON
    

MEMBERS 64,070.74 $2,403,297.37
OTHERS 4,909.08 337,843.20

COMPOST   
MEMBERS 27,602.15 876,915.07
OTHERS 783.67 47,967.08

RECYCLABLES   
MEMBERS 8,049.14 (210,451.40)
DROP OFF CENTERS 142.02 0.00

105,556.80 $3,455,571.32 $32.74
OTHER INCOME   

REVENUES - CARDBOARD  $27,849.40
REVENUES - PLASTICS 149,595.99
REVENUES - SCRAP METAL 49,611.67  
REVENUES - NEWSPAPERS 510,904.84
REVENUES - GLASS 10,650.78
REVENUES-HOUSEHOLD WASTE 75,695.00
REVENUES BATTERIES 1,120.00
REVENUES - TIN CANS 18,745.57  
REVENUES - NON FERROUS METAL 18,754.01
REVENUES - COMPOST 20,037.50
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 17,760.03
GRANT FUNDS 0.00
RENTAL INCOME 47,474.95
MISC. INCOME 168,490.13

$1,116,689.87 10.58

TOTAL REVENUES $4,572,261.19 $43.32
  

EXPENSES
MADISON HEIGHTS TRANSFER STATION $742,619.59
BATTERY RECYCLING/HOUSEHOLD WASTE 87,411.63
TROY TS OPERATION 1,462,931.43  
MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 370,374.53
LANDFILL/COMPOST OPERATION 279,530.68
WASTE DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 319,809.47
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 660,589.74
FIXED CHARGES 0.00  

$3,923,267.07 $37.17
  
NET INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION $648,994.12 6.15

 
DEPRECIATION 66,613.33 0.63

NET INCOME $582,380.79 $5.52
  

   

 

-2-



SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES
COMPARED WITH TOTAL BUDGET
JULY 1,2006 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2006

TOTAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUES 2006/07 6 MONTHS BALANCE
 

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE
MEMBERS $4,875,000.00 $2,403,297.37 $2,471,702.63
OTHERS 711,000.00 337,843.20 373,156.80

$5,586,000.00 $2,741,140.57 $2,844,859.43
 

COMPOST
MEMBERS-COMPOST $1,077,434.00 $876,915.07 $200,518.93
OTHERS-COMPOST 66,700.00 47,967.08 18,732.92

$1,144,134.00 $924,882.15 $219,251.85

RECYCLABLES
MEMBERS CREDIT ($465,900.00) ($210,451.40) ($255,448.60)

OTHER INCOME
REVENUES - CARDBOARD $114,373.00 $27,849.40 $86,523.60
REVENUES - PLASTICS 359,458.00 149,595.99 209,862.01
REVENUES - SCRAP METAL 16,339.00 49,611.67 (33,272.67)
REVENUES - NEWSPAPERS 1,078,374.00 510,904.84 567,469.16
REVENUES - GLASS 16,339.00 10,650.78 5,688.22
REVENUES-HOUSEHOLD WASTE 101,316.00 75,695.00 25,621.00
REVENUES - BATTERIES 0.00 1,120.00 (1,120.00)
REVENUES - TIN CANS 32,678.00 18,745.57 13,932.43
REVENUES - NON FERROUS METAL 16,339.00 18,754.01 (2,415.01)
REVENUES - COMPOST 36,000.00 20,037.50 15,962.50
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 24,000.00 17,760.03 6,239.97
RENTAL INCOME 99,456.00 47,474.95 51,981.05
MISC. INCOME 25,000.00 168,490.13 (143,490.13)

$1,919,672.00 $1,116,689.87 $802,982.13

TOTAL REVENUES $8,183,906.00 $4,572,261.19 $3,611,644.81

 

-3-



SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES  
COMPARED WITH TOTAL BUDGET
JULY 1,2006 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2006

TOTAL BUDGET ACTUAL
EXPENSES 2006/07 6 MONTHS BALANCE

MADISON HEIGHTS OPERATION $1,893,500.00 $742,619.59 $1,150,880.41
BATTERY/HOUSEHOLD WASTE 154,800.00 87,411.63 67,388.37
TROY TS OPERATION 3,061,800.00 1,462,931.43 1,598,868.57
MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 763,600.00 370,374.53 393,225.47
LANDFILL/COMPOST OPERATION 363,800.00 279,530.68 84,269.32
WASTE DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 0.00 319,809.47 (319,809.47)
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 1,448,335.00 660,589.74 787,745.26
FIXED CHARGES 0.00 0.00 0.00

$7,685,835.00 $3,923,267.07 $3,762,567.93

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $7,685,835.00 $3,923,267.07 $3,762,567.93
 

 
 
NET INCOME $498,071.00 $648,994.12 ($150,923.12)

    
    

  
 
 
    
    

 

 

 
-4-



 
SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT
JULY 1,2006 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2006

2006/07 2005/06 VARIANCES
REVENUES

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE
MEMBERS $2,403,297.37 $2,391,431.01 $11,866.36
OTHERS 337,843.20 335,147.19 2,696.01

$2,741,140.57 $2,726,578.20 $14,562.37

COMPOST
MEMBERS $876,915.07 $756,827.72 $120,087.35
OTHERS 47,967.08 43,739.08 4,228.00

$924,882.15 $800,566.80 $124,315.35
 

RECYCLABLES
MEMBERS CREDIT ($210,451.40) ($238,440.69) $27,989.29

OTHER INCOME
REVENUES - CARDBOARD $27,849.40 $28,357.83 ($508.43)
REVENUES - PLASTICS 149,595.99 170,524.54 (20,928.55)
REVENUES - SCRAP METAL 49,611.67 35,462.03 14,149.64
REVENUES - NEWSPAPERS 510,904.84 514,636.58 (3,731.74)
REVENUES - GLASS 10,650.78 6,819.66 3,831.12
REVENUES-HOUSEHOLD WASTE 75,695.00 76,622.00 (927.00)
REVENUES-BATTERIES 1,120.00 615.00 505.00
REVENUES - TIN CANS 18,745.57 11,870.58 6,874.99
REVENUES - ALUMINUM 18,754.01 9,800.80 8,953.21
REVENUES - COMPOST 20,037.50 13,868.00 6,169.50
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 17,760.03 21,132.96 (3,372.93)
GRANT FUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00
RENTAL INCOME 47,474.95 46,296.00 1,178.95
MISC. INCOME 168,490.13 9,210.96 159,279.17

$1,116,689.87 $945,216.94 $171,472.93

TOTAL REVENUES $4,572,261.19 $4,233,921.25 $338,339.94

OPERATING EXPENSES $3,923,267.07 $4,051,918.55 ($128,651.48)

EXCESS $648,994.12 $182,002.70 $466,991.42

REBATES TO CITIES $0.00 $277,000.00 ($277,000.00)

EXCESS AFTER REBATES $648,994.12 ($94,997.30) $743,991.42

 

-5-



SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY
TOTAL DISPOSAL CHARGES
JULY 1,2006 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2006

DISPOSAL AVERAGE COST
MUNICIPALITY TOTAL TONS CHARGES PER TON

BERKLEY 5,462 $172,768.51 $31.63
   

BEVERLY HILLS 3,918 100,846.54 $25.74
   

BIRMINGHAM 9,427 276,812.10 $29.36
  

CLAWSON 5,174 154,875.54 $29.93
  

FERNDALE 8,487 287,543.41 $33.88
  

HAZEL PARK 5,274 175,775.91 $33.33
  

HUNTINGTON WOODS 2,648 65,240.32 $24.64
  

LATHRUP VILLAGE 1,737 54,621.36 $31.45
  

OAK PARK 7,865 251,038.44 $31.92
  

PLEASANT RIDGE 1,473 43,167.49 $29.31
  

ROYAL OAK 23,306 723,877.31 $31.06
   

TROY 24,951 763,194.11 $30.59
  

SUB-TOTAL 99,722 $3,069,761.04 $30.78
  

OTHER CUSTOMERS 5,693 $385,810.28 $67.77
DROP OFF CENTERS 142 0.00 0.00

 
TOTAL 105,557 $3,455,571.32 $32.74

   

 

 

-6-



SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY 
IMPROVEMENT FUND
JULY 1,2006  THROUGH  DECEMBER 31,2006
  
  
  

   
 

 
EXPENDITURES   

 
MRF Equipment $43,539.50

New Dump Truck - Compost Site 135,000.00
Compactor - Transfer Station 6,232.00

New Recycling Drop Off Center 38,032.92

TOTAL $222,804.42

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

 
  
  
 

 
  
 

   
 

 

 

-7-



SOCRRA REVENUES 2006/07

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

Jul 06 Aug 06 Sep 06 Oct 06 Nov 06 Dec 06 Jan 06 Feb 06 Mar 06 Apr 06 May 06 Jun 06

Estimate Actual



SOCRRA EXPENSES 2006/07

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

Jul 06 Aug 06 Sep 06 Oct 06 Nov 06 Dec 06 Jan 06 Feb 06 Mar 06 Apr 06 May 06 Jun 06

Estimate Actual



campbellld
Text Box
J-07





campbellld
Text Box
J-08





campbellld
Text Box
J-09





campbellld
Text Box
J-10

































 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
February 19, 2007  
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police  
 
SUBJECT:   Liquor License Compliance Check 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Each quarter the police department conducts compliance inspections of all establishments holding 

a liquor license that allows for the sale of alcoholic beverages to the public. 
 The Directed Patrol Unit of the Police Department recently completed the compliance 

testing of 109 liquor license holders in the City of Troy.  
 The tests were conducted pursuant to Police Department policy utilizing five (5) Student 

Enforcement Aides. 
 Nino Salvaggio, 6935 Rochester Road was the only business in violation and was cited for 

the sale of an alcoholic beverage to minor.    
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 N/A 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The cited business was issued the applicable LCC and City Ordinance violations. 
 The cited business will be scheduled to appear at the next City Council Liquor Violation Review 

meeting. 
 Businesses passing the inspection will receive a certificate indicating such. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City Goal #1 - “Enhance the livability and safety of the community”, 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-11



 

 
 
February 16, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
 
SUBJECT:   Status of “The Troy Christmas Tree” 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 On December, 18, 2006, the City Council approved a resolution (#2006-12-390) proclaiming and 

celebrating that the spruce tree donated by Tom’s Landscaping and planted on the City Hall lawn 
just west of the Veterans Plaza be officially designated as “The Troy Christmas Tree”, and that a 
sign with the words, “The Troy Christmas Tree” donated by: Tom’s Landscaping – Troy, Michigan 
be posted near its base. 

 Staff has obtained a 12” x 12” black granite plaque with the inscription “The Troy Christmas 
Tree” Donated by Tom’s Landscaping – Troy, Michigan engraved on its surface and will set 
that plaque to the face of a concrete footing placed at the base of the tree. The concrete work and 
sign placement will take place as soon as weather permits. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Tom’s Landscaping donated and installed the Tree at no cost to the City. The estimated total cost 

of the plaque and footing, including installation by City Parks and Recreation staff will be $200. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 There are no options necessary with this item 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-12





campbellld
Text Box
J-13





  

 
 
Date: February 20, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
 
From: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Planning Commission Election of Officers 
 
 
On January 9, 2007 the Planning Commission conducted an election of officers.  The final minutes 
fairly represent the election process that occurred, and is attached for your information.  The By-
Laws and Rules of Procedure of the City of Troy Planning Commission, Article III, set forth the 
election process.  It is as follows: 
 

ARTICLE lll – ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Section 1. Each January at the Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission shall conduct 
elections of Officers by nominations from the floor with the election immediately thereafter. 
 
Section 2. Candidates receiving a majority vote of the members present at the Regular 
Meeting shall be declared elected. 
 
Section 3. The Officers shall take office immediately following their election.  They shall hold 
their office for a term of one (1) year, or until their successors are elected and assume office. 

 
It should be noted that the Planning Commission, City Management and the City Attorney’s Office 
are working on updated By-Laws and Rules of Procedure for the Planning 
Commission. 
 
 
Attachment:  Planning Commission Final Minutes, Item 14 
 
Prepared by MFM 
 
 
G:\City Council Agenda Items\2007 Agenda Items\02 26 07\PC Election of Officers_02 26 07 CC Report.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-14



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 9, 2007 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

14. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
CHAIRPERSON 
 
Chair Strat declared nominations were in order for the Planning Commission 
Chairperson.   
 
Mr. Wright nominated Robert Schultz to serve as Chairperson of the Troy 
Planning Commission. 
 
Chair Strat announced that Mr. Schultz has been nominated to serve as 
Chairperson, and asked if there were any further nominations.  There were no 
further nominations.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-013 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Supported by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That nominations for the Chairperson of the Troy Planning 
Commission be closed. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright, 
No: None 
Abstain: Schultz 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-014 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Supported by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Robert Schultz serve as Chairperson of the Troy Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
 
VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
Chair Strat declared nominations were in order for the Planning Commission Vice 
Chairperson.   
 
Mr. Wright nominated Mark Vleck to serve as Vice Chairperson of the Troy 
Planning Commission. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 9, 2007 
 

Mr. Littman nominated Mary Kerwin to serve as Vice Chairperson of the Troy 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Schultz nominated Michael Hutson to serve as Vice Chairperson of the Troy 
Planning Commission. 
 
Chair Strat asked if there were any further nominations.  There were no further 
nominations.   
 
Chair Strat asked for statements from each nominee for Vice Chairperson.   
 
Mr. Hutson asked that his nomination be withdrawn, deferring to the two Planning 
Commission veterans who were nominated.  
 
Ms. Kerwin and Mr. Vleck made brief statements with respect to their 
qualifications to serve as Vice Chairperson. 
 
Chair Strat announced that Ms. Kerwin and Mr. Vleck have been nominated to 
serve as Vice Chairperson, and asked if there were any further nominations.  
There were no further nominations. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-015 
Moved by: Wright 
Supported by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That nominations for the office of Vice Chairperson of the Troy 
Planning Commission be closed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
 
Ms. Lancaster addressed the format of the election procedure.  A brief discussion 
followed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-016 
Moved by: Littman 
Supported by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Mary Kerwin serve as Vice Chairperson of the Troy Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 9, 2007 
 

RECOMMENDATION OF PLANNING COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BOARD OF 
ZONING APPEALS 
 
Chair Strat declared nominations were in order for the recommendation of 
Planning Commission Representative to the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Mr. Littman nominated Wayne Wright for the Planning Commission 
recommendation to the Mayor for Representative to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals.   
 
Chair Strat announced that Mr. Wright has been nominated to serve as the 
Planning Commission Representative to the Board of Appeals, and asked if there 
were any further nominations.  There were no further nominations.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-017 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Supported by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That nominations for the Planning Commission recommendation to 
the Mayor for Representative to the Board of Zoning Appeals be closed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-018 
Moved by: Schultz 
Supported by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Wayne Wright be recommended to the Mayor for the Planning 
Commission Representative to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION OF PLANNING COMMISSION ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
 
Chair Strat declared nominations were in order for the recommendation of 
Planning Commission Alternate Representative to the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Mr. Wright nominated Lawrence Littman for the Planning Commission 
recommendation to the Mayor for Alternate Representative to the Board of 
Zoning Appeals.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 9, 2007 
 

Chair Strat announced that Mr. Littman has been nominated to serve as the 
Planning Commission Alternate Representative to the Board of Appeals, and 
asked if there were any further nominations.  There were no further nominations.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-019 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Supported by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To move that nominations for the Planning Commission 
recommendation to the Mayor for Alternate Representative to the Board of 
Zoning Appeals be closed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-01-020 
Moved by: Schultz 
Supported by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Lawrence Littman be recommended to the Mayor for the 
Planning Commission Alternate Representative to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 

 



 

 
 
February 20, 2007 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Sidewalk Maintenance Program and ADA Requirements 
 
 
Background: 
 
 This is a follow-up to the January 15, 2007 agenda report on our sidewalk maintenance program. 
  Concerns that arose are as follows: 

 
o It was expressed that upgrading the sidewalk system to meet ADA requirements was 

not required at this time due to a grandfather clause.  ADA requires that anytime a 
sidewalk system is constructed or altered they must have ramps wherever they intersect 
with the street. The required replacement program encompassed a two square mile 
area and is considered an alteration. 

o A concern was made that the City of Troy’s action of removing the sidewalk segments 
created an unsafe condition by forcing pedestrians to walk into the street. On the 
contrary by removing these segments of sidewalk pedestrians are being directed to a 
sidewalk ramp that has a corresponding sidewalk ramp on the opposite side of the 
street and not directing them into the street.  

o A question was asked as to the time frame for replacement and installation of sidewalk 
ramps where they could be installed. Our sidewalk maintenance programs will startup 
again in the spring and installations will occur as schedules and weather permits.  

o It was requested that additional notification and communication be added to keep 
residents informed.  We will add ADA requirement to our current notification letters. We 
will also be notifying and coordinating with the adjacent property owners to facilitate the 
installation of the new ramps required to accommodate a safe street crossing. Our first 
priority will be installation locations that will facilitate expansion of the sidewalk system.  

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal I) 
 Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally (Goal IV) 

 
Options: 
 
 This is an informational report only  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-15


	AGENDA: February 26, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations: No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions
	C-2 Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 188) – A Se
	C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-724) – Proposed Spa

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – Food Serv
	D-2 Approval of City of Troy Five Year Parks and Recreation 

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bi�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Be�

	E-5 Molnar v. Janice Pokley, City of Troy, et al.
	E-6 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Police Department P
	E-7 Amendment #1 – Tennis Court Reconstruction
	E-8 Private Agreement for Caswell Town Center PUD Project No
	E-9 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Stat
	E-10 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parc
	E-11 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parc
	E-12 Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Adviso
	F-2 Acceptance Grant Award for U.S. Fire Administration
	F-3  Scheduling a Workshop to Discuss Strategic Planning Ini

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Revised Chapter 90 – Animals


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 Mayor Schilling Requests that City Council Engage in Dis
	H-2 Report on Liquor Licenses – Requested by Council Member 
	H-3 Proposed Resolution to Reduce the Property Tax Millage R

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – October 14, 2004
	Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – March 2, 2005
	Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – September 7, 2005
	Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – March 8, 2006
	Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – September 6, 2006
	Election Commission/Final – October 23, 2006
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 13, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Jan
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Jan
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 3, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 4, 20
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – January 8, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Janua
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 23, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 23, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 1, 2
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 7, 2007
	Election Commission/Draft – February 12, 2007
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 12, 2007
	Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – February 14, 2007
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – February 15, 200

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Jan
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – January 31, 2007

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Craft from Stephanie Bergeron, President of 
	Letter of Thanks to Officer Dungjen from Tiea Young in Appre

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority
	J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service
	J-8  Communication from the Michigan Municipal League Regard
	J-9  Communication from the Michigan Municipal League Regard
	J-10  Communication from Emerald Food Services Regarding Eve
	J-11  Communication from Chief of Police Charles Craft Regar
	J-12  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol
	J-13  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regard
	J-14  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regar
	J-15  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richn

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



